» o

\ 8
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Vs

Notice of meeting of

Executive
To: Councillors Waller (Chair), Ayre, Steve Galloway, Moore,
Morley, Reid and Runciman
Date: Tuesday, 15 December 2009
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Guildhall, York
AGENDA

Notice to Members - Calling In:

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item on
this agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by:

10:00 am on Monday 14 December 2009, if an item is called in
before a decision is taken, or

4:00 pm on Thursday 17 December 2009, if an item is called in
after a decision has been taken.

ltems called in will be considered by the Scrutiny Management
Committee.

1. Declarations of Interest

At this point, Members are asked to declare any personal or
prejudicial interest they may have in the business on this agenda.

YORKPRIDE

www.york.gov.uk



2. Exclusion of Press and Public

To consider the exclusion of the press and public from the meeting
during consideration of the following:

e Annexes 2 and 3 to Agenda Item 8 (More For York — Adult
Social Care Blueprint) on the grounds that they contain
information relating to the financial or business affairs of
particular persons. This information is classed as exempt
under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to Section 100A of the
Local Government Act 1972 (as revised by The Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).

e Annex 2 to Agenda Item 9 (Council Headquarters — Tender
Award) on the grounds that it contains information relating to
the financial or business affairs of particular persons and
information in respect of which a claim for legal professional
privilege could be maintained. This information is classed as
exempt under paragraphs 3 and 5 respectively of Schedule
12A to Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as
revised by The Local Government (Access to Information)
(Variation) Order 2006).

3. Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)

To approve and sign the minutes of the Executive meeting held on
1 December 2009.

4. Public Participation

At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have
registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or a
matter within the Executive’s remit can do so. The deadline for
registering is 5:00 pm on Monday 14 December 2009.

5. Executive Forward Plan (Pages 7 - 8)

To receive details of those items that are listed on the Forward Plan
for the next two Executive meetings. This information is based
upon the latest available version of the Forward Plan, published on
27 November 20009.



10.

More for York - Organisation Review (Pages 9 - 36)

This report presents proposals for the restructuring of senior
management roles and responsibilities within the City of York
Council.

More for York Update - Income Collection and Sustainability
Review (Pages 37 - 62)

This report sets out a general update on work on the eight agreed
More for York work streams, provides a review of the sustainability
impacts of the programme, sets out further proposals regarding the
provision of community based cash collection, and proposes the
commencement of two further blueprints for inclusion in the
programme.

More For York - Adult Social Care Blueprint (Pages 63 - 84)

This report provides further information on the progress of the
reviews of Home Care and Elderly Persons’ Residential Homes, as
part of the Adult Social Care blueprint previously reported to
Executive on 20 October, and seeks approval for the next stage of
this work.

Council Headquarters - Tender Award (Pages 85 - 104)

This report presents the process and outcomes of the evaluation of
final tenders for the delivery of the Council’s new headquarters and
recommends Tarras Park Properties York Investors LLP as the
preferred bidder.

Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009 (Pages 105 - 186)

This report presents to Executive the Audit Commission’s final
reports for the 2009 Comprehensive Area Assessment of the City
of York.

Note: The above document was published with this agenda on 10
December 2009.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Response to Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009
(including Improvement Plan 2009/10 Update) (Pages 187 -
198)

This report provides an initial response to the findings highlighted in
the 2009 Comprehensive Area Assessment reports. The response
includes the delivery of the 2009/10 milestones contained within the
Council’'s Improvement Plan, as approved by the Executive on 21
July 2009.

Note: The above document was published with this agenda on 10
December 2009.

2010/11 Budget Strategy and Medium Term Financial Planning
2011/12 to 2013/14 (Pages 199 - 208)

This report provides an update on the strategy being adopted for
the development of the 2010/11 Revenue Budget and outlines
longer term issues linked to public sector funding and the
implications these may have on the Council's medium term
financial planning.

14-19 Reforms - the York Response to National Changes
(Pages 209 - 220)

This report summarises the Local Authority’'s 14-19 Plan (a
statutory appendix of the Children and Young People’s Plan), which
sets out priorities for developments to 2015, and recommends that
the Council should play a leading role in the development of an
enlarged Apprenticeship programme for 16-19 year olds in the City.

Former Lowfields School, Dijon Avenue, Acomb (Pages 221 -
228)

This report seeks approval for the demolition of the former school
buildings at the above site and to fund the work from the resultant
capital receipt.

Urgent Business

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.



Democracy Officer:

Name: Fiona Young
Contact details:
e Telephone — (01904) 551027

e E-mail — fiona.young@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak
Business of the meeting
Any special arrangements
Copies of reports

Contact details are set out above.




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Annex

About City of York Council Meetings

Would you like to speak at this meeting?
If you would, you will need to:

e register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00
pm on the last working day before the meeting;

e ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this);

e find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer.

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088

Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting

All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing
online on the Council’s website. Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the
full agenda are available from Democratic Services. Contact the Democracy
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the
agenda requested to cover administration costs.

Access Arrangements

We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you. The meeting
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing
loop. We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape. Some formats will take
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours
for Braille or audio tape).

If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign
language interpreter then please let us know. Contact the Democracy Officer
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the
meeting.

Every effort will also be made to make information available in another
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing
sufficient advance notice is given. Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this
service.

T AT TS (AT ST 2T =L G (FI ST T WARAT 56 T AT (b8 T ZA, §F T W
0 T TN 0T (R T S S (RIS AR T4 T | BRI a (01904) 551 550 |

Yeteri kadar dnceden haber verilmesi kosuluyla, bilgilerin teriimesini hazirlatmalk ya da
bir terciiman bulmalk icin mimkin olan hersey vapiacaktir. Tel: (01904) 551 550

RS DERMIERAFEE TN RES A » 4 R ERIEMA BN TS ZHEE
=EIOERAS. |ES (01904) 551 550,

(01904) 551 550uéJf-iufﬁ’“f@gd/é_fuu,ﬁ}E’aL}“ﬁﬁ'q_J@ $re e st Sl

Informacja mozie byé dostepna w ttumaczeniu, jesli dostaniemy zapotrzebowanie z
wystarczajacym wyprzedzeniem. Tel: (01904) 551 550



Page 2

Holding the Executive to Account

The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (40 out of 47).
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a
published Executive (or Executive Member Decision Session) agenda. The
Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date and will
set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny
Management Committee (SMC). That SMC meeting will then make its
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.

Scrutiny Committees
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the
Council is to:
¢ Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services;
e Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as
necessary; and
e Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans

Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?
e Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to
which they are appointed by the Council;
e Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for
the committees which they report to;
e Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.



Page 3 Agenda ltem 3

City of York Council Committee Minutes
MEETING EXECUTIVE
DATE 1 DECEMBER 2009
PRESENT COUNCILLORS WALLER (CHAIR), AYRE,
STEVE GALLOWAY, MOORE, MORLEY, REID AND
RUNCIMAN

114. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any personal
or prejudicial interests they might have in the business on the agenda. No
interests were declared.

115. MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Executive (Calling In) meeting held
on 10 November 2009 and the minutes of the Executive
meeting held on 17 November 2009 be approved and signed
by the Chair as a correct record.

116. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

117. EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN

Members received and noted details of those items that were currently
listed on the Forward Plan for the next two Executive meetings.

The Chair reported that, since publication of the Executive agenda, a
number of items had been added to the Forward Plan for the meeting on
15 December and there were now ten items listed for that meeting.

118. COUNCIL FAIRNESS AND INCLUSION STRATEGY AND SINGLE
CORPORATE EQUALITY SCHEME 2009-12

Members considered a report which outlined progress towards improving
the Council’s fairness and inclusion policy and practice and sought
approval for a refreshed corporate Fairness and Inclusion Strategy and
Single Corporate Equality Scheme for the period 2009-12.

The refreshed Strategy document, attached as Annex 1 to the report and
summarised in Annex 2, had been drafted after extensive consultation with
the relevant communities, the Social Inclusion Working Group, partners



Page 4

and staff. Details of consultation were provided in Annex 3. The Strategy
set out the corporate framework to be used by each Directorate to put in
place Directorate Fairness and Inclusion (equality) single schemes and
plans. It addressed the areas for further improvement identified by the
self-assessment against the Equality Framework for Local Government
(EFLG) carried out in April 2009, at which time the Council had reached
the first level -‘Developing’ - of the three-level Framework. The aim was to
achieve the third level — ‘Achieving’ — by April 2011.

Progress on the Strategy and Scheme would be reported annually each
summer, with further refreshes if necessary. There would be a major
review in May 2012, by which time the Single Equality Act and associated
Codes of Practice were expected to be in place.

RESOLVED: (i) That the Corporate Fairness and Inclusion Strategy
and Single Corporate and Equality Scheme 2009-12 be
approved.’

(i) That Officers be requested to review the scheme to
ensure that faster progress is made and that this be included
in the report to Executive with the April 2010 review of
outcomes from the Strategy, with an indication of the
prioritisation of activities. 2

(i)  That progress be reported at least twice per year to
the Decision Session of the Executive Member for Leisure,
Culture and Social Inclusion, with outcomes that improve
local life for all of York’s residents.

(iv)  That Officers be requested to review the collation of
data and details provided to the Executive, the policies
behind the questions included in surveys issued by the
Council and how the information so gathered is used to
review Council policy. 4

REASON: To meet statutory requirements, to realise the strategic vision
of ensuring that, as the City changes and continues to
prosper, everyone is included and no-one is left behind, and
to ensure that progress on the Strategy is properly monitored.

Action Required

1. Begin the process of implementing the Strategy MM
2. Initiate a review of the Scheme for inclusion in the April MM
2010 report to Executive

3. Schedule progress reports on the Forward Plan for MM
Executive Member Decision Session

4. Initiate a review into these aspects of information MM

gathering



119.

120.

Page 5

MINUTES OF WORKING GROUPS

Members considered a report which presented the minutes of the meetings
of the Local Development Framework (LDF) Working Group, the Young
People’s Working Group and the Social Inclusion Working Group held on 7
July, 24 September and 19 October respectively.

Members’ attention was drawn in particular to the recommendations of:
e The LDF Working Group, that the Biodiversity Audit be approved for
publication as part of the LDF evidence base (Minute 5, Annex A);1
e The Social Inclusion Working Group, that a representative from
Higher York be appointed to serve on the Group as a non-voting co-
opted member (Minute 12, Annex B). 2

RESOLVED: (i) That the minutes attached at Annexes A, B and C to
the report be noted.

(i) That the recommendations to Executive contained in
Minute 5 of the LDF Working Group and Minute 12 of the
Social Inclusion Working Group, as set out in paragraphs 6-8
of the report, be approved. '

REASON: In accordance with the requirements of the Council’s
Constitution in relation to the role of Working Groups.

Action Required

1. Proceed with publication of the Biodiversity Audit as part MM
of the LDF Framework

2. Confirm appointment of the new co-opted member and JC
include on SIWG agenda distribution list

REFERENCE REPORT: NATIONAL SERVICE PLANNING
REQUIREMENTS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND TRADING
STANDARDS SERVICES

Members considered a reference report which presented the
recommendations of the Executive Member for Neighbourhood Services in
respect of the service plans for food law enforcement, health and safety
law enforcement and animal health enforcement.

The Executive Member, at a Decision Session held on 15 September
2009, had recommended that the service plans be approved. The original
report to the Decision Session was attached at Annex 1.

RESOLVED: That the service plans for food law enforcement, health and
safety law enforcement and animal health enforcement be
approved. '

REASON: In accordance with the recommendations of the Executive
Member for Neighbourhood Services and to meet statutory



Page 6

obligations with regard to service planning for environmental
health and trading standards services.

Action Required

1 Implement the new service plans KS

A Waller, Chair
[The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 2.15 pm].



Executive Meeting 15 December 2009

EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN

Table 1: Items scheduled on the Forward Plan for the Executive Meeting on 5 January 2010

Title & Description

Author

Portfolio Holder

10:10 campaign 2010

Purpose of report: The report will outline the 10:10 campaign and identify
planned projects, resources and timescales for implementation of the
campaign across CYC directorates.

Members are asked to: Note the campaign and proposed projects that will
enable the Council to achieve the aims of the 10:10 campaign.

Noel Collings

Executive Member for City
Strategy

The Future Delivery of Key Account Management and Inward Investment
Activity in York

Purpose of report: To make proposals for the future delivery of Key Account
Management and inward investment activity in York, through rationalisation
and more efficient working. The purpose of this will be to offer a more
streamlined approach to liaison with both indigenous and incoming
businesses, including reviewing the future of york-england.com. It is intended
that, subject to consultation, any new approaches will be implemented from
April 2010.

Members are asked to: To agree a new approach to the future delivery of
engagement with businesses through Key Account Management, to be funded
largely by Yorkshire Forward.

Roger Ranson

Executive Leader

Table 2: Items scheduled on the Forward Plan for the Executive Meeting on 19 January 2010

Mercury Abatement of Flue Gases — York Crematorium

Purpose of report: To advise members of the statutory requirement to abate
mercury in flue gases from crematoria and to seek support and guidance in
respect of action to be taken at York Crematorium.

Members are asked to: Consider the options for the abatement of 2 or 3

Dick Haswell

Executive Member for
Neighbourhood Services

J 8bed

G Wwajl| epusby



cremators and offer advice to support the budget process.

Minutes of Working Groups

Purpose of Report: This report presents the minutes of recent meetings of the
Young People’s Working Group, the LDF Working Group and the Social
Inclusion Working Group and asks Members to consider the advice given by
the Groups in their capacity as advisory bodies to the Executive.

Members are asked to: Note the minutes and to decide whether they wish to
approve the specific recommendations made by the Working Groups, and /or
respond to any of the advice offered by the Working Groups.

Jayne Carr

Executive Leader

Corporate Asset Management Update Report

Purpose of report: To advise on progress with the Corporate Asset
Management Plan against each of the original property outputs.

Members are asked to: Approve the recommendations made in the report.

Philip Callow

Executive Leader

Report back on Changes to the Constitution

Purpose of report: This report will set out details of the changes to the
constitution resulting from the abolition of the Shadow Executive agreed at
Full Council on 15 October 2009.

Members are asked to: Receive details of the changes in accordance with
article 16 of the constitution.

Alison Lowton

Executive Leader

g abed



Page 9 Agenda ltem 6

COUNCIL

Executive 15 December 2009
Report of the Chief Executive
More For York - Organisation Review

Summary

1. This report presents proposals — contained as recommendations to the
Executive- for the restructuring of senior management roles and
responsibilities within the City of York Council.

2. The objectives of the proposals are to ensure:

= greater and more consistent levels of customer service to residents
and users of Council services;

» increased responsiveness to neighbourhood and community needs
and a strengthened approach to securing economic prosperity for
the City, now and for the future;

» timely planning for the services which a changing population will
require — particularly health improvement and services to older
people;

» increased levels of partnership working to align activity and
resources across public agencies;

» efficiency gains through rationalising tiers of management to
provide appropriate levels of leadership and management across
the organisation — with a target saving of £1.2m — £1.6m from
management costs in 2012/13.

3. It is proposed that the Organisation Review is conducted in two
phases:

= Phase one - September 2009 - April 2010: establish new agreed
structure at Corporate Management Team level and appoint
individuals to Director positions, with revised areas of responsibility
and efficiency targets to be achieved from management levels
within Directorates;

= Phase two - April 2010 - October 2010: establish management
structures for new Directorates.



Page 10

Background

4.

10.

City of York Council has a track record in delivering efficiency savings
as part of its commitment to pursue value for money for the people of
the City. Between 2005 and 2008 £9m savings were made and service
standards sustained and improved.

In December 2008, recognising that further progress would require a
step change in approach - given financial projections within the medium
term financial strategy — the Executive asked for an efficiency
programme to be developed for the City of York Council with the
objectives of:

= delivering improved services for the people of York;

» realising efficiency savings to put the Council’s finances in a better
position to weather the recession and consequent predicted
reductions in national funding for public services.

= Develop simpler processes for staff with less administration.

On the 7 July 2009 Executive approved the establishment of a
comprehensive transformation programme for the City of York Council
— ‘More for York'.

The objectives of the More for York programme are to deliver

= More for customers — through improved access to services and
swifter more responsive service delivery;

= More for employees — through provision of better accommodation
equipment and training for employees;

= More for our money — through increased use of the Council’s total
purchasing power, collection of income and elimination of
unnecessary spend.

The targeted savings are to amount to £15m from the base budget of
the Council on a recurring basis by 2012/13.

On 7 July Executive approved functions of the Council which would be
in scope at this stage for review and redesign in order to identify in
detail savings which could be made.

Ten areas were identified for review including the senior management
structures of the Council, on which matter Executive asked that the
following be undertaken:

= a review of the senior management structures of the Council to
ensure that the Directorate structures are fit for purpose to deliver
services in the future;

= a review of the potential centralisation of support services such as
Finance prior to the move to the new HQ;

» rationalisation of the levels of management to give clearer focus to
each focus area and reduce the cost of management across the
Council.



11.

12.

13.

Page 11

The potential to save £1.2m - £1.6m in management costs by
2012/2013, was identified to Executive.

The review of the senior management structures of the Council began
on the 30 September 2009 on the arrival of the new Chief Executive of
the Council. This report contains proposals — for further consultation —
which are a product of the review.

The review process consisted of:

= an appraisal of the City and the Council’s priorities as expressed in
the community and corporate strategies and the extent to which
existing structures are aligned to these priorities;

» an appraisal of strengths and weaknesses of the current structures
in terms of value for money, satisfaction and delivery;

= consultation with elected members, partners, senior management,
staff, trade unions, and regulatory bodies.

= research on models and trends in high performing/lower spending
unitary and metropolitan authorities.

Consultation

14.

15.

Extensive consultation has been undertaken between 30 September
and 4 December, the outcomes of which have informed the
development of the proposals before Executive.

Consultation has comprised the following:

» briefings with Group Leaders, Executive portfolio holders, Shadow
spokespersons, Scrutiny Chairs;

= workshop discussions with Corporate Management Team, the
Corporate Leadership Group, Senior Management Group and staff
groupings;

» briefing of Senior Management PAs;

= briefings with Unison and the GMB and presentations at the Joint
Consultative Committee negotiation meetings with all trade unions
represented within the Council workforce;

» submissions received by email to chiefexec@york.gov.uk or in
writing to the Chief Executive at the Guildhall from employees of the
Council;

= discussions with partners within the LSP ‘Without Walls’ — including
North Yorkshire & York NHS, York Hospital Trust, North Yorkshire
Police, York St John’s University, Private Sector partners, York
CVS, York College.

= Discussion with the Council’s regulatory bodies — the Audit
Commission, Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission.




16.

17.

Page 12

The consultation was framed around the following three dimensions:

» the principles which should drive restructuring of senior
management;

= the process which should be followed to implement the restructure

= options/models for the senior management structure of the
organisation.

Key findings of the consultation process are:

Feedback from Members

171

Members have responded to the consultation individually and
collectively. Broadly their responses are supportive of the
principles for the review, with particular emphasis on cultural
change to streamline processes and create a more nimble
organisation. Members want the organisation to have a strong
corporate identity and leadership, effective relationships with
partner organisations and the ability to respond positively and
confidently to challenges.

Feedback from Partners

17.2 Comments from City partners recognise the positive ways in

which the Council consults and works with them, and in
particular the high calibre of the officers they engage with. They
signal an appetite for cultural change that will create a more
confident, ambitious and proactive organisation that harnesses
the skills and expertise of its partners and empowers its staff to
respond quickly and positively to change. They look to the
Council to provide strong leadership, and anticipate stronger
and more effective partnership working within which service
delivery can be reviewed to secure improvement and reduce
duplication.

Feedback from Trade Unions

17.3 UNISON has indicated broad support for establishing an

efficient, lean management structure, but emphasised a concern
that this should not result in large and unwieldy portfolios within
which there is insufficient management resource for either the
functions or for the front line staff. They would also seek
assurances that the process put in place to achieve the
reduction in numbers will fair and that managers (as with all
staff) will be properly supported with training and development of
management skills so that all managers are able to compete on
an equal footing.



Page 13

Feedback from staff

17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

Options

A large number of responses were received from teams and
individual staff. Many highlighted informed and insightful ideas
for service improvement, streamlining of process and cost
savings. These are being pursued with service managers.

Responses from chief officers indicated broad support for the
principles of the review. Different opinions have been offered on
the number and composition of directorates and the location and
structure of services affected by the proposals, particularly
partnerships, policy, improvement and performance, culture and
the creation of an Adult, Children and Family Services
Directorate. These have been considered in formulating the
options.

Responses indicated a broad support for the design principles.
Some put forward proposals for structural change, but most
prioritised cultural change as the means for securing
organisational and service improvement. Contributors
envisioned a single, customer focused organisation with more
clearly defined and accessible vision and values, improved
communication and a greater willingness and ability to embrace
change. Many anticipated a streamlining of bureaucracy and
processes that would allow for greater efficiency, adaptability
and speed of response, and there was some support for
rationalisation of management structures and greater
empowerment of front line staff in delivering ‘joined-up’ services
to customers.

Broad support was expressed for the creation of a consolidated
support service function and the efficiencies that could accrue
from common policies and processes across the organisation.
Different opinions were expressed about the precise
composition of the function, but there was general agreement
that ‘support’ services needed to be equal partners in
management and development of the business.

18.  The review process described in section two above has produced the
following two options which most clearly satisfy the objectives for
reorganisation set out at section one above.



Page 14

18.1 Option one

The establishment of the following Director posts and Directorate
responsibilities:

i) Director of Customer and Business Support Services

Responsibilities

Council Tax

Housing Benefit

Council Tax Benefit

York Customer Centre

Business Rates

Cashiers

Corporate Finance

Payments

Debtors

Creditors Payroll

Civic, Legal and Democratic Services
Internal Audit

Insurance

Procurement

Fraud

Risk Management

Efficiency

Human Resources

Information Technology and Telephony
Register Office

Indicative net budget £7,640,230 based on figures for 2009/10.
Indicative full time equivalent posts: 775.

ii) Director of Communities and Neighbourhoods

Responsibilities

Housing

Parks & Open Spaces

Libraries & Heritage

Arts & Culture

Voluntary & Community Sector Support
Building Maintenance

Waste Services

Street Scene

Highways infrastructure & maintenance
Parking Services

Neighbourhood Management Team
Environmental Health & Trading Standards
Safe City

Sport and Active Leisure



Page 15

Indicative net budget: £27,318,510 based on figures for 2009/10.
Indicative full time equivalent posts: 601.

iii) Director of Adult, Children and Family Services

Responsibilities

Day Services

Respite Care

Mental Health Services
Integrated Learning

Equipment for People with Disabilities
Care Management & Social Work
Hospital Discharge

Home Care

Residential Care

Fostering & adoption

School Improvement

School Governance

School admissions & attendance
Inclusions (including SEN)
Young People’s Service
Children’s Social Care

Adult & Community Education
Youth Offending Team
Safeguarding & Child Protection
Children’s Trust

Resources & Planning

Early Years & Children’s Centres
Extended Schools

Indicative net budget: £75,015,920 based on figures for 2009/10.
Indicative full time equivalent posts: 1333.

iv) Director of City Strategy

Responsibilities

Land Use Planning

Development Control

Building Control

Conservation and Urban Design
Sustainability and Carbon Reduction
Major Site Development

Land Charges

City Walls Management

Emergency Planning and Business Continuity
Transport Planning

Local Bus Partnership

Highways Safety

Highway Network Strategy & Management



Page 16

Engineering Consultancy

Economic Development

Science City

City Centre Management and Development

Skills Training, Future Prospects, York Training Centre
Tourism and Visitor Info

Property

Waste Strategy

Civil Engineering

Indicative net budget: £22,793,390 based on figures for 2009/10.
Indicative full time equivalent posts: 312.

18.2 Option Two

The establishment of the following Director posts and Directorate
responsibilities:

i) Director of Customer and Business Support Services

Responsibilities

Council Tax

Housing Benefit

Council Tax Benefit

York Customer Centre

Business Rates

Cashiers

Corporate Finance

Payments

Debtors

Creditors Payroll

Civic, Legal and Democratic Services
Internal Audit

Insurance

Procurement

Fraud

Risk Management

Efficiency

Human Resources

Information Technology and Telephony
Register Office

Indicative net budget: £7,640,230 based on figures for 2009/10.
Indicative full time equivalent posts: 775.

ii) Director of Communities and Neighbourhoods

Responsibilities

» Housing
» Parks & Open Spaces



Page 17

Voluntary & Community Sector Support
Civil Engineering

Building Maintenance

Waste Services

Street Scene

Highways infrastructure & maintenance
Parking Services

Neighbourhood Management Team
Environmental Health & Trading Standards
Safe City

Indicative net budget: £19,093,880 based on figures for 2009/10.
Indicative full time equivalent posts: 534.

iii) Director of Health and Wellbeing

Responsibilities

Day Services

Respite Care

Mental Health Services

Integrated Learning

Equipment for People with Disabilities
Care Management & Social Work
Hospital Discharge

Home Care

Residential Care

Indicative net budget: £42,018,040 based on figures for 2009/10.
Indicative full time equivalent posts: 685.

iv) Director of Culture and Children’s Services

Responsibilities

Fostering & adoption

School Improvement

School Governance

School admissions & attendance
Inclusions (including SEN)
Young People’s Service
Children’s Social Care

Adult & Community Education
Sport & Active Leisure

Youth Offending Team
Safeguarding & Child Protection
Children’s Trust

Resources & Planning

Early Years & Children’s Centres
Extended Schools

Arts & Culture

Libraries & Heritage



19.

Page 18

Indicative net budget: £41,222,530 based on figures for 2009/10.
Indicative full time equivalent posts: 709.

Director of City Strategy

Responsibilities

Land Use Planning

Development Control

Building Control

Conservation and Urban Design
Sustainability and Carbon Reduction

Major Site Development

Land Charges

City Walls Management

Emergency Planning and Business Continuity
Transport Planning

Local Bus Partnership

Highways Safety

Highway Network Strategy & Management
Engineering Consultancy

Economic Development

Science City

City Centre Management and Development
Skills Training, Future Prospects, York Training Centre
Tourism and Visitor Info

Property

Waste Strategy

Indicative net budget: 22,793,390 based on figures for 2009/10.
Indicative full time equivalent cost: 312.

In both options the Chief Executive retains responsibility as Head of
Paid Service, Town Clerk, and principal adviser to the Elected
Leadership of the Council. The Chief Executive’s Office would contain
the following functions:

Policy

Equalities

Performance

Partnerships

Research + Consultation
Marketing + Communications
More for York Programme Office

Indicative net budget: £2,916,000 based on figures for 2009/10
Indicative full time equivalent posts: 86.

Arrangements would be made at an appropriate level for management
of the staff in the Chief Executive’s office, drawn from existing staff
resources.



Page 19

Analysis

20.

20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

Option One

Chief Executive and 4 Directors of:

= Customer and Business Support Services
=  Communities and Neighbourhoods

=  Family Services

= City Strategy

This model would establish a small strategic leadership team at officer
level for the City of York Council focussed on the key priorities for the
City over the next decade.

The Customer and Business Support Services Directorate would bring
together support services which are currently devolved across the
Council and provide greater consistency, flexibility of service provision
and efficiency savings. This will be combined with a strengthened focus
on customer service - through redesign of services with customers to
meet their needs, including arrangements for access to services (how
when and where), simplifying processes and getting rid of unnecessary
bureaucracy, setting of customer service standards across the Council
and provision of training for all staff in customer service. This
Directorate will work particularly closely with the Communities and
Neighbourhoods Directorate to ensure that the front line customer
response is followed with effective delivery and close down of issues to
a customer’s satisfaction, avoiding repeat work and duplication of
effort.

The Communities and Neighbourhoods Directorate would bring
together the universal services which respond to and support the daily
needs of communities and neighbourhoods such as refuse collection
street cleansing street lighting parks and grounds maintenance the
Council’s landlord function and housing maintenance as well as leisure
recreation and library facilities. These services play an important part in
the immediate quality of life experienced by residents at a local level. In
addition this Directorate would be responsible for working with partners,
particularly North Yorkshire Police to make communities safe — and
community life strong. Building on the Ward Committee process and
working alongside Tenants Associations this Directorate would work
closely with the Voluntary and Community sector to strengthen
community life.

The Adult Children and Family Services Directorate would bring
together the Adult and Children’s Social Care functions with Education
Support Services, Children’s Trust and Youth support services and
Adult Learning. This would be a large Directorate in budget and staffing
responsibilities. The advantage of bringing these services together is to
make sure that services are planned and delivered for residents in a
way that acknowledges that people do not live in categories marked



20.5

20.6

20.7

20.8

21

211

21.2

Page 20

‘adult’ or ‘child’ — particularly ‘young adults’ who can slip between
service providers at a key moment in their lives.

The key factor influencing children’s or indeed older people’s quality of
life is often the support or otherwise which they receive from family
members. It is not uncommon that one service of the Council is working
with a young person and another with an older relative in the same
family. This proposal would allow for greater co-ordination and more
flexible service provision. This arrangement would also allow for closer
working with the NHS building on the recent work done by both
organisations on the health and social care needs of our communities
‘The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment’. Both organisations would be
able to pool and use budgets more effectively to provide services.
Arrangements for safeguarding of adults and children would be
strengthened through a shared and consistent approach.

A key challenge will be to re model social care and services to adults —
in common with the national picture people in York are living longer and
wish to have more choice and control over services which they receive
and older people will potentially require services for much longer
periods of time.

The services and wider support to schools and for post 16 education,
which are judged to be outstanding, would be maintained.

The Directorate of City Strategy will have responsibility for the economy
and for strategic planning in relation to land use, transport, housing, the
environment and skills as well as bringing forward major schemes and
sites for development. Additionally a number of the functions of the
Directorate would be strengthened viz support for inward investment
and business growth, and work on carbon reduction and sustainability.
A review will be required of the functions in City Strategy and their
management to achieve efficiency savings, in line with the other
Directorates

Option Two
Chief Executive plus 5 Directors of

Customer and Business Support Services
Communities and Neighbourhoods
Health and Wellbeing

Children, Culture and Leisure

City Strategy

Option Two provides for a larger Corporate Management Team and
retains separate Directorates with responsibility for Adult and Children’s
Social Care. The proposals and objectives for the Directorates of
Customer and Business Support Services, Communities and
Neighbourhoods and City Strategy remain as for option one.



21.3

21.4

21.5

21.6

21.7

21.8

21.9

Page 21

The Directorate of Health and Wellbeing would play a key role in
working with the NHS in York to lead on Health Improvement across
the City and to plan for the demographic changes described above —
the increasing number of older people and increasing life expectancy.
This is a major challenge for the City as it is for all local authorities. The
Director would have also a lead responsibility for commissioning across
the social care agendas of the Council, working with the NHS and
seeking opportunities to pool budgets, locate teams together and make
efficiencies. Based on 9/10 figures the Directorate would have a net
budget of just over 42 million and 684 staff.

The Directorate of Children and Culture would be responsible for all
aspects of social care provision for Children, the children’s trust, youth
services, support to schools and education providers, adult learning,
culture and leisure services. The Directorate would have a budget of
41.2 million and 709 staff.

Research on models for local authority senior management team
structures and responsibilities, drawn from 42 high performing ‘4 star’
unitary, metropolitan and London borough councils, suggests that there
is a trend currently towards a reduction in top teams and specifically:
one Directorate which provides support services for the Council, and
two or three customer facing Directorates. There is increased emphasis
on strategic management from a smaller corporate team, increased
emphasis on partnership working and shared commissioning of
services and on moving resources to front line delivery.

Some authorities such as Northumberland, Cheshire East, Hartlepool
and South Tyneside have two externally focussed Directorates,
effectively a Directorate of Place and a Directorate of People. In this
model the Director of Place brings together neighbourhood level
services with the strategic planning functions for the local authority area
as a whole, and the Directorate of People brings together Children’s
Services with Adults and Family Services.

4* Authorities such as East Riding, Stockton on Tees, Ealing, and
Wakefield have brought together Children’s Services and Adult’s
Services but not Neighbourhood and Strategic development services.

Where Adult and Children’s Services are combined it is clear that one
consequence is that the Assistant Director roles within the Directorate
carry significant increased operational responsibilities including
management of multi million pound budgets and large staff groups.

Structures at Assistant Director/Head of Service tier vary widely with no
clear trends, e.g. the smallest number in a sample of 20 for which we
have data is 9 and the largest 33. Evidence suggests that decisions
about the balance between strategic and operational responsibilities at
AD level and local priorities/circumstances dictate the number of third
tier posts.  Directors will take responsibility for determining assistant
director and management structures, subject to further consultation in
phase 2.



Page 22

21.10 As is clear from the outcomes of the consultation process the

21.11

establishment of an effective organisational culture is as important as
the senior management structure and location of services.
Organisational culture is broadly defined as ‘the way we do things
around here’. Central to the culture of high performing councils and
service organisations are the following features:

= a passion for customer service — a highly developed understanding
at all levels of the organisation of the needs of customers;

= strong team working across all parts of the organisation to deliver
shared goals;

= ambition and confidence — constantly looking for ways to deliver
more, of better quality;

= a high level of staff development, performance management and
strong internal communications.

The organisation review will be supported by a programme of
workforce development activity to strengthen these aspects of the
culture of the authority. The revised job profiles for senior managers
will include as essential requirements competence in the key
components of the CYC Business Model. There will be particular
emphasis on: customer insight/service, business process
reengineering, project management, partnership working and a
commitment to fairness and inclusion, in addition to
specialist/technical/professional  expertise, LT  skills, people
management and financial management.

Corporate Priorities

22.

The proposals for the organisation review have been designed to give
greater focus and alignment of services to the priorities of the
community and corporate strategy. The organisation review will
particularly contribute to the creation of an ‘effective organisation’, but
clearly proposals for the Directorate of Communities and
Neighbourhoods, City Strategy and the options in relation to Adult and
Children’s Services will sustain a focus on: a thriving city, a safe city, a
healthy city, a learning city, a sustainable city and a city of culture. A
commitment to inclusion — ensuring equitable access to services and
targeted work to narrow gaps in life chances underpins the work of all
council services.

Implications

Financial

23.

The organisational review has a target net saving of between £1.2.
and £1.6m in 2012/13. In achieving this net saving, the up front costs
relating to the early release of staff will need to be funded through the
in-year savings.



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Page 23

The table below presents an analysis of the savings, early release
costs and investment in organisation development for Options 1 and 2
for the years 2010/11 to 2012/13. In 2012/2013 an in year net saving
off 1.658m is forecast to be achieved from management costs in option
one. In option two an in year net saving of 1.555m is forecast to be
achieved from management costs in 2012/2013.

33K per annum has been identified for the retraining and redeployment
of staff affected through the organisation review.

The full impact of the organisation review is presented — in order that
Executive in approving the Corporate Management Team structure and
responsibilities for consultation is aware of the wider and consequential
implications on Management if the target reduction of between 1.2 and
1.6 m is to be achieved.

As presented the two options represent:

Option One

= deletion of 2 posts of 7 in the Chief Executive and, Director tiers;

= deletion of up to 34 posts of 355 in the assistant director and
management grades of the Council (grades 12, 11 and 10).

» Proportionate reduction in administrative support to senior
management

Option Two

= deletion of 1 post of 7 in the Chief Executive and Director tiers;

= deletion of up to 34 posts of 355 in the assistant director and
management grades of the Council (grades 12, 11 and 10).

» Proportionate reduction in administrative support to senior
management

Indicative costs and savings are shown on the table below:



Page 24
Total Cumulative
1011 1112 12{13 Savings
£ £ £ £
Option 1
2 Posts C¥, Director 261,790 261,790 261,790 785,370
LIp to 34 Posts Assistant Director, Grade10-12 518 500 1918 500 2,437,000
Reduction in Administrative Support 43,100 112,780 112,780 268, 660

Option 2

1 Posts Cx, Director 130,900 130,200 130,900 392, 700
p to 34 Posts Assistant Director, Grade10-12 518 500 1913 500 2,437,000
Reduction in Administrative Support 21,550 91 230 91,230 204 00

One-off Investment Costs required to deliver On-going Savings

Option 1

Re-training and Re-deployment Costs 33,000 33,000 33,000
Early Release Costs 137,360 237 575 523 609
Option 2

Re-training and Re-deployment Costs 33,000 33,000 33,000
Early Release Costs GE 260 208 D04 494 033

29.  The following assumptions have been made in developing the financial
model above:-

» all Pension costs have been charged over the maximum 5 year
period;

» redundancy costs are an assumed full charge in the year the person
is released from the post;

= a provision of £100k has been set aside from the savings over 3
years in order to fund retraining and redeployment.

» That a vacancy freeze will immediately apply to posts at grade 10
and above which will only be released for recruitment subject to a
business case approved at senior management level.



Page 25

The one-off investment costs will continue to fall out beyond 2012/13 as a
result of the decision to charge pension costs over the maximum 5 year
period.

Human Resources (HR)

30.

31.

The HR/staffing implications arising from the proposals described in the
report above will be managed in accordance with established
Council/Chief Officer procedures for change management. The
extensive consultation activities outlined in the document, represent a
key part of this process. The individuals potentially affected by these
proposals — senior management and P.As to senior management have
been consulted with as part of the process. Additionally, the statutory
requirements for Children and Adult Services outlined in Option 1, give
rise to potential implications for salaries, grades and job descriptions at
the second tier within the Family Services directorate. These would
have to be taken into account if Option 1 were selected.

Numbers of staff for each of the new Directorates is contained in the
table below.

Current Headcount as at 20/11/09

Chief Execs 207
Neighbourhoods 991
City Strategy 316
Resources 280
LCCS 1385
HASS 1186
Grand total 4365

Current Full time equivalent posts as at 20/11/09

Chief Execs 181
Neighbourhoods 734
City Strategy 270
Resources 253
LCCS 795
HASS 874
Grand total 3107

Option 1 Headcounts as at 20/11/09

Adult, Children and Family Services 2151
Chief Executives 94
City Strategy 330
Communities & Neighbourhoods 710
Customer & Business Support Services 1080

Grand Total 4365



Page 26

Option 1 FTEs as at 20/11/09

Adult, Children and Family Services 1333
Chief Executives 86
City Strategy 312
Communities & Neighbourhoods 601
Customer & Business Support Services 775
Grand Total 3107

Option 2 Headcount as at 20/11/09

Chief Executives 94
Children’s Services 1312
City Strategy 330
Communities & Neighbourhoods 586
Customer & Business Support Services 1080
Director of Health 957
Grand total 4359

Option 2 FTEs as at 20/11/09

Chief Executives 86
Children’s Services 709
City Strategy 312
Communities & Neighbourhoods 534
Customer & Business Support Services 775
Director of Health 685
Grand total 3101
Equalities

32. The Organisation Review has been shaped around a commitment to
fairness and inclusion — the Council’s stated commitment to leave no
resident and no community behind in access to opportunity and access
to appropriate services. The implementation of the Review will comply
with all relevant Equalities and Employment legislation. The redrafting
of senior management job descriptions will include a core competence
in relation to fairness and inclusion.

Legal

33. There are a number of statutory senior officer posts affected by this
review and it is important that the authority ensures that any
organisational changes take this into account both structurally and in
the drafting of management responsibilities.

34. The Council is required to have a s151 officer and a monitoring officer
as well as a Director of Children's Services and a Director of Adult
Services. The authority is also required to have a head of paid service
who is usually (and is in fact in York) the Chief Executive. The Head of
Paid service is required by s4 Local Government and Housing Act 1989
and has overall responsibility for the carrying out of the authority's



35.

36.

37.

38.

Page 27

functions, the number and grades of staff required to carry out those
functions and the appropriate manner in which those staff are
organised.

The s151 officer is governed by the Local Government Act 1972 which
requires the authority to ensure that one of their officers has
responsibility for the administration of the authority's financial affairs.
This is linked to s113 Local Government Finance Act 1988 which
provides that the holder of such a post has to be a member of specified
accountancy bodies. s114 of that Act also places personal duties on
that officer in respect of cases of actual or anticipated financial
misconduct. There is nothing in the legislation which specifies at what
level the s151 officer should be appointed although it is obvious that
the post holder needs to hold sufficient authority to carry out their
responsibilities.

The monitoring officer post is governed by s5 Local Government and
Housing Act 1989. This requires every authority to designate one of its
officers as monitoring Officer in order to carry out a range of functions
under the Act. these are largely related to personal duties in relation to
cases of actual or anticipated maladministration and responsibility for
the Standards regime. There is no qualification requirement save that
the monitoring officer cannot be the head of paid service. There is
nothing in the legislation which specifies at what level the monitoring
officer should be appointed although it is obvious that the post holder
needs to hold sufficient authority to carry out their responsibilities.

The Local Authority Social Services Act 1970 (LASSA) was amended
by the Children Act 2004 to require local authorities to appoint 'an
officer' to be known as the Director of Adult Social Services at the
same time as they appointed 'an officer' to be known as the Director of
Children's Services. The statutory guidance underpinning these
appointments states that these posts are to be statutory Chief Officers
with accountability for their respective areas. The Guidance is issued
under s7 LASSA and as such means that the authority would have to
have very good reason for choosing to ignore that guidance. Both posts
have to be directly accountable to the Chief Executive and be of equal
status. Option 1 in this report proposes bringing together adult and
children's social care. The implication of this is that the two statutory
Director posts would need to report into the overall director and have a
reporting line as well to the Chief Executive. Option 2 could mean that
these statutory responsibilities were held at council (as opposed to
statutory) director level. There are no qualification requirements for
either of these posts.

In discussing these proposals, members need to ensure that they do
not discuss the individuals concerned but focus on the posts within the
existing and proposed structures.

Crime and Disorder

38.

No implications



Page 28

Information Technology (IT)

39.

No implications

Property

40.

Other

41.

No implications.

No implications

Risk Management

42.

As with any significant reorganisation a risk is that the energies and
focus of services and staff are distracted and uncertainty undermines
morale. For that reason effective management of the change process
is essential, with priority given to frequent communication throughout
the organisation, support and guidance for staff affected by the change
process, use of agreed procedures for the management of change and
whilst taking sufficient time to ensure the changes are properly planned
for moving at a pace to provide certainty for staff. Reduction in
management posts will be challenging and put additional demands on
staff unless a thorough review is undertaken of internal operations to
ensure all non essential processes are minimised. As ever close
attention will be paid to the performance of the organisation through
this period to ensure early action on any issues which arise.

Recommendations

43.

Members are asked to:

(a) Adopt Option One as the preferred senior management structure of
the City of York Council and to create the posts of:

Director of Customer and Business Support Services

Director of Communities and Neighbourhoods

Director of Adult, Children and Family Services and to retain the post of
Director of City Strategy with the revised responsibilities outlined in the
report.

This Option is best suited to the needs of the City of York Council at
this time as it provides for:

e increased focus on customer service

e greater responsiveness to the needs of communities and
neighbourhoods

e strengthened contribution from the Council to economic
development for the City

e greater co-ordination and consistency in work with adults and
children, increased opportunities for partnership working and



Page 29

commissioning with the health sector on health and social care
provision and work on overlapping agendas for adult and children’s
services such as 14-19 education.

e A small senior leadership team with the greater part of the
management resource involved in direct service delivery

(b) Approve the financial investment required to release the savings as
outlined in table one at para 28.

(c) Refer this report to a meeting of the Staffing and Urgency
Committee for due consideration.

(d) Instruct officers to make all necessary arrangements for
implementation of the proposed senior management structure of
CYC using the agreed processes and frameworks of CYC for such
matters.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Kersten England Kersten England
Chief Executive Chief Executive



Page 30

Background Papers:

Executive report 20th October — More for York Blueprints
Executive report 7™ July — Effective Organisation Programme, Efficiency
Review

City of York Council Business Model,

City of York Council Corporate Strategy

Medium Term Financial Strategy

Annual Audit and Inspection letter 2009

CPA Corporate Assessment 2008

CPA Direction of Travel Statement 2008

Staff Survey results

Place Survey

Annexes

Annex 1 CYC Current and Proposed Structure
Annex 2 Consultation meetings



Page 31

Organisation Review

Annex 1 - CYC Current and Proposed Structure

CYC Current Structure

5

EITY DOF

YORK

COUNCIL

Council directorates

Clty Strategy

Learning, Culture and

Children’s Services

= Schoal improverment u Parksand open spaces # Land us planning L] SU;ﬁi:ipab”n)' and carbon
w School govemnance u Vouth offending tzam ® Lol Area Agreements Lre ul ;::T sen &
® Schoolsadmissionsand = Safeguardingand child u Development contrel " 'u\?iﬁmtwealgéc it
attendance protection # Euilding control
Fegional and key citi d
= Inclusion finclhuding w Children's Trust ® Conservationand - glona. A ey RS anenca
Special Educational || Pl il urban design u Economic development
Heads) planning Chief Bxecutive’s & Major site developrment = Science City
= Young people’s sarvice & Early Yearsand s Land charges u City centre management and
w Childen'ssecial are Children's Centres u City walls management development
i E lanni d
services . a Extended shods & Toiio dhinming " hrnelrgencyp anning an
® Aduland community ’ f o . . usiness continuity
5 u Fostering, adoptionand u Civic, democraticand legal services # Local bus partnerships ¥ =
education young peoples " pien u Skills training, Future
» Libraries and heritage residential care e r&ou.rr_es = Enginesiing consultancy Prespects, York Training
w Artsand culture ™. Popy nices ® Highway safety Ceatre
s Marketing and communications 5 Highway network srats u  Tourism and visitar
® Sportand active leisure o 19 iy a¥ : :
u Equalities and management information
u Payroll n Waste treatment stratagy
Housing and Adult
Social Services
Nelghbourhood Services
# Housing landlord Diay services
services FRespite care 2 = . :
& Homelessness sevicss o pantal health services i Erinlrarimiitil sErcis n Finandial services = Auditand nskr.nanagement
= Grants and adaptations {led by Selby and York = Waste sendces * Corporate finance + Intemal audit
® Warden call and Frimary Care Trust) » StreetScens o Paybrmnoents B N
shelteredfaxtra care Integrated leaming » Highways infrastructure and maintznance w1 s b
housing diﬁbili‘lér':aam: (sacial & Parking services » Creditors - ;.ra:d 2
C tand care and health) ) ) e p = Risk managemen
o S;r?aﬂ::ff:_l";:g: Equipment for peaple »  Neighbourhoods and community safety = Publlcselrrlces » Performance management
w Hospital discharge with disabilities » Meighbourhood management team = L;loun::l t;x o » Information management
H « Environmental health and trading standards o TRRSMERE » Policy development
= or.ne GTE {includes emvironmental protection unit, animal - CUU_“'-"h“ benefit » Corporate planning
» Residential care health, food safety and standands, corsumer = Businessrates » Efficiency
advics, pest contrad, health and safety, « Cashiers
bereavement services) » York Custorner Centre (YCC) ® |n;°"';'151i0|'l Technalogy and
» Sale city Telephony (T}
» RegisterOffic

m Licendng and regulation

® Construction
= Civil enginezring
& Building maintenance



Page 32



Option 1 o |
i Organisation Review
Land Use Planning
Day Services Development Control
Respite Care Building Control
Adult, Children & Mental Health Services Consgrvat_pn and Urban Design .
Family Services Integrated Learning Sustainability and Carbon Reduction
Equipment for People with| Waste Strategy Maior Site Develobment
Care Management Disabilities ajo e Developme Ci
Land Charges Ly

Fostering & & Social Work City Walls Management Strategy
adoptiong Hospital Discharge Customer & Business & E
Home Care Support Services Emergency Planning and

School Improvement ReslEnE. G2 Business Continuity

School Governance
School admissions &
attendance

Inclusions (including SEN)
Young People’s Service
Children’s Social Care
Adult & Community
Education

Internal Audit Human Resources

Transport Planning
Local Bus Partnership
Highways Safety
Highway Network Strategy &
Management

Engineering Consultancy

Insurance  Procurement Information Technology and Telephony

Risk Management Register Office

Chief Executive’s Office

Effici
iciency Equalities Performance

Marketing and Communications Policy
More for York Programme office Partnerships

Fraud Economic Development
Science City

City Centre Management and
Development

Skills Training, Future

Prospects & York Training

Youth Offending Team
Safeguarding & Child
Protection

Children’s Trust
Resources & Planning

Council Tax
Housing Benefit
Council Tax Benefit

Civic, Legal and Democratic Services

; ; York Customer Centre Corporate Finance Centre N
Eae:}[/rzsears & Children’s Business Rates Payments Tourism and Visitor Info
Cashiers Debtors Property

Civil Engineering

Extended Schools Creditors Payroll

Licensing & Regulation Neighbourhood

Housing Management Team
Parks & Open Spaces Communities & Neighbourhoods Environmental Health &
Libraries & Heritage Trading Standards
Arts & Culture Fleet . Safe C|ty. .
Voluntary & Community Sector Support Waste Services Sport & Active Leisure
Street Scene
Building Maintenance Highways infrastructure & maintenance

Parking Services

cg abed



Option 2

City Organisation Review

Land Use Planning Strategy

Development Control
Building Control

ajor Site Development Conservation and Urban Design
Land Charges Sustainability and Carbon Reduction

City Walls Management Emergency Planning and

Waste Strategy Business Continuit

Children & Culture~_ ' roPerty

Customer & Business

Economic Development

Science City

City Centre Management

and Development

Civil Engineering  Skills Training,

Future Prospects & York
Training Centre

Tourism and Visitor Info

Extended Schools

Support Services

Transport Planning

School Improvement
School Governance
School admissions &
attendance

Inclusions (including SEN)
Young People’s Service

Internal Audit

Insurance Procurement

Risk Management

Human Resources
Information Technology and Telephony

Chief Executive’s Office

Local Bus Partnership
Highways Safety

Highway Network Strategy &
Management

Engineering Consultancy

Register Office

Children’s Social Care
Adult & Community
Education

Sport & Active Leisure
Youth Offending Team
Safeguarding & Child
Protection Fostering &
Children’s Trust agoption
Resources & Planning

Early Years & Children’s
Centres

Libraries & Heritage
Arts & Culture

Efficiency Equalities

Fraud

Council Tax
Housing Benefit
Council Tax Benefit
York Customer Centre
Business Rates
Cashiers

Housing Communities & Neighbourhoods Environmental Health &

Marketing and Communications Policy
More for York Programme office Partnerships

Health & Wellbeing

Performance )
Day Services

Respite Care

Mental Health Services
Integrated Learning
Equipment for People with
Disabilities

Civic, Legal and Democratic Services

Care Management

Corporate Finance & Social Work
Payments Hospital Discharge
Debtors Home Care

Creditors Payroll Residential Care

Neighbourhood
Management Team

Parks & Open Spaces
Voluntary & Community Sector Support

Licensing & Regulation

Building Maintenance

Trading Standards
Safe City
Waste Services Fleet
Street Scene
Highways infrastructure & maintenance
Parking Services

¢ abed



Page 35

Annex 2 - People/Organisations who responded to the consultation process

CliIr Scott — Leader of the Labour Group
CliIr Gillies — Leader of the Conservative Group
Clir D’Agorne — Leader of the Green Group
Labour Group

Corporate Leadership Group

Senior Manager’s Group x 3

CLG PA’s

Staff events x 3

Corporate JCC

John Kinsella, Unison

Heather McKenzie, Unison

John Kirk, GMB

Audit Commission

Care Quality Commission

Ofsted

LSP Chair

York and North Yorkshire PCT

North Yorkshire Police

York St John University

CPP



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37 Agenda ltem 7

Executive 15" December 2009

Report of the Corporate Management Team

MoreforYork Update — Income Collection and Sustainability Review
Summary

1. This report sets out a general update on work on the 8 agreed moreforYork
workstreams, provides a review of the sustainability impacts of the programme, sets
out further proposals for member decision regarding the provision of community based
cash collection and proposes commencement of 2 further blueprints, for inclusion in
the programme.

Background

2. The moreforYork Programme has been established to transform City of York Council
into a more effective organisation that delivers

. More for our customers
- More for our employees

- More for our money

3. The scope of the programme was agreed by Executive in July 09 and in October 09
Executive agreed the detailed proposals for 8 of the 10 workstreams. Two further
blueprints are presented on this agenda (Organisation Review and Adult Social Care).

4. This report provides
Section 1 — An update on progress made on each of the 8 agreed blueprints
Section 2 — A review of the Sustainability impacts of the programme
Section 3 — Further detailed proposals for community based income collection
Section 4 — A summary of 2 additional recommended Blueprints
Section 1 — Progress report
Programme Office

5. These 8 blueprints were agreed by members on October 20" 2009 and
implementation work began immediately. Detailed plans are being drawn up for each



Housing

9.

Page 38

workstream with an overall Programme Plan outlining the dependencies between
streams, and detailing the supporting workstreams such as IT HR and Finance. This is
supplemented by directorate views of the plan setting out directorate specific
workstreams and the impact of cross-cutting workstreams which enable each
directorate to plan and co-ordinate their programme effort. Risk and Issue Logs, and
mechanisms for tracking financial and performance benefits have also been
developed.

Equalities Impact Assessments (EIAs) have been carried out for initiatives which will
impact in the current financial year and feedback has been incorporated into relevant
workstreams e.g. Provision of recycling containers. Further EIA events are planned to
gain valuable input into all initiatives.

Consultation with staff and unions has commenced both at Joint Consultative
Committees and directly with affected groups of staff.

Below are some of the highlights of this early work in each stream which may be of
interest to members. This does not attempt to set out a comprehensive assessment of
progress. This will be done in a milestone review in the next moreforYork Update
report in the early Spring

Good progress has been made and early savings have been identified from the Gas
Maintenance area and from a deal to allow the University to source material from
Jewsons via the Eco Depot. Productivity improvements have been achieved and a pilot
of mobile working in Housing Repairs will commence in the New Year. A solution will
shortly be procured for tracking vehicles to enable improved and more cost effective
work allocation to teams working in the field.

Neighbourhood Services

10.

11.

12.

13.

Waste and Neighbourhood Pride service - Major is work ongoing in order to optimise
utilisation of waste and Neighbourhood crews and vehicles. A pilot of mobile
technology will support the business in December and January. The provision of new
containers is now being achieved in 5 days (down from 10 days). Recycling is now
rolled out to 91% of the city.

Customer Services — Work is ongoing to streamline income collection in parking. Work
is in progress to improve the end to end process, including major improvements to the
YCC in April next year. This will make contact easier for the customer and will provide
the necessary information to allow NS to continually and significantly improve the
levels of service.

Highways - Work is ongoing on Highways maintenance contracts to enable them to
work smarter with suppliers and neighbouring authorities.

Fleet and Transport - Significant ongoing savings of £176k have already been realised
in the general running of the Neighbourhood'’s fleet, including renegotiation of the tyre
contract.



Page 39

Customer Services

14.

15.

Resource analysis has been carried out to determine the optimum resource required
in the York Customer Centre, resulting in the introduction of part-time working. All staff
have been assessed for capability and performance, and team leaders have been
coached in performance management.

A new face-to-face manager has been appointed. Work to co-locate city centre
receptions in 9 St Leonard’s and the City Finance Centre is ongoing and customers
are being consulted as part of the Budget consultation.

Income Collection

16. Work on the Top 30 commercial debtors is now complete, and £248k has either been
paid or written off. £162k remains outstanding and is now being pursued aggressively.

17. The Single Person Discount review, matching council tax records for people claiming
Single person discount with credit references to assess whether their claim is
legitimate, has so far resulted in an increase in Council Tax collection of £237k.

Procurement

18. A reduction in the use of first-class mail and the sending of all second class mail by
TNT is expected to produce a saving of £90k with no reduction in service.

19. Changes to the authority’s telephone tariff have been implemented and are expected
to realise £35k of savings.

20. 67 contracts with a value of £24m have been identified as due for renewal before the
end of the current financial year. The Head of Procurement is talking to each of the
directorates to confirm the details and determine how best to progress.

21. Many anticipated quick win contracts have been identified including glazing, agency
staffing, photocopiers and stationery. Benefits from improved arrangements can be
anticipated this year.

ICT

22. Savings of £14.5k have been achieved by the switch to BT One Bill.

23. Briefings with all of the staff likely to be affected have been held. Team members have
also attended all DMTs, and agreed a plan for consolidation of teams and a list of staff
to be included.

24. Multifunctional devices, which are to replace the current printers photocopiers and
scanners, have been installed in 4 Museum Street and the Office of the Future, and
their usage is being monitored.

25. An audit of all desktop hardware is almost complete, and the audit of the Microsoft

licences will be complete by the end of the year.



Page 40

Property

26. Activity to date has concentrated on stakeholder engagement across CYC and
obtaining input and buy-in to the detailed planning activity.

27. Two papers will go to Executive for approval in the New Year: A Review of the
Commercial Portfolio and The Establishment of a Strategic Asset Management Board.
Benefits from these are anticipated in 2010/11.

HR

28. The e-recruitment system went live on 18™ November, and to date there have been 21
applications submitted electronically. There have been 5270 hits on the site, with 260
people registering as users.

29. In November the HR Admin teams for Chief Executives, Learning Culture & Children’s

Services, Housing and Adult Social Care and the Recruitment Pool were co-located in
Mill House, as the first stage in the formation of the HR Business Support Centre.

Section 2 — Sustainability Review

30.

31.

32.

The moreforYork Transformation Programme is built upon three key themes: More for
our Customers, More for our Employees, More for our Money. Sustainability is an
integral part of the initiatives within all of these themes. As a result of this the
effectiveness of sustainability improvements will be a determining factor in the success
of the programme.

Our customers and staff not only recognise the importance of sustainability but insist
on CYC actively improving the sustainable environment. Whilst these views are
sufficient in their own right to promote sustainability within the programme, it makes
sound financial sense to deliver efficiencies in a sustainable way. Thereby the
utilisation of new technology, processes and structures will enable us to provide our
services more effectively and with less resources today and reduce potential negative
impacts / costs in the future.

The More for York Programme team have joined the Carbon Management Programme
Core Team to ensure that the realisation of benefits is consistent with the Carbon
Management Programme and that no double counting of any emissions reduction or
cost saving takes place.

Approach to Realising Sustainable Benefits.

33.

34.

Blueprint Development - During the development of the respective blueprints we
ensured that the focus of benefit identification was not solely financial savings. Benefits
for our customers, staff and the environment were given importance. Sustainable
Initiatives or initiatives which had associated sustainable benefits were captured.
Likewise any initiatives with negative impact were identified and mitigation sought. For
example by tracking our vehicles we will gain efficiency through improved utilisation
and this will ensure overall fleet emissions will reduce. We will be able to provide
accurate data regarding emissions to prove this benefit.

Profiling Benefits - Part of the blueprinting process involved the development of
Individual Benefit Profiles. Benefits have been grouped into six strands, which links in
with CYC’s Sustainability Impact Assessment criteria:



35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

Page 41

Natural & Built Environment
Climate Change

Transport

Economy

Social

Housing

Sustainability Impact Assessments (SlAs) for each workstream and the overall
Programme have been compiled. SIAs for the moreforYork Programme are attached.
at Annex 1.

Measurement - In order to measure the success of any initiative it is imperative to be
able to monitor improvements and quickly identify failings to be rectified. Whilst drafting
individual benefit profiles, indicators are identified to enable effective measurement.
Often these indicators are easy to identify i.e. reduced spend can be measured by
normal accounting processes. However softer benefits may not be so self evident or
be suitable to be measured numerically. We are corporately reviewing the indicators
currently in use across CYC so as to avoid duplication of effort and employ best fit.
From this we can identify any gaps in data collection and plan how to measure benefits
and collate data.

Baselining data - Once suitable Indicators have been established it will be necessary
to baseline data to be able to measure performance and update profiles. Where there
is not data available it will need to be established and maintained.

Monitoring — We will use the existing benefits realisation process to track the
achievement of sustainability benefits as they are one type of benefit. The individual
profile will explain the particular process to collate data and from what source
(corporate or directorate performance data, data collected by a partner organisation
such as North Yorkshire Police, or if we will have to collect the data

Collate, Monitor & Report We will update Benefit Realisation Plans with data as it is
made available and undertake ongoing reviews of progress & identify how to maximise
benefit the sustainability impact of the work we do.

Future Development of Sustainability Improvement Initiatives will be picked up as
part of the Staff Suggestion Scheme which moreforYork is currently drafting.

Overview of Sustainability Impact — from our initial work the moreforYork
Programme is likely to have a very positive impact upon :-

e The quality of the built environment and the cultural heritage of York,
preserving the character and setting of the historic city of York — improved
waste collection and grounds maintenance will improve standards of cleanliness
across the city. The introduction of generic operatives will ensure litter & waste is
removed in quicker timescales. The introduction of a comprehensive Facilities
Management function will ensure an effective planned maintenance programme for
CYC buildings

« Climate change by reducing greenhouse gas emissions such as C02 -
Reduction in usage of vehicles (reduced numbers & promoting shared use) will
reduce CO2 emissions. Also planned Street Lighting Controls will ensure that CO2



Page 42

emissions reduce, this will be underlined by a review of the street lighting
procurement specification. Using a better type of tyre on vehicles will reduce fuel
consumption, have a longer lifespan and hence reduce CO2 emissions. Dynamic
scheduling of work and mobile working, improved quality (less rework), less
inspections (get right first time), utilisation of multi skilled workers, vehicle tracking
will all reduce CO2. The re-provision of a Data Centre will use less servers,
rationalisation of printers, bulk printing, desktop and mobile devices will all reduce
carbon emissions. Increased contact options and introducing Single Point of
Contact for customers (& extending contact times) will reduce the need for
customers to visit CYC offices. Better procurement will ensure the sustainability
compliance of suppliers.

e Reduced waste generation and increased levels of reuse and recycling —
Provision of 3 containers for recycling will improve recycling usage. Trader Waste
Audits will identify leakage into the domestic waste stream and ensure it is dealt
with effectively. Rationalisation of Printer Services & Managed Print will reduce
paper usage by 50% after three years and increase recycling of waste. Improved
Procurement processes will reduce the number of goods purchased.

e Reduced air, land and water pollution - Improved use of the CYC fleet and
reduced customer travel will reduce air pollution. Improved facilities management
in CYC buildings will also contribute to reduced CO2 emissions.

e Prudent and efficient use of energy, water and other natural resources -
Through reduced travel for customers, reduced use of CYC fleet of vehicles,
reduced energy utilisation by computers and printers and better compliance with
CYC policies of our suppliers and more sustainable goods and services procured
e.g. recycled paper.

o Safety and security for people and property — The introduction of a Health &
Safety Asset Manager system will improve safety precautions. The introduction of
Street Lighting controls will improve safety & security to both. By providing effective
Soft FM measures i.e. fire prevention, security services, bacteria testing, health
and safety standards in CYC buildings will improve. Better procurement will ensure
suppliers comply with CYC H&S standards.

« Reduce inequality and embrace diversity — Consistency of advice and utilisation
of best practice throughout CYC will impact on CYC staff. Services will be
designed & maintained around the customer and their changing needs.

Section 3 — Income Collection - Proposal to extend the external payment
service.

42.

This report sets out a proposal for members’ consideration to move from the current
city centre single cash payment facility to an externally provided facility based in local
shops and post offices. This would mean extending the scope of the Allpay bill
payment contract currently used to collect rental income, to include all cash payments
due to the council. The contract is operated through the Northern Housing Consortium
and is due to be retendered prior to July 2010. This solution reflects the practice
already implemented in many other councils (for example Newcastle City, Wakefield,
Bolton and Haringey Councils).



43.

Page 43

Implementation of this proposal would result in local post offices and small retailers
handling up to 194,000 cash payments annually, on behalf of the council. The Banking
Hall at City Finance Centre, would no longer be handling cash payments, freeing up
the accommodation to be used to provide integrated face to face services to customers
in preparation for the move to new Head quarters in 2012. This proposal will contribute
£125k pa to the moreforYork Efficiency Programme in 2010/11.

Background

44,

45.

46.

On 20th October, Executive agreed a series of blueprints relating to the moreforYork
Programme. The Income Collection blueprint set out proposals to explore the most
cost effective methods for maximising income collection. Amongst these proposals
was a recommendation to consider the merits of moving away from cash collection in
council offices to an alternative community based method. Executive agreed the
Income Collection blueprint and requested a further paper on cash collection following
discussions with the Post Office.

The council has long understood the benefits of introducing more convenient and cost
effective payment methods for its customers. In 2006, Executive agreed to the
introduction of a phone based bill payment service via the York Contact Centre. In
2007 the council established an on-line payment facility through its website. Both of
these changes have provided the public with an alternative payment method to cash
and account for approximately 40,000 transactions per year. In 2007, it was reported to
Executive that £72k per annum had been realised from administrative budgets through
the efficiencies achieved by the introduction of telephone and on-line payments.

There are, however, customers who have limited access to banking facilities and
cannot take advantage of direct debit and card based payment facilities. Also there are
customers, mainly older people, who prefer to pay their bills in cash. The council
currently offers a cashiering facility at the Banking Hall at City Finance Centre for these
customers. This service handles around 82,000 cash payments a year. The majority of
cash payments received relate to Council Tax and a more detailed breakdown can be
found at Annex 2. In addition to the services provided from the Banking Hall, cash
payments are accepted at the reception and parking offices at 9 St Leonard’s. Cash
payments are also received at Kings Court, Mill House and Acomb. The provision of
bill payment services via cashiers is an expensive option for an organisation both in
terms of the cost of staff to perform the transaction, but also the administration
associated with counting/sorting large amounts of banknotes and coins that need to be
processed and banked. Additionally there are quite significant costs incurred through
the provision of CCTV and the secure transfer of cash to and from the bank. Taking all
of these elements into account the cost per transaction through CYC cashiers at the
Banking Hall is £1.52. The cost via the web and phone is estimated to be around 30p
per transaction.

Proposal

47.

Aside from the primary objective to improve efficiency, a key principle of the
moreforYork Programme is to provide more convenience for customers through
extended hours of service and more ways to access, enquire and pay for services. In
addition, the Programme is also looking to increase the opportunity for services to be
delivered in the community. The current payment arrangements do not support these
principles and require customers who have no banking facilities to travel into the centre
of York to pay their council bills. Therefore a combination of the relatively high



48.

49.

50.

51.

Page 44

transaction cost and lack of convenience has prompted a review of how cash
payments should be handled.

Many other local authorities are now moving away from the direct provision of bill
payment services to specialist bill payment providers such as the Post Office and
Allpay. Allpay offer the facility for customers to pay bills through nominated retailers
and any post office, with unit transaction costs of 42p and 47p respectively.
Experience of our own Housing service (see below) and other local authorities who
have moved to providers such as Allpay indicate that not only is it successful in terms
of cash collection, but that it also proves popular with customers.

In 2006, Executive agreed to the introduction of the Allpay service to allow council
tenants to pay their rent at outlets across the city. The feedback from tenants has been
that the change was welcome and the service is popular and convenient. Since its
introduction, the majority of Housing cash payments are made through this route. Over
£25k rent money is taken every weekend, indicating that there is significant demand
for weekend services. Additionally the service has improved the collection of rent and
rent arrears year on year since the service was introduced. In part, it is considered that
the convenience associated with Allpay has supported the improved cash collection in
Housing Services.

A limited survey has been carried out to understand whether those who travel into the
city centre to use the Banking Hall do so because they also want to access other
council services. Overall, we believe that customers are in the main, simply paying a
bill. Very few of those sampled intended to visit other reception areas. Customers have
also been consulted about their preferences in terms of services within the new HQ. Of
the 1654 responses only 19 or 1.14% wanted a cash office or bill payment facility and
6 or 0.36% wanted cash machines/bank facilities.

Given the positive experience with Housing, learning from other local authorities and
our understanding of our customer base, we believe that these proposals will allow
customers more choice about where they pay their council bills using cash. It is
recommended that the current facility for customers to pay bills at the Banking Hall be
replaced by a network of retail and Post Office outlets through the Allpay facility.
Customers will have a greater choice to pay their bills at 68 retailers and 43 post
offices spread around the York Area, many of which open longer hours than currently
available at the Banking Hall. A full list of Allpay outlets and locations is attached at
Annex 2. Naturally the council will continue to take positive action to encourage
customers to pay by even more cost effective and convenient ways such as Direct
Debit, Web based automated payments and telephone payments through our
customer services contact centre (the YCC).

How does it work?

52.

The Allpay service operates on the basis of providing customers with a payment card
that they take along to a post office or retailer. The card contains details about the
customer that are provided, securely, by the council. This information is encoded into
the card by Allpay and allows the cash payment to be credited to the council’s bank
account. If a customer loses their card, a replacement can be issued within 5 days on
request. The card can only be used to credit their CYC account. Some Housing
customers already have a card for their rent account and also one for their electricity
payments. As the cards are branded, it is obvious to the customer which card relates
to what creditor. From the council’s perspective, payments are received within 24



53.

Page 45

hours into our bank account which means that there is no adverse impact on our cash
flow.

It is proposed that there would be a ‘roll-out’ of cards over several months. The council
services that currently attract large volumes of cash payments such as Council Tax
would be targeted first. The extension of the Allpay service would be supported
through an extensive marketing campaign in post offices and small retailers and would
be paid for by Allpay. The council would use opportunities such as the annual issue of
Council Tax bills to also market the service.

Residual Service

54.

It is proposed that payments would still be accepted at reception areas at St Leonard’s
for the period up until the move to a new HQ. However it is expected that customers
will take advantage of the facilities offered elsewhere and the numbers of cash
transactions will significantly reduce. Our plans suggest that by April/May 2010 there
will be sufficient capacity at the reception areas at 9 St Leonard’s to allow residual
cash payments to be handled there and the Banking Hall will close. At that point it is
expected that a modest refurbishment of the Banking Hall will allow Housing
Options/Advice to be provided from there. Consideration is being given to the provision
of Automated Payment machines to supplement the reduced cashier service.

Post Office/Retailer Impact

55.

Changing demographics over recent years have seen local and neighbourhood
shopping centres facing an uncertain future. The move to Allpay payments through
local retailers and post offices will contribute to their sustainability and encourage wider
use of post offices and other businesses. Officers recently met with the Post Office to
discuss this proposal. They are very keen to work in partnership with the council and
believe that Allpay is the best channel for Council Tax and Sundry Debtor accounts.

Link to Customer Service Blueprint

56.

On 20th October, Executive also agreed the proposals contained in the Customer
Services Blueprint document. One of the key initiatives here was to consolidate all
customer facing activities at the reception areas in St Leonard’s. This consolidation is
dependent upon the overall reduction in cashiering to a level that can be managed
from within spare capacity at 9 St Leonard’s. In future, the maijority of residual cash
transactions will be managed through the secure Parking reception area.

Conclusion

S7.

The provision of the current cashier service is both costly and inefficient. Cash is
expensive to process, with especially high bank charges for coin. For customers who
currently pay their bills by cash, we currently only offer one facility through which to
pay, meaning a trip into York city centre. The extension of the Allpay bill payment
service to Council Tax and Sundry Debtors will not only significantly reduce costs, but
will offer customers more choice about where they pay.

Risk Management

58.

Two key risks have been considered. The first relates to the risk that less income will
be collected as a result of this change. It is not considered that this is a serious risk.
Evidence from other local authorities suggests that the provision of more payment



59.

60.

61.

Page 46

outlets actually increases the amount collected. From our limited experience at CYC
with Housing Services, there was an increase in the collection rates and that has been
maintained since the move to Allpay. It has proved particularly effective in terms of the
collection of rent arrears. Naturally this will be reviewed on a monthly basis should
Executive agree the proposals in this paper. The second risk has related to the
procurement approach. The original contract was procured for Housing Services.
Having discussed it with procurement experts and legal services, we are content that
the contract we have allows for an extension to other council services.

In addition to the above this proposal will raise additional risks, which will be managed
by the Customer Services project team:

Staff morale may be affected by the proposal to move to an external bill payment
method. The impact will be mitigated by reducing the impact on staff where possible
through effective vacancy management, redeployment, training and turnover. An
effective communication plan will also ensure that staff are kept informed about any
changes impacting on them.

Some customers will inevitably be uncomfortable with the changes to service
provision, which may result in some reputational damage. This risk will be mitigated
through a positive marketing and communications exercise stressing the positive
elements of the change (increase in customer choice and reduced costs to the council
tax payer). Unions may challenge the changes. The project will ensure ongoing union
involvement and staff consultation.

Equalities Implications

62.

An initial desktop Equalities Impact Assessment was carried out in the early stages of
the Income Collection Blueprint. At that stage it was considered that this proposal
would not have a detrimental impact on any customer groups. In fact it was considered
that the increase in choice would be of benefit to some groups and feedback from
customer groups suggested that those who collect their pensions or benefits at the
post office would particularly welcome the change. In recent weeks specific
consultation has been carried out in order to plan and deliver this service in a fair and
inclusive way. Feedback has been positive and there is no evidence that this proposal
will adversely impact any customers. We will continue to survey staff and customers to
assess whether we need to make any further changes to improve the customer
experience.

HR Implications

63.

64.

65.

There will be a reduction in the number of employee posts as a result of this proposal.
It is expected that at least 6 posts will be removed from the establishment as the in-
house demand for cashiering services reduces. Immediate alternative opportunities
have already been identified for staff, within the customer services environment
together with support for reskilling.

Employees and their representatives have been consulted on these proposals and
ongoing communication with both staff representatives and individuals will take place
throughout the change process.

The restructure of the Cashiers service will be implemented following council policies
and procedures that are contained within the Management of Change policy. Suitable



Page 47

redeployment opportunities will be provided wherever possible for any displaced staff.
Any changes to staff roles will be supported by new and updated job descriptions
which will be evaluated by the City of York Council’s job evaluation team.

Financial Implications

66.

Options
67.

a)

b)

The proposals in this report contribute to the achievement of the efficiencies being
sought through the moreforYork Programme. The current cashier function costs
around £295,000 primarily in staff costs and banking charges. This equates to a unit
cost per transaction of £1.52. The Allpay charges for the same volume of transactions
would be £52,000 (based on an assumed 70/30 usage split of retail outlets to post
offices). This represents a potential saving of £243,000. However there is still a
requirement to provide some cashiering support to Parking Services to deal with the
coinage that they collect. This will reduce the potential savings target to £125k pa. A
further piece of work to consider how the collection of coin could be managed to
reduce these costs further.

All Pay Costs 2009/10 2010/
January | Fehruary March Total Full Year
No of Transactions
Council Tax B ,300 - - B ,300 /5 500
Business Rates 173 173 173 519 2076
Rents 2 F58 2 B58 2 B58 75974 31,896
Dehtors - 712 712 1424 8544
Housing Benefit Owverpayment - 1241 121 242 1452
89,131 3 BRd 3,664 16 458 119 563
Transaction Costs 3.973 1,594 1,594 7,161 52,020
Cashier Function Savings
Employees 11,180 12 095 23276 145 152
Office Expenses - 1,218 1,218 2436 14 B1E
Bank Contract 14592 1492 1452 4 476 17,500
Total Savings 1,492 13,890 14,806 30,158 177,668
Net Savings 2,481 12,796 13,212 23,027 125,648

There are only two options associated with this report:

Agree the proposals . In summary, the move to Allpay improves accessibility and
choice for all our customers and delivers a service that is responsive to our
customers needs and generates annual ongoing savings of £125k.

Retain the existing form of service provision which will have a detrimental impact
on future customer choice and the ability to achieve the efficiencies identified in
both the Customer Services and Income Blueprints in the moreforYork programme.

Section 4 — Additional Blueprints



68.

Page 48

The blueprints that have been agreed to date form the first phase of the programme. In
order to achieve the agreed savings targets and to enable the organisation to respond
to issues which arise during the implementation phase, it has always been the
intention to identify further workstreams. Presented below are 2 further areas where a
blueprint needs to be developed to identify whether work should be initiated. Members
are asked to agree the development of the blueprints which will then come back to
Executive for agreement before any implementation begins.

Children’ s Social Care

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

LCCS and Children's Social Care (CSC) in particular are facing very significant
challenges as a result of developments across the national Children's Social Care
environment. Specifically:

¢ A more frequent and rigorous inspection framework (including unannounced spot
inspections)

e A significant increase in referrals for safeguarding services following Lord Laming's
review into the tragic death of Baby Peter

¢ A subsequentincrease in demand for care placements

These circumstances put the department under pressure both in terms of staff capacity
and financial resources and hence maintaining a safe high quality service is more
difficult.

The significant increase in referrals to children’s social care has resulted in a rise in the
number of looked after children, which in turn has increased the costs incurred by the
service. This situation, reflected across the country, reduces any capacity for
preventative work by social care professionals and leaves the organisation simply
reacting and deploying already stretched resources to respond to some of the most
vulnerable and 'at risk' children & young people in the city. This reduced capacity to
undertake the critical preventative and early intervention work increases the likelihood
of more costly and intensive interventions (including becoming looked after) at a later
stage. An increase in such outcomes is in the interest of neither the council nor those
involved.

After a careful analysis of local trends and national drivers, LCCS have developed a
clear vision of the key changes that are needed to address this situation. However
CSC recognise that they lack the change management and project management
expertise to successfully deliver the ambitious yet necessary changes in the required
time. The involvement and support of moreforYork in this work will give it the structure,
resources and drive needed to enable the service to transform itself and meet the
challenges it faces on cost and capacity. Without this support it is unlikely that the
required changes will be delivered successfully.

This work will be undertaken by the CYC team and will not form part of the risk reward
contract with Northgate Kendric Ash.

Finance, Performance and ancillary areas

74.

In July, Executive received a report on the °‘Effective Organisation Programme-

Efficiency Review’. It was stated in the report that “There are a range of early actions
that need to be undertaken to provide a firm launch pad for the change. These include



75.

76.

77.

Page 49

consideration of the consolidation of some support services ahead of the move to the
new HQ - specifically HR, Finance, IT and Procurement.’

Further to that report, it is now proposed to complete a blueprint focused on Finance,
Performance & other support activities. The objectives are similar to those of the already
completed HR, ICT and Procurement blueprint, where the potential to leverage efficiency gains
and service improvements through the pooling and restructuring of resources into a central
hub will be explored. This will include maximising opportunities/benefits by moving to
consistent working practices whilst ensuring service delivery is fit for purpose for the respective
activity areas.

The blueprint will support the proposal in the Organisation Review paper to create a
central support hub for the organisation and will identify the most productive and
efficient way of delivering these services. CMT are overseeing the work and it will run
alongside the Organisation review and cover the following areas:

e Financial support (including income and creditors as part of Income & Procurement
Blueprints)

Performance

Policy

Partnerships

Associated admin support.

Any other support activities which are currently bundled together with finance, HT
ICT or procurement within, which have not been covered in other blueprints so far

NKA are supporting this piece of work and if the blueprint is agreed by members (draft
timescale March 2010) this will be incorporated into the contract and subject to the
same Risk Model. Any savings made will contribute to the contract savings targets and
will be covered by the existing proposed fee structure i.e. there will not be additional
fees for implementation.

Financial Implications

78.

79.

80.

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) presented as part of the Budget Report
to Council on 26th February identified a cumulative 3-year target of £15m net real
efficiency gains (2010/11 £3.25m, 2011/12 £5.15m, 2012/13 £7.15m). These targets
were considered necessary in order to ensure that the council could meet forecast
future financial pressures without the need for significant cuts or reductions in services.
Given further pressures on public spending, and pressure for additional spending in
areas such as looked after children and adult social care that have emerged in the last
year, we know that the Council will need to make savings in excess of the £15m
targets. Therefore the scope of the Programme will need to reflect this in the future.

The forthcoming budget for 2010/11 currently assumes that the Programme will
generate net savings of £3.5m on the basis of the predicted savings from year 0 and 1,
net of fees and investment costs. .

The proposals set out in the 8 blueprints already agreed contribute significantly to the
achievement of £15m of ongoing net efficiency savings (after deduction of all fees and
investment costs), specifically identifying £4.244m gross savings in 2020/11 rising to
£13.225m by 2012/13. This is set out in the table below. Further proposals are to be
considered on this agenda and additional recommendations will be will be brought



81.

Page 50

forward in the new year to ensure we meet the target of £15m pa of net savings and to
address any increase in the savings targets for the Council in the future.

The table below summarises the gross savings predicted from each stream. The sums
in columns Year 0-3 represent additional savings found in each year which go into the
base budget. The eventual ongoing annual saving is featured in the Annual Savings

column.

More for York : General Fund Financial Summary
Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Annual
General Fund 20092010 | 201041 | 201112 | 201213 | Savinas |
000's 000's 000's 000's 000's
Efficiency Savings
Customer Services 267 530 385 60 1,242
Housing ( None HRA) 0 73 47 20 140
HR 0 230 716 778 1,724
ICT 0 390 996 202 1,588
Neighbourhood Services 401 1,308 345 267 2,321
Property 0 0 572 0 572
Procurement 20 410 925 2,125 3,480
Income Collection 435 1,303 370 50 2,158
Gross GF Efficiency Savings 1,123 4,244 4,356 3,502 13,225
HRA Year 0 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 | Annual
Housing Savings 51 867 437 249 1,604

82.

Specific financial implications arise from the need for capital investment, and revenue
investment, plus the need for provision for redundancies. All of these costs will be a
charged against the moreforYork Programme and were set out in the report in October
09.

Corporate Priorities

83.

The report directly supports the corporate strategy objective of delivering an Effective
Organisation in delivering efficient and effective services. Provision of a corporate
customer service culture will help contribute to the effective delivery of all corporate
priorities in enhancing the customers’ experience with council services

Consultation

84.

The Customer Strategy and moreforYork programme places customers at the heart of
the design of services. The income collection workstream has been the subject of
consultation with both the SWIG and the SERG and this will continue. In addition, all
Directorates have been consulted about these proposals and CMT are supportive of
the initiative. The budget consultation also includes a question about customer’s
willingness to embrace web and phone payments and their views on local collection of
cash.

Implications

85.

The implications this report are: -

e Financial - covered in the report
e Human Resources (HR) - covered in the report



Page 51

Equalities - covered in the report

Legal — no implications

Crime and Disorder — no implications

Information Technology (IT) —. Interfaces with receipting systems, SX3 and our
bank reconciliation programmes are currently being assessed.

Property - These proposals will maximise the use of our current accommodation
by streamlining the receptions and related services for the councils, contributing to
the council’s efficiency objectives and will help us to prepare for occupation of the
new HQ.

Risk Management — This report addresses two major corporate risks - the failure
to achieve £15m of savings in the next three years and the failure to co-ordinate
related change activity. This report seeks to mitigate both these risks by
implementing a robust plan of action to achieve savings whilst aligning the delivery
programme with other change activity. The specific risks of the Income Collection
recommendations are set out in paras 58-61.

Recommendations

86.
87.
88.

89.

90.

91.

The executive is recommended to :-

Note the progress made on the More for York Programme

Note the work undertaken to date on identifying the Sustainability benefits from the
Programme

Agree the Income Collection proposals as set out in paras 42 - 67 particularly

a.

the proposal to introduce the Allpay facility;

b. the closure of the cashiering function in the banking hall and the provision of a

residual cashiering facility at 9 St Leonard’s.

Agree the production of an additional Blueprints for work on Children’s Social Care as
set out in paras 69 - 73

Agree the production of additional Blueprints for work on Finance Performance and
associated support as set out in paras 74 - 77



Page 52

Reasons

92. To enable the council to deliver service improvements and create efficiency savings of
£15m over the next three years and to redesign services enabling a more customer
focused, locally based service delivery model.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Author’s name Chief Officer’s name Kersten England
lan Floyd Title Chief Executive -

Director of Resources.

Tracey Carter
AD Resources — Transformation Report Approved [+ Date 2nd December
& Efficiency 2009

Dept Name Resources
Tel No. 553419
Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All II'

For further information please contact the author of the report
Annexes
Sustainability Impact Assessments . Annex 1

All Pay Outlets Annex2



YORK more for York

s Sustainability Impact Assessment —
Key

- Likely to have a very positive effect Below is a set of sustainability questions based on the key issues identified from the Integrated Regional Framework and CYC Sustainability Appraisal of the Local Development Framework. Each
v | Likely to have a positive effect question is to be scored in accordance with the key to determine the effect which a proposal/decision will have on the overall sustainability of the York. Where negative or very negative impacts are

| Likely to have a mixed or neutral effect | predicted, individuals completing this form should suggest alterations that have the potential to improve the proposal/decision.
x | Likely to have a negative impact
- Likely to have a very negative impact
? | Uncertain effect

0 | No significant effect or clear link

Sustainability Question Appraisal Result Workstream Initiative / Measurement Indicator
Natural and Built Environment v | v | x |[x |[?2 |0
v x
Will it increase land use efficiency that maximises the use of brownfield land? v Property: The introduction of a Strategic Asset Mgt Board will support the efficiency of land use.

Indicator: Size and number of vacant & derelict land and buildings.

Neighbourhood Services: Optimisation of waste schedules & rounds Review of Ground Staff
operations will result in improved standards. The introduction of generic operatives will ensure litter &
waste is removed in quicker timescales.

Indicators: NS performance data.

Property: The introduction of a comprehensive Facilities Management function will ensure an effective
planned maintenance programme.

Indicators: Stock of listed buildings in York, % at risk. Number of Scheduled Monuments at risk. Number
of conservation areas in York.

Will it conserve and enhance the natural environment? v Neighbourhood Services: Environmental improvements will be achieved by: Improved waste collection,
street cleaning. Review of litter & dog bin collection rounds. Provision of recycling containers will reduce
amount of waste escaping from bags in bad weather.

Indicators: NS performance data.

Property: The Strategic Asset Mgt Board will champion this.

Indicators: Number of conservation areas in York.

Will it reduce air, land and water pollution? v Customer Services: Increased contact options and introducing Single Point of Contact for customers (&
extending contact times) will reduce the need for customers to visit CYC offices.

Indicators: Monitor usage of contact options & compare to historic data.

Housing: Reduction in air pollution due to: reduced fleet of vans, less trips due to improved diagnostics,
dynamic scheduling, mobile working, improved quality (less re work), less inspections (get right first
time), utilisation of multi skilled workers, vehicle tracking, review of crew cabs for voids (1 crew cab could
replace 3 vans).

Indicators: Tracking of vehicles will provide detailed data on emissions. Compare Fuel consumption
levels to historic data.

Neighbourhood Services: Improved fleet utilisation will reduce air pollution.

Indicators: Tracking of vehicles will provide detailed data on emissions. Compare Fuel consumption
levels to historic data.

Property: Effective FM will minimise pollution.

Indicators: Monitor Carbon Dioxide emissions from CYC buildings & compare to historic data.

Will it maintain and improve a quality built environment and the cultural heritage of
York and preserve the character and setting of the historic city of York?

ANRN

£G abed



=S city oF

YORK - r
SR e Sustainability Impact Assessment — wove fﬂr f“ A

Sustainability Question

‘ Appraisal Result

Workstream Initiative / Measurement Indicator

Will it reduce waste generation and increase levels of reuse and recycling? v Neighbourhood Services: Provision of 3 containers for recycling will improve recycling usage. Trader
v Waste Audits will identify leakage into the domestic waste stream and ensure it is dealt with effectively.

Indicators: % of residents served by kerbside collection of recyclables. Total kilograms of waste collected
per head.% of household waste recycled. Trader Waste Audits
ICT: Rationalisation of Printer Services & Managed Print will reduce paper usage by 50% after three
years and increased recycling of waste.
Indicators: Compare consumption of paper to historic data. Monitor recycled waste levels.
Procurement: Improved Procurement Processes will reduce the number of goods purchased.
Indicators: Monitor performance data with historic records.
Property: Effective FM will minimise pollution.
Indicators: Monitor recycled waste levels.

Will it reduce the impact of flooding to people and property in York?

Climate Change

Will it reduce the impact of climate change by reducing greenhouse gas emissions | v/ Property: CO2 emissions will be effectively monitored and reductions targeted.

such as C02? v Indicators: Comparison with historic data.
Neighbourhood Services: Reduction in usage of vehicles (reduced numbers & promoting shared use)
will reduce CO2 emissions. Also planned Street Lighting Controls will ensure that CO2 emissions reduce,
this will be under lined by review of street lighting procurement specification. Using a better type of tyre
on vehicles will reduce fuel consumption, have a longer lifespan and hence reduce CO2 emissions.
Effective tracking of vehicles will enable accurate carbon footprint monitoring.
Indicators: Monitor data produced by tracking system. Monitor fuel consumption levels and compare to
historic data. Compare lifespan of tyre consumption. Monitor CO2 emissions from street lighting.
Housing: Reduction in air pollution due to: reduced fleet of vans, less trips due to improved diagnostics,
dynamic scheduling, mobile working, improved quality (less re work), less inspections (get right first
time), utilisation of multi skilled workers, vehicle tracking, review of crew cabs for voids (1 crew cab could
replace 3 vans).
Indicators: Monitor data produced by tracking system. Monitor fuel consumption levels and compare to
historic data.
ICT: Provision of a Data Centre, Rationalisation of Printer Services and Bulk Printing, Rationalisation of
desktop and mobile devices: will all reduce Carbon emissions.
Indicators: Record emissions from ICT facilities and compare to historic data. Monitor CO2 emissions
from CYC buildings. Comparison of energy usage.
Customer Services: Increased contact options and introducing Single Point of Contact for customers (&
extending contact times) will reduce the need for customers to visit CYC offices.
Indicators: Monitor usage of contact options & compare to historic data.
Procurement: Improve Sustainability compliance of suppliers.
Indicators: Data from supplier audits.

Will it increase York’s resilience to future climate change by assisting to adapt to

the impacts of climate change by minimising threats and maximising opportunities?

Will it result in the prudent and efficient use of energy, water and other natural v Housing: Less materials to be used and reduction in associated waste by: Use of standard materials,

resources? v rationalisation of range, reduced vans and associated stock, improved van stock control.
Indicators: Compare material usage with historic data.
Procurement: Improved Procurement Processes will reduce the number of goods purchased and
promote sustainability e.g. increased use of recycled paper.
Indicators: Compare purchasing levels with historic data and type of goods purchased e.g. recycled
paper, energy consumption levels via utility bills.
Neighbourhood Services: Reduction in vehicle usage will result in less fuel usage. Energy efficient
street lighting specification in future procurement. Improved lifespan of tyres.
Indicators: Performance data as mentioned above.
Property: Effective FM will maximise energy and water efficiency.
Indicators: Monitor CYC buildings energy efficiency ratings.
ICT: Provision of a Data Centre, Rationalisation of Printer Services and Bulk Printing, Rationalisation of
desktop and mobile devices: will all reduce energy usage across CYC (est. by 30% in three years of
current usage by ICT and reduce the use of consumables. Centralisation of ICT will ensure that
Sustainability is at the heart of Strategy and enable a sustainable control framework for target setting.
Indicators: Comparison of energy usage with historic data.
HR: Moving from weekly to monthly pay will reduce paper & ink usage.
Indicators: Comparison of purchasing levels with historic data.

G abed



YORK i "
SR e Sustainability Impact Assessment — wove 'flir fﬂ A

Sustainability Question

‘ Appraisal Result

Workstream Initiative / Measurement Indicator

Will it increase the proportion of renewable energy utilised? v Property: Strategic Asset Mgt Board will promote renewable energy usage where practicable.
Indicators: Record & monitor renewable energy usage across CYC estate.
Transport
Will it in encourage and support the use of sustainable transport modes such as 0
walking, cycling and public transport?
Economy
Will it create conditions for business success, stable economic growth and | Procurement: Collaboration with partners would ensure more value for our corporate buying power.
investment? Indicators: Comparison with historic data.
ICT: Provision of a Data Centre, there is the potential to share services with partner organisations.
Housing: Reduction in the need to use sub contractors due to improved internal efficiencies may have
an adverse effect on their profitability.
Indicators: Monitor numbers of sub contractors used and compare spend with historic data.
Will it provide good quality employment opportunities available for all in York? 0
Will it provide education and training opportunities for all which build skills and 0
capacity of the population of York?
Social
Will it improve the health and well-being of the York population? v Neighbourhood Services: Improvements in the cleanliness of York will have positive benefits in terms
of well-being.
Indicators: Feedback from Ward committees. Local Quality of Life Indicators
Will it improve safety and security for people and property? v Neighbourhood Services: The introduction of Health & Safety Asset Manager system will improve
v safety precautions. The introduction of Street Lighting controls will improve safety & security to both.
Indicators: Analysis of CYC H&S records. Analysis of data produced by North Yorkshire Police Authority
& Safer York Partnership on residents perception of safety.
Property: By providing effective Soft FM measures i.e. fire prevention, security services, bacteria testing,
etc.
Indicators: Monitor incident levels and compare with historic data.
HR: Consistency of H&S advice and utilisation of best practice throughout CYC
Indicators: Analysis of CYC H&S records
Procurement: Ensuring suppliers comply with CYC H&S standards.
Indicators: Data from Supplier audits.
Will it reduce inequality and embrace diversity? v HR: Consistency of advice and utilisation of best practice throughout CYC.
v Indicators: Results of staff surveys and input from Equalities & Diversity.
Customer Services: Services will be designed & maintained around the Customer and their changing
needs.
Indicators: Feedback from customer surveys / questionnaires.
Procurement: Ensuring suppliers comply with CYC inequality & diversity standards.
Indicators: Data from Supplier Audits
Housing
Supply quality affordable housing for all? v Housing: Improved void time will increase availability of affordable housing.
Indicators: Analysis of void time & numbers with historical data.

GG abed



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



More for York Update - Annex 2
A list of local Post Office outlets where City of York Council customers can make payments

Total number of outlets = 43

POST OFFICE Address Postcode
Micklegate 95 Micklegate YO16LE
Market Place 4 Colliergate YO1 8BP
York 22 Lendal YO1 8DA
Walmgate Bar 101 Walmgate YO1 9UA
Tang Hall lane 192-194 Tang Hall Lane YO10 3RA
Melrosegate 204 Melrosegate YO10 3SW
Broadway 44 Broadway YO10 4JX
Heslington 13 Main Street Heslington YO10 5EA
Naburn The Reading Rooms Front Street YO19 4RR
Dunnington Costcutter Store 29 York Street YO19 5QT
Warthill (serve and store) Warthill Post Office Warthill YO19 5XL
Wheldrake Costcutter Supermarket Group 58 Main Street YO19 6AB
Escrick Main Street Escrick YO19 6LQ
Riccall 53 Main Street Riccall YO19 6QE
Bishopthorpe 26-27 Main Street Bishopthorpe Y023 2RA
Copmanthorpe 9 The Shopping Centre Copmanthorpe Y023 3GG
Rufforth Methodist Hall Wetherby Road YO23 3QF
Bolton Percy The Old School School Lane Y023 7AD
Appleton Roebuck Parish Hall, the Old School House Main Street Y023 7DJ
Dringhouses 14 Tadcaster Road Dringhouses YO24 1LH
Woodthorpe 61 Moorcroft Road Woodthorpe Y024 2RQ
Acomb 65 Front Street Acomb Y024 3BR
York Road 12 Regents Building York Road Y024 4LT
Bright Street 37 Stamford Street YO26 4YE
Beckfield Lane 147 Beckfield Lane Acomb YO26 5PJ
Upper Poppleton Station Road Upper Poppleton Y026 6DA
Marston Angram Road Marston YO26 7L.Q
Tockwith Westfield Road Tockwith YO26 7PY
Green Hammerton PO & Village Stores Green Hammerton Y026 8BN
Great Ouseburn Main Street Great Ouseburn YO26 9RG
Skelton 52 Farfield Drive Skelton YO30 1YP

/G obed



Linton on Ouse Linton on Ouse Village Hall Morg\raitcBttéiestate - Annex 2 YO30 2AS
Eastholme Drive Rabbani Stores 20 Eastholme Drive YO30 5BW
Crichton Avenue 1 Intake Avenue YO30 6HB
Heworth 73 East Parade Heworth YO317YB
Foss Mount 191 - 193 Huntington Road YO31 9BP
Brockfield 52 - 54 Brockfield Park Drive YO31 9ER
Haxby 41 The Village Haxby YO32 2HU
New Earswick 20 Hawthorn Terrace New Earswick YO32 4BL
Strensall 53 - 55 The Village Strensall YO32 5XA
Huntington 43 North Moor Road Huntington YO32 9QN
Hopgrove (serve and store) |Orchard Nurseries 48 Hopgrove Lane South [YO32 9TG
Stockton on Forest 52 The Village Stockton on Forest YO32 9UQ

gG abed



More for York Update - Annex 2

A list of PayPoint outlets where City of York Council customers can make payments

Total number of outlets = 68

Outlet Address Postcode
Arden News 4 Rougier Street YO1 6HZ
First York 45 Tanner Row YO1 6JP
May News 76 Goodramgate YO17LF
Monk Bar Newsagency 10 Goodramgate YO17LQ
May News 23 Parliament Street YO1 8RS
Dillons Newsagents 85 Walmgate YO1 9UA
Malthurst Service Station 128 Lawrence Street YO10 3EB
Freshways York Ltd 27-29 Hull Road YO10 3JW
Somerfield Hull Road YO10 3LQ
Sainsbury's 6-10 Farmdale Avenue Osbaldwick YO10 3PF
The Co-op 143-145 Tang Hall Lane YO10 3SD
Sainsbury's 212-214 Fulford Road YO10 4DX
The Co-op 46 Broadway YO10 4JX
Spar 47 Heslington Road YO10 5AR
Your Shop 9 Market Square Vanbrough Way YO10 5NH
Costcutter 29 York Street Dunnington YO19 5QT
Ebor (Costcutter) 56 Main Street Wheldrake YO19 6AB
York Road Carage York Road Escrick YO19 6EY
Southbank Stores 75 Balmoral Terrace Y023 1HR
Costcutter 14 Bishopthorpe Road Y023 1JJ
Sainsbury's Scarcroft Road Y023 1ND
May News 26 Sim Balk Lane Bishopthorpe Y023 2QQ
The Co-op 47 Main Street Bishopthorpe Y023 2RA
The Co-op 17 Church Street Copmanthorpe Y023 3SE
Sainsbury's 54-58 Blossom Street Y024 1AP
The Co-op 20-22 Tadcaster Road Dringhouses Y024 1L.Q
The Co-op 51 Moorcroft Road Y024 2RQ
Nicholas News & Store 13-15 Walns Grove Dringhouses Y024 2TU
The Stop Gap 155 Gale Lane Y024 3AG
Acomb News 43 Front Street Acomb Y024 3BR
Cornlands Road News 91 Cornlands Road Y024 3ED

6G abed



Somerfield Petrol Station 6 Beagle Ridge Drive MorgXeYalk Update - Annex 2 Y024 3JQ
Foxwood News 2 Beagle Ridge Drive Acomb Y024 3JQ
Wards News 45 York Road Acomb YO24 4LN
Early to Late Martins 243-245 Hamilton Drive YO24 4PL
The Co-op 10 Regent Buildings York Road YO254LT
Costcutter 101 Poppleton Road YO25 4UN
Tilstons Discount Tobacco |6-8 Garfield Terrace YO25 4XU
Ebor (Costcutter) Bramham Avenue Y025 5BE
Sainsbury's 17 Beckfield Lane Y025 5PN
The Co-op 127 Beckfield Lane YO25 5PW
Sangha Food & Wine 25A Boroughbridge Road Y025 5BE
The Co-op 97 Boroughbridge Road YO25 6AA
The Co-op The Green Upper Poppleton Y025 6DF
Spar 10-12 Atherton Drive Nether Poppleton YO25 6HN
The Co-op Great North Way York, Business Park Y025 6RB
Costcutter 8 Westfields Road Tockwith YO25 7PY
The Co-op York Road Green Hammerton Y025 8EQ
Shipton Road Stores 218 Shipton Road YO30 5RZ
Eastholme News 18 Eastholme Drive Rawcliffe YO30 5SW
Spar Stores- 122 Clifton YO30 6BQ
Sainsbury's 201 Burton Stone Lane YO30 6DG
McDelta (Lukes take away) |49 Crichton Avenue YO30 6EF
Sainsbury's 25 Bootham YO30 7BW
Costcutter 83 Heworth Road YO31 0AA
Spar Stores 125 Bad Bargain Lane YO31 OPF
Londis (G & K News) 70 Fourth Avenue YO31 0UB
Spar - Alfred Jones Mill Lane Heworth YO31 7TF
The Co-op 75-77 East Parade YO317YB
The Staff Shop York Hospital Wiggington Road YO31 8HE
Londis 192 Haxby Road YO31 8JP
Dodsworth News 2 Saxon Place Heworth YO31 8UE
Spar - Alfred Jones 191-193 Huntington Road YO31 9BP
Somerfield Main Street Haxby Y032 2LU
Londis 39 Oak Tree Lane Haxby YO32 2YL
McDelta (Martins) 19 The Village Haxby YO32 3HS
The Co-op 9-10 The Village Haxby YO32 9SA
May News 43 North Moor Road Huntington YO32 9QN

09 abed



More for York Update - Annex 2
names in brackets are the names on the Post Office website given for the address/postcode

19 abed



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63 Agenda Item 8

COUNCIL

Executive 15 December 2009

Report of the Director of Housing and Adult Social Services

More For York - Adult Social Care Blueprint
Summary

1. At the meeting on 20™ October the Executive received a report on
progress on the More For York blueprints. As part of that report members
approved the Vision for the Adult Social Care blueprint but at that time
work was still in progress to develop two other projects covering:

o Review of Home Care*
o Elderly Person Residential Home (EPH) Review

(*Home care includes ‘Re-ablement’ - a term used commonly across the
country to describe services or interventions that are aimed at enabling
people to regain their health and their independent living skills e.g. after a
fall or a stay in hospital. The term ‘re-ablement’ is used in this report as
shorthand to describe this process.)

2. This report provides more detail on these two projects and seeks approval
for the next stage in the work. This starts by reaffirming the vision for
services — i.e. what we want to achieve for our customers. It then sets out
the reasons why changes need to be made to achieve that vision (more
detail is set out in the annexes) and the principles that should underpin
any changes. Finally, options are set out for members to consider.

The Vision — What are we aiming to achieve for customers and citizens ?

3. This was set out fully in the Adult Social Care blueprint approved on 20"
October and has 4 main elements:

o Services that are customer focused — simple to understand and
accessible

o Personalised approach and Choice — customers who are eligible
for services will know how much money is available to fund their
care and have the opportunity to control that directly if they want
to.

o Maximisation of independence and optimising people’s health and
well-being — support that enables rather than disables, intervenes
early to prevent problems becoming acute and uses assistive
technology.

10f9



Page 64

o Universal support for everyone — all citizens to get the
information, advice they need to live independently even if they
are self-funders.

(Although this is seen as the prime responsibility of social care it
touches upon the full range of local authority responsibilities
[housing, community safety, neighbourhood services, transport,
learning, employment advice etc] as well as the critical
partnerships with the NHS, care providers and the voluntary
sector).

3.1 The context in which this vision for change exists is set out in Annex 1.
This lists the key factors that require the council to carry out these reviews
taking into account demographic change and growth in demand; financial
pressures; strategic challenges; immediate service challenges.

Why services need to change — the key issues

4. The key issues for consideration of the home care services review are set
out in Annex 2. In summary they are:

a
a

Comparative unit costs of the in-house and private sector services
Targets for the in-house ‘re-ablement’ service to achieve its aim of
enabling as many people as possible to live independently without
the need for extensive packages of care

Capacity issues to ensure there are no ‘blockages’ in the system so
that people are not waiting to receive re-ablement support or to move
on to long-term care services

Setting out clear standards and expectations for all services i.e.
commissioning for the outcomes to be achieved for customers and
monitoring performance closely

The importance of a positive partnership and fruitful integration with
the NHS

5. The key issues for consideration of the residential care services review
are set out in Annex 3. In summary they are:

a

a

a
a

The council’s role as a provider of a large number of residential care
homes

Demand for ‘standard’ residential care is falling but demand for more
specialist care is rising

Comparative unit costs of the in-house and private sector services
Understanding the investment needed to the council’s homes to
bring them up to the standards expected by customers in the future

6. There is an important link to the housing strategy for older people to
explore the potential for extra care housing to be a realistic alternative for
more people.

Strategic Objectives and Principles of changes in Home Care and EPH

provision

7. Both projects are critically inter-dependent. The changes to provision
needed to reduce reliance on residential care are dependent on an

20f9



Page 65

effective range of health and social care support services in the
community. The projects will therefore be successful if they achieve the
following joint outcomes:

o ensure that services meet the expectations and needs of older
people in terms of quality, range and the positive impact on their lives

o maximise opportunities for choice and personalisation

a increase the capacity to re-able people, maximising their
independence and minimising their need for support services

o increase the service capacity in the city to meet increased demand
(e.g. by freeing up existing investment through minimising the unit
cost of services)

o harness the creativity and capacity of alternative solutions in the third
sector, not-for-profit and private sectors and in the wider community

7.1 This means focussing on the outcomes we want to achieve for people

through the provision of services rather than focussing on the detailed
service arrangements. To do this we need to begin with a strong emphasis
on Commissioning — setting out very clearly what providers are expected
to achieve for their customers and working with them to ensure they hit the
agreed standards consistently. This rigour must apply equally to those
services provided directly by the council as it does to those supplied by
independent care providers.

The role of the NHS is also critical to the success of the overall strategy
for adult social care support. The appointment of a Locality Director for
York and the re-launch of the Adults Commissioning Group (City of York
Council, NHS in North Yorkshire and York [PCT] and York Health Group
[GPs]) provides the best opportunity for many years to agree and act on
joint priorities and to look for more integrated ways of delivering services
on the ground. An example of this is joint work on extending assistive
technology to enable people to monitor their own health and to relay
essential information back to GPs (tele-health)

Delivery timescales and milestones

9.

Both these reviews need to be initiated quickly if they are to have a
significant impact in 2010/11. Each depends on the outcomes that the
other will provide to successfully deliver the overall transformation in adult
social care services.

The Home Care review needs to focus on defining the services to be
commissioned and their outcomes in time to shape the Home Care
market testing planned to be issued in April 2010.

The EPH review is a project that also needs to be started now. It is a
longer-term piece of work that will release its benefits over a number of
years. The agreement of a strategy and plans will reduce the existing
uncertainty in the service. It is proposed to bring back further reports on
progress in March and July 2010.

30of9



Page 66

Home Care Review Options

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Option 1 — Status Quo

Cost — The Long Term Commissioning Strategy projected annual
increases in the costs of meeting care needs based on the current
configuration of services of at least £10m between 2007 and 2020.

Analysis

Maintaining the status quo would leave many of the current issues
unresolved. It would not resolve the need to increase the supply of home
care, tackle the need for more efficiencies or provide a plan to bear down
on increasing costs by reducing expenditure in some areas of work. It
would also make the potential overspend set out above more likely to
occur.

Option 2 — Limited changes to in-house services

Potential savings - £150k

Analysis

The proposed work would involve further reviewing the operation of the in-
house team to maximise efficiency within existing Terms & Conditions and
working practices. The emphasis would also be on more cost-effective use
of temporary /agency staff, further minimising sickness absence and
maximising customer contact hours. However, there would be a ‘ceiling’
on improvement by operating within the current arrangements that would
inhibit more savings through efficiencies.

Option 3 — Significant Changes to in-house services
Potential savings - £800k (to be validated)

Analysis

The proposed work would involve negotiations with staff and trade unions
on making significant changes to the existing Terms & Conditions and
working practices of the in-house team and implementing electronic
rostering to maximise customer contact hours. The savings would only be
realised if this work achieved a significant reduction in the direct costs of
the service to the council.

Option 4 — Market testing of all or part of in-house services

Potential savings — £1.7m

4 0of 9



17.

Page 67

Analysis

This level of saving could only be realised if all the current in-house
services were subject to market testing. There would be an option to
market test some of the services and to continue to invest in
improvements in those retained in—house (e.g. market test the care
services and the home support service but retain the re-ablement service
in-house). That option would reduce the level of savings.

EPH Review Options

The narrative below sets out the options available to the authority in
determining its future approach to EPHs. It is recommended that options 2 and
3 are implemented as they are sequential, logical and demonstrate both
financial and service improvement for CYC and best value for customers.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Option 1 — Status Quo

Cost — The Long Term Commissioning Strategy projected annual
increases in the costs of meeting care needs based on the current
configuration of services of at least £10m between 2007 and 2020.

Analysis
Leaving things as they are is not a viable option given both :

a the increasing projected annual costs set out above and

o the need to improve facilities in the council’'s EPHs
Residents are telling us that different services will be needed in the future
and the current model of care does not meet many people’s aspirations.
We need to be planning the changes now to ensure that care in York
reflects best practice and value for money.

Option 2 — Improvements in costs pending a full asset review
Potential Savings - £140k

Analysis

A reasonable target would be to achieve a 2% saving from the current
budget of approximately £7m, including corporate recharges and other
overheads. This would involve:
o Reviewing the management and allocation of staffing/temporary staff
etc.
o Demand management — linking vacancies to savings, more efficient
resource allocation between housing options and residential care
o Impact and benefits of use of EPHs for Respite and Day Activities
o Procurement - of meals/food, temporary staff, fuel etc.
More work will need to be done to validate the potential savings from this
approach.

Option 3 — Full asset appraisal and long-term re-commissioning plan

Potential Savings - until a full asset appraisal and long term re-
commissioning plan are carried out, it is difficult to quantify precisely what
the potential savings could be although it is anticipated that they are likely
to be significant.

50f9



23.

24.

Page 68

Analysis

Work is underway to assess the suitability of all the current EPH buildings
to provide care to the standard required. The outcome of this work will be
brought back to members in 2010 but is expected to confirm that some
homes would require very significant investment to remain viable in the
longer-term. The report will also quantify the volume and type of
residential care the council will need to commission in the future. This
information will enable members to plan changes needed more effectively.

Discussions are underway with NHS colleagues about the potential for
closer joint working on new and more integrated models of care e.g. for
older people with dementia. There may also be potential to increase the
short-term use of the council’'s homes for people who need support
outside hospital before being able to return to their own homes.

Consultation

25.

26.

In 2008 older people in York told us that they wish to be offered care
wherever possible in their own homes, but to be able to access residential
care when their needs are for specialist care, because of very high
physical dependency, or because of high levels of confusion and memory
loss. They wanted to be assured of the quality of care that is provided.
They trusted the Council to provide good quality care, but there was an
understanding that the Council might not be the most cost effective
provider for care, and that care in the independent sector can also be of
good quality.

The proposals within this report have been discussed with the trade
unions through the departmental Joint Consultative Committee.

Corporate Objectives

27.

The provision of good quality, cost effective home care services
contributes to the Corporate objective of “Improve the health and lifestyles
of the people who live in York, in particular among groups whose levels of
health are the poorest”

Other relevant objectives are “Improve efficiency and reduce waste to
free-up more resources’ and ‘Improve our focus on the needs of
customers and residents in designing and providing services”.

Implications

28.

Financial

The options outlined in this paper could realise efficiency savings within
Adult Social Services of in excess of £2m per annum . The exact savings
would need to be developed further once it is clear in terms of the overall
strategy, and more detailed analysis is then conducted. The Council’s
Medium Term Financial Strategy sets out the need for significant
efficiency savings in coming years, with an expectation that all areas of
the Council will deliver significant improvements in efficiency. Further
pressures on public spending are likely to require the Council to have to

6 0of 9



29.

30.

31.

EP

Page 69

seek additional savings in coming years over and above those already set
out in the current Financial Strategy.

Human Resources (HR)
The no change and limited change options do not have any significant
anticipated impacts on staff.

The significant change option for in-house services has impacts in terms
of changing working practice and could impact upon existing contractual
arrangements with staff.

Market testing home care services currently provided by the council may
involve staff transferring employment to a new provider(s) under TUPE.

Equalities

Staff

Any changes to working arrangements would be subject to consultation in
accordance with the Council's change management policies.

Customers

The customers of EPHs are vulnerable people, some with dementia and
other mental health needs, others with high levels of physical and/or social
dependency. Any changes to service provision will require very careful
management and be subject to consultation.

Customers of home care are also vulnerable and there would need to be
very good communication related to any change of providers with people
given choice about how the service is delivered through personal budgets.

Legal

Changes to service provision in relation to adult social care must be taken
in the context of the statutory framework. There has been much litigation
in this area and it is important that the Council understands the legal risks
that it is taking as the review progresses. At this stage, there are no
immediate legal implications but it is important that any review is
conducted with an understanding of that framework in order to minimise
the risk of legal challenge.

Home Care

There may well be legal issues arising from any change to staff terms and
conditions and these will need to be considered at the appropriate time. If
there is a decision to market test the service this is likely to give rise to a
further range of issues, including TUPE.

Legal issues will also arise if the changes to the way the service is
delivered also lead to changes in the nature of the service delivered to
those in receipt of them. It is important that any such changes are
managed appropriately to limit the risk to the Council.

There are a range of legal issues which will arise in any reconfiguring of
the service which are likely to include the contract for agency staff, the

70of9



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Page 70

status of any in-house casual staff agency and the transfer of casual staff
from EPHs to one or the other option. The staff terms and conditions will
need to be fully understood to support the delivery of a more flexible
workforce.

Any change to the configuration of EPH requires consultation and careful
consideration of the results of any such consultation. It is important that
legal advice is taken at an early stage in this process to avoid the risk of
legal challenge.

Contract Review and Change

This will also require detailed legal advice. Understanding our contracts
and our scope for change, as well as making the best of tender
opportunities will be critical to delivering improved value for money.

Crime and Disorder
There are no direct implications anticipated from the proposals in this
report.

Information Technology (IT)
Members have already given support for the approved IT development
plan to implement electronic home care monitoring.

Property

There are no direct implications anticipated from the proposals in this
report. The next report to the Executive will give more detail on the asset
appraisal of the council-owned buildings in which residential care is
provided.

Other

External providers, both not for profit and private sector, in home care and
EPH sectors, provide the majority of these services in York. They will be
looking to the Council for clear messages on future commissioning
intentions to help them decide on their investment decisions to increase or
modernise capacity in York.

Risk Management

Any significant change programme to front-line services involves potential
risk. The projects would be formally managed with a risk log and detailed
actions to mitigate risk. Key risks to be noted at this stage include:
o Strained industrial relations during detailed consultation about
significant changes
o Maintaining levels of service during any changes to the way in which
the council employs agency or casual staff
o Maintaining safe and responsive levels of service should there be a
transfer from one provider to another
o That timescales slip and/or costs are not reduced in line with
projections (or more likely that continued growth in costs due to
increasing demand is not sufficiently restrained)

8of 9



Page 71

o Insufficient supply to enable the care system to operate more
effectively
o Insufficient capacity to commission and monitor services as planned
Recommendations
37. That the Executive decide which of the options set out in paragraphs 10-
17 would be the best way forward for home care services.

38. That the Executive approve the proposed way forward for the EPH review
as set out in paragraphs 18 to 24.

39. That the Executive receive further reports in 2010 confirming the work
required to deliver the savings for the approved options.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Bill Hodson Bill Hodson
Director of Housing and Adult Director of Housing and Adult Social
Social Services Services
Report v Date 1 December
Approved 2009

Specialist Implications Officer(s) Alison Lowton Interim Head of Civic, Legal
and Democratic Services, Angela Wilkinson Head of Human Resources, lan
Floyd, Director of Resources

Wards Affected: All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:
City of York Long-Term Commissioning Strategy for Older People 2006 — 2021
(2007)

Annexes:

1 - The wider context for change - overview of reasons for change in Home
Care and EPH provision

2 - Home Care Review — Key Issues

3 - Elderly Persons Homes (EPH) Review — Key Issues

90of9



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 73

Annex 1

The wider context for change - overview of reasons for change

in Home Care and EPH provision

1. Demographic change and growth in demand

The York Long Term Commissioning Strategy for Older People (2007)

projected:

o anincrease of 60% in the number of people over 85 by 2020 (2,300

more people over 85)

o anincrease of 1,150 in community care packages and of 268
residential and nursing placements by 2020

These projections were based on the assumption that:
o over 85s are more likely to need support from health and social care

services

o services continued to be provided in the same way

1.1The table below shows the predicted increase of people needing care and

support at home as well as going into residential and nursing care in York.
This indicates an overall increase of 24% from 2009 to 2030 and a year on
year increase of 7.4% (average) for both these provisions. These projections
are based on the current use of services. The way we meet these needs
should be changing, as we transform social care services and implement the
Putting People First agenda.  The information in the table below is as
reported by Projecting Older People Population Information (POPPI) and is
likely to be a conservative estimate as CYC actual data, as stated in the

column to the left, for 2008/2009 is higher in all instances.

Projection

Actual

08/09" 2009 (2015|2020 | 2025 | 2030
Number of older people helped to live at home 3,095 | 2,863 |3,276|3,522|3,838 4,207
Number of households receiving intensive home 292 240 275 | 295 | 322 | 353
care for people aged 65 and over
Number of older people receiving community-
based services provided or commissioned by the
CSSR (Council and Social Services 4,449 4,131 14,727 5,082 5,53816,070
Responsibility)
Total number of older people in residential and
nursing care during the year, purchased or 1,016 948 (1,085(1,166 (1,271 (1,393
provided by the CSSR
Number of older people admitted to supported 233 297 259 | 279 | 304 | 333
permanent residential and nursing care
Number of carers aged 65 and over receiving 234 205 235 | 252 | 275 | 301
services

' Data source from RAP 2008/2009

POPPI (November, 2009), DoH



Page 74

Annex 1

2. Financial pressures

a The figures from the 2007 Long Term Commissioning Strategy projected

additional costs of £4.4m by 2010 to meet the care needs of older people
rising to £10.7m by 2020.

o The growth in HASS expenditure in these areas since 2007 reflects this

upward trend. In the Quarter 2 Monitor report it is projected that the adult
social care budget could overspend by approximately £1.1m despite
savings of £800k during the course of the year.

o The current and future national economic environment that CYC is

operating in is one where reduced investment in public services is
anticipated. This adds to the imperative for HASS to contain its costs by
seeking efficiencies and investments that reduce demand.

3 Strategic challenges

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

The projects will take into account the push to decrease the number of
people who need to access residential care by providing more
preventative solutions (such as creative use of assistive technology),
investing in improving people’s health (through re-ablement and
intermediate care) and extending the range of options in the community
(through increased use of personal budgets, availability of extra care
housing etc.). This will shift services to be more in line with what people
have said they want in the future and should also achieve some savings
given the comparative costs of residential and community care packages.

The need for this direction of travel is reinforced by a recent report from
the Department of Health “Use of Resources in Adult Social Care” which
highlights best practice and compares how councils use their resources to
meet care needs. For example, this shows that in York we are spending
more proportionately than the average council on residential care for older
people as compared to community care alternatives.

The projects will also need to be seen in the context of how they fulfill key
national and local strategies that include:

o Our Health, Our Care, Our Say — White paper 2006

a Transforming Adult Social Care LAC (DH) (2008)1

o Shaping the Future of Care Together - Green Paper 2009

aCity of York Long Term Commissioning Strategy for Older People

2006-2021
a York HASS Directorate Plan 2009/10 — 2011/12
a More for York Programme

The vision for the development of significant changes to the way that
services are provided is shaped by four main factors:



Page 75

Annex 1

o changing expectations of older people and the wider community
about the type of care services that they want - with a focus on the
desire to live independently in the community

o the need to increase CYC’s capacity to address the growth in
demand without unaffordable escalation of expenditure

o the delivery of services should be from the provider that offers the
best value to the citizen and customer in terms of cost, quality,
access and effectiveness

o the Council should only deliver services directly where it can
demonstrate it is best placed or it is more appropriate for it to do so.

4. Immediate Service challenges

4.1

4.2

The existing portfolio of CYC in-house residential provision no longer
matches demand or expectations across the board. As at 30" September
2009 there were 23 vacancies in CYC EPHs but a waiting list for
specialist places for older people with mental health problems. These
vacancies are significant and are clearly a drain on resources. The
provision of residential care needs to be re-aligned to supply more of what
people need (‘specialist’ care) and less of what is no longer in such
demand (‘standard’ care).

As the council’s re-ablement service is relatively early on in its
development timescale it is not currently demonstrating sufficient
outcomes for customers (i.e. ceased or significantly reduced packages of
care following 6 weeks of intervention) and it does not have sufficient
capacity to meet all demands. This necessitates the provision of ongoing
packages of support on leaving the service. Consequently, there is a
waiting list of customers for re-ablement and a number people are not
moving on quickly enough to ongoing packages of community care due to
lack of overall home care capacity.

5 Conclusion

The demographic, financial, strategic and service drivers all point to a
pressing need for significant changes in the focus and nature of residential
and community care services.



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 81

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85 Agenda ltem 9

Executive 15" December 2009

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Council Headquarters — Tender Award

Summary
1. This report:

e Presents the process and outcomes of the evaluation of final tenders
for the delivery of the Council’s new headquarters.

e |t recommends Tarras Park Properties York Investors LLP (“Tarras”) as
the preferred bidder and sets out the key elements of their bid.

e |t sets out areas of the bid that require further clarification.

e Asks Members to grant delegated authority to the Project Champion
(Director of City Strategy) in consultation with the Director of
Resources, subject to satisfactory clarification to enter into a contract
with Tarras to deliver the Council’s new Headquarters.

There are 2 Annexes to this report, annexe 2 contains information which is
exempt and cannot be disclosed at present for commercial and legal
reasons. It is envisaged that in due course the Council will make further
information available in accordance with its constitution and information

policy.
Background

2. The case for a new Council headquarters, which is one of the Council’s
corporate imperatives, remains as compelling as ever. The project
undertaken in compliance with the Councils constitution and public
procurement rules makes a significant contribution towards the Council’s
corporate strategy particularly in the areas of an effective organisation and
an inclusive and sustainable city. The accommodation project is integral to
the Council’s ‘More for York’ transformation programme and is on track to
achieve a wide range of benefits:

3. For the customer, in providing a purpose built York Customer Centre
which will be fully flexible, accessible and compliant with the Disability
Discrimination Act (DDA) and provide the single most important focal point
for the new headquarters building. The new customer facility will enable
quick, simple and easy access to the full range of council services in one
place, in a modern customer environment that supports the delivery of the
customer strategy. Customers will no longer have to visit over six different
reception points in and around the city centre to access individual
services.



10.

Page 86

For the environment, the aim is to have a new headquarters building that
is designed to deliver Dbenefits to the environment. lts
redesign/construction and subsequent operation will achieve low
greenhouse gas emissions and a minimum target of 20 per cent
renewable energy, to reduce the future running costs of the building. The
new headquarters will be sustainable in terms of its economic, social and
environmental impact. Its central location will support the vitality of the city
centre, as well as supporting the existing infrastructure and transport links
for customers, visitors and the large volume of staff walking or cycling to
work.

For the business, in providing a modern working environment to support
an effective and efficient business operation. Rationalising 16
administrative offices down to four will achieve significant long-term
savings and fund the cost of the new headquarters building, at no
additional cost to the residents of York. The new headquarters will provide
the potential to share space with partner organisations to support and
improve partnership working and support more collaborative working
between services, resulting in a more joined up and efficient delivery to
customers.

For the City, by providing the opportunity for inward investment to the

City by releasing a number of important historic buildings such as St
Leonard’s Place and Blake Street, which can be sensitively restored and
put to more appropriate use.

At the Executive meeting on 21% October 2008 Members approved the
commencement of a four stage OJEU competitive dialogue procurement
process to support the development of potential solutions for the design
and construction of a new headquarters building. The competitive dialogue
process enables different bidders to develop different solutions to meet
the requirements of the Council. Further reports to the Executive on 3"
February, 14t April and 24" July 2009 have mapped the progress of the
procurement process.

Procurement

We have now entered the final stage (stage 4) of the OJEU competitive
dialogue procurement process which includes the submission of final
tenders from the selected bidders, the final evaluation of the submitted
bids and subject to Members’ approval the award of contract to the
winning bidder.

On 14" September the two selected developers:

e Aviva - Yorkshire House, Rougier Street
e Tarras — West Offices, Station Rise

were invited to submit their final tenders by 5™ October 2009.

The overall procurement process is governed by EU procurement
regulations which stipulates that the Council must assess the tenders
received on the basis of the award criteria and that the make up of the
evaluation team who undertake that assessment must be consistent



11.

12.

13.

Page 87

across the bids. The assessment and marks awarded must be fair and
transparent and the whole procurement and evaluation process must be
robust and stand up to scrutiny and any subsequent challenge.

Throughout October and November the evaluation team, made up of both
internal and external representatives from the project board, the project
team and specialists from planning, sustainable development customer
services, and legal have evaluated each submission using the previously
agreed and published set of weighted financial and qualitative criteria. (see
attached criteria annexe1).

Each bidder has responded positively to the Council’s invitation to enter
into competitive dialogue with the Council and submit tenders for the
delivery of a new Council headquarters. The evaluation process has
identified that the most economically advantageous tender scoring the
most points is West Offices, Station Rise and the preferred bidder is
therefore Tarras. The evaluation scores are contained within the exempt
annexe 2.

West Offices

The West Offices proposal is summarised as follows:

e |t is on a single centrally located site with good sustainable transport
links across the city.

e The building with its historic importance, its attractive setting and
impressive arrivals courtyard will have a civic presence and enhance
the local and built environment.

e Will provide a net internal area of 11,095 sq m. which exceeds our
requirements by approximately 500sq.m

e The additional space and configuration of the building is sufficiently
flexible to support the opportunity for the council to share space in the
new headquarters with other partner organisations.

¢ |n addition, space could be made available for other third parties and in
both cases this would attract additional income for the Council.

e Provides a fully integrated York Customer Centre that is fully inclusive,
welcoming, safe and fully Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) compliant.

e |s sustainable and benefits the environment in its design, construction
and subsequent operation and exceeds the Council’s sustainability
brief.

e Provides the opportunity to deliver a scheme that demonstrates an
excellent example of sustainable regeneration of a historic building
within the city centre, which will become a fine example of the Council’s
sustainable planning policies in action.

e Provides modern and efficient office accommodation for a minimum of
1400 staff, that meets all statutory requirements and offers a fully
inclusive environment supporting an open and interactive culture and
flexible working regime.

e Is deliverable within a design and construction budget of £32m.

e Can be delivered within a realistic programme completed and ready for
occupation by late 2012.

e Has the support of the city’s planners and other consultees including
English Heritage and York Civic Trust.



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 88

e |Is low risk to the Council in terms of cost and time constraints in that
Tarras have fully committed to deliver the project within both the
specified budget and timescales, at their risk.

The West Offices building is located to the south of the River Ouse and in
the heart of the city centre on Station Rise, just off the inner ring road at
Station Road. The property’s main entrance frontage (eastern elevation) is
to Station Rise. The property is visible from Tanner Row/Toft Green along
its southern elevation. The northern elevation faces the historic city walls
and the western elevation faces Hudson House, a 1960s office
development. The property forms part of a wider site, which comprises a
collection of office buildings historically occupied by businesses active in
the railway industries.

West Offices is a Grade 2* listed structure of historical importance to the
city and nationally. The original buildings comprise of mid-19™ century
railway station and hotel with later alterations and additions. The site
retains both architectural interest and historical significance as the
buildings represented the forefront of the early development of railway
buildings, in terms of station and hotel design.

Tarras intend to demolish some of the later additions and construct a large
infill extension, with bridge links, linking to the existing refurbished building.
The old main entrance into what was the station building, along the
southern elevation, will be brought back into use as the main entrance for
visitors/customers of the building. The cellular nature of the existing U-
shaped building prohibits the creation of open plan office space within
these areas and therefore the majority of these existing rooms will be
utilised as meeting rooms and ancillary accommodation. The newly
created building within the centre will provide open plan office
accommodation and natural lighting will be provided at lower levels
through the incorporation of light wells.

Tarras are the freeholder of the site and will transfer a substantial
proportion of the site to the Council as part of the tender. An area to the
south west of the site is being retained for the developer to construct a
potential hotel (retained land). The net internal area of the accommodation
is approximately 500sq.m more than that identified within the development
brief. This, along with the configuration of the accommodation, should
allow for future flexibility with a particular regard to sharing the space with
partner organisations who have already expressed an interest and other
third parties. In both cases this would attract additional income for the
Council.

The site provides vehicular and pedestrian access to Hudson House,
George Stephenson House and NERC Offices (5* hotel). These access
roads must be maintained to the reasonable satisfaction of adjacent
owners. Hudson House retains the right to park no more than nine vehicles
on the site to be sold and Acropolis Properties retain the right to park on
Station Rise. The number of parking bays is not specified in the Title
documents but Acropolis will be liable to pay a fair proportion of the cost of
maintenance of this road. The Council will not be entitled to park its own
vehicles or those of its visitors on Station Rise.

The proposed Conditional Sale and Development Agreement will be
subject to Tarras obtaining satisfactory planning permission with no
onerous planning conditions. Tarras have fully accepted the risks of
managing the development costs and achieving practical completion
before 30" September 2012 within their tender.



20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Page 89

Tarras have worked hard to address the principle planning concerns
expressed by planning officers, English Heritage and other interested
parties in the early stages of the scheme. The removal of later additions
and alterations has strong support from conservation officers and English
Heritage. As the building is a Grade 2* listed building Tarras will need to
continue developing the proposal during design and construction in
conjunction with English Heritage. However, foreseen planning conditions
have principally been identified and included for within the scheme,
minimising the risk.

English Heritage and the city’s Planners support the overall scheme and it
is likely the current scheme would receive support for planning consent.
The scheme has the potential to be an exemplar for integrated historic
buildings and contemporary design. However, alongside the benefits of
working within a historic setting it should be recognised that working within
the constraints of a Grade 2* listed building may compromise operational
efficiencies and future adaptability. In particular, the refurbishment
approach welcomed by English Heritage and the Council’s Conservation
Team within the existing buildings, results in a certain amount of the
existing cellular space having to be retained.

The design offers a good ratio of net to gross areas. However, the
operational efficiency of the building is impacted on by an over provision of
vertical circulation (all existing staircases are being retained for heritage
and fire purposes). This results in a large number of staircases being
required to overcome the changes in existing floor levels and a degree of
complexity in the internal circulation.

A significant proportion of the development is a new build insertion into the
U shaped building. The quality of the new build in conjunction with the
existing will be a critical factor in determining the success of the scheme,
especially given that English Heritage, the Conservation Team and CYC
customers will expect a high standard. Tarras have recognised that further
clarification of the design and specification detailing will be required to
ensure these expectations are achieved.

A consequence of the design means the building will have a very deep
plan, limiting external views and reducing the level of natural daylight
reaching the lower floors. The design to this area will need careful
consideration by Tarras to ensure that not only is the space suitably lit but
also the design creates an ambient working environment to the satisfaction
of Council employees.

The Arrivals Courtyard is an attractive and welcoming space and the
creation of an external breakout space for staff beneath the relocated
glass canopy is a positive additional benefit. The main Customer Centre
area offers a large open flexible space to meet the Council’'s core
requirements. Tarras have proposed a clear security barrier between the
Customer Centre and staff areas. However the security strategy requires
further development as currently visitors to meeting rooms and ancillary
accommodation may need to be escorted.

The Customer Centre still requires some further clarification of detailing to
fully demonstrate how this space will deliver to meet the council's
aspirations and development brief. This does however require careful
management on the Council’s part.



27.

28.

29.

Page 90

Sustainability

The proposal clearly demonstrates and meets the Council’s sustainability
aspirations in relation to low carbon design and operation. In particular:

e Carbon dioxide emissions are estimated at 476 tonnes/annum
compared to the Council’s existing portfolio of 1,620 tonnes/annum, a
reduction of 70%. This saving will make a S|gn|f|cant contribution to the
Council's aim” to reduce carbon dioxide emissions on all our non-
housing activities by 25% by 2013.

e Predicted Energy Performance Assessment (EPC) rating of 15 that
equates to Band A (1-25). The proposal is performing well beyond
similar existing buildings and due to the highly efficient building
services out performing typical newly built buildings.

e The building energy efficiency (159kWh/m2/annum) is 41% better than
the existing accommodation portfolio (271kWh/m2/annum) and 26%
better than CIBSE benchmarks (215kWh/m2/annum).”

e 100% of the building’s heating and hot water will be generated from a
combination of bio diesel Combined Heat and Power (CHP) and bio
diesel boilers. The ventilation and cooling strategy uses an absorption
chiller in the summer months to temper the peaks. Tarras have
identified five potential suppllers for bio diesel three of which meet the
Council’s ethical supply pollcy

e Water consumption would be better than the existing portfolio
(10,648m?® compared to 13,563m? for the existing portfolio). However
Tarras are currently indicating only 9% can be obtained from recycled
water (grey/rainwater harvesting).

Following clarification of the tender, Tarras have confirmed the thermal
performance of the building will meet CIBSE design criteria® and is in line
with the Council's design brief and sustainability policy. Under the
proposed ventilation strategy the building utilises natural ventilation (in line
with the sustainability brief) and will make use of its thermal mass and
night time purging during warmer periods of weather to lower the
temperature of the building. Although predicted temperatures are within
design parameters, the impact of purging and cooling will be limited
subject to seasonal variations in temperature and therefore it should be
noted that on occasions the building could be warm during summer
months. The Council will therefore need to familiarise staff with the
Council’s sustainability policy as part of the overall staff induction of the
building, so they appreciate why the facility is not fully air-conditioned.

Summary

In summary, the West Offices scheme provides CYC with a building that
not only meets their requirements but offers CYC future flexibility within an
attractive city centre setting. It provides the opportunity to deliver a
scheme that demonstrates an excellent example of sustainable

" Carbon Management Program Plan, 2008

T CIBSE TM46: 2008 - Offices

* National or locally produced rape seed oil or recycled cooking oil from UK food processors. Not
alm oil or oils from deforested rainforest land.
CIBSE TM46: 2008 - Offices




30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Page 91

regeneration of a historic building within the city centre and could become
a fine example of the Council’s sustainable planning policies in action.

Tarras are the freeholder of the site they are proposing to transfer to the
Council and undertake development works that will provide the office
accommodation identified in the Development Brief. Tarras have fully
committed to deliver the project within both the specified budget and
timescales at their risk. They have also looked to substantially mitigate
planning and construction risk associated with the scheme.

The scheme is positively supported by English Heritage and the city’s
Planners and it is likely the scheme would receive support for planning
consent with foreseeable planning conditions having principally been
identified and included for within the scheme minimising risk of unforeseen
conditions.

Alongside the benefits of working within a historic setting, CYC will need to
make a long term commitment to maintain the building to a modern office
standard, given its 2* listed status. It should also be recognised that
working within the constraints of a Grade 2* listed building may
compromise future adaptability. The quality of detail elements of the
design and the specification along with aspects of design excellence will
be addressed by clarification before contract award.

Clarification

As part of the procurement process, subject to Members’ approval of the
preferred bidder and prior to the Council entering into a formal contract,
the Council will require further clarification of the successful bid.

Key areas include:

e Tarras team — Further detailing roles, responsibilities and process for
engagement with CYC in developing and implementing the scheme.

e The arrangements in terms of design development and the engagement
of CYC to jointly resolve the development of :

- the detailing of design and quality specification to meet the high
standards expected, as detailed in para 23

- the ambient working environment set out in para 24
- the security strategy set out in para 25

- the detailing of the customer centre within the Council’s brief and
developer’s cost constraints as set out in para 26 above

e Clarification of whole life costings.
Consultation

As part of the procurement process each developer was required to take
part in a process of public and staff consultation to gather
information/views/ comments to inform their proposals.

In May, a twelve page publication was sent to every household in the city,
the business community and Council staff. The document provided
information about each scheme and a questionnaire inviting feedback on a



37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

Page 92

number of aspects of the new HQ project. This included location, ease of
access, customer services, design and sustainability, cost effectiveness,
value for money and being kept informed. The public were not asked to
choose between the two options due to the nature of the evaluation
process being used following EU procurement rules.

The consultation was also supported through the Council’s website and a
three day exhibition held in the Mansion House, where staff and public
were able to talk to each developer about their scheme.

Feedback

Tarras have used the feedback from public and staff consultation events to
inform their proposals. The feedback from the ‘open comments’ received
in the returned questionnaires was very positive and supportive of the
scheme.

Of the 362 ‘open comments’ specifically about West Offices, the three
main areas of interest related to:

Heritage - the historical significance of the building - 188 (52%)
Location - particularly green and quiet places - 65 (18%)
Appearance - general attractiveness of buildings - 51 (14%)

General feedback from the public rated the most important sustainable
features in a new headquarters to be:

. re-use of existing building structures and fabric

. sustainable public transport to the new HQ

. a building and systems that are highly energy efficient (e.g. in its use of
lighting and heating, etc).

Response

Where concerns were expressed, these related to either cost control or
design of the new elements of the scheme.

Responding to cost concerns, Tarras are confident that they have firmly
addressed these issues in their proposals with the early involvement of a
building contractor who has worked on key elements of the design. Where
design was of concern Tarras have adopted a collaborative approach to
working with Planning, English Heritage and have employed a consultant
team experienced in working with listed buildings in York.

Dialogue with staff user groups helped to inform the internal layout
requirements submitted as part of the West Offices Proposal, however it is
acknowledged that this is an on-going process which will continue
throughout the further development of the design following contract award.

There will be a further round of public consultation following the award of
contract during and prior to the submission of a planning application.



45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

Page 93

Further Consultation

In December, a small leader article will appear in Your City directing
residents to the council’s website for further information about the results
of the evaluation of the two preferred schemes. This will be followed up
with a more detailed feature article in the February edition of Your City
which will provide further detailed information regarding the proposed
scheme and informing residents about the forthcoming opportunities to be
involved in further consultation on the council’s new headquarters.

A second set of public consultation will be held in February /March prior to
the submission of a formal planning application in May. Residents and staff
will be able to have their say and influence the final design on the chosen
scheme through the council’s website, in writing to the project office or at a
public consultation event to be held in the city centre.

There will be a further opportunity for the public to have their say on the
proposal during the formal planning process once the submission has
been made.

The council website will contain further detail about these events nearer
the time.

Next Steps

Subject to Member approval of the preferred developer as Tarras, each
bidder will be formally notified as to the outcome of procurement process
on 16" December 2009.

This will be followed by a period of clarification with the preferred bidder in
December/early January 2010, prior to formally entering into a contract in
late January 2010 (subject to a satisfactory process of clarification).

Timescales

The indicative timetable for the overall completion of the new
headquarters is as follows:

Contract Award January 2010

Design Development January to August 2010
Pre-planning Consultation March 2010

Planning Application April / May 2010
Planning Approval July / August 2010
Contractor Appointment September 2010

Start on site December 2010
Practical Completion September 2012

Corporate Priorities

The provision of new accommodation and the consequential improvement
in services to our customers will contribute to all of the Council’s corporate
priorities. The project will feed into and be a key component of the
Council’s ‘More for York’ programme.



51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

Page 94

Implications
Financial

The budget for the accommodation project is £43.804 million as reported
to Executive in June 2008; this includes the construction budget of £32
million. The final tender from Tarras for the delivery of the Council’'s new
headquarters is maintained within this £32m construction budget and any
additional costs incurred are the responsibility of the developer as long as
the Council does not change any of the parameters relating to the design
brief specification.

If the scheme proceeds with the prospective bidder Tarras, the costs will
be closely monitored throughout the building construction process. Whole
life costs are being clarified by Tarras, to ensure that the future whole life
costs of running the new headquarters have been adequately accounted
for. Whole life costs are the costs involved in owning, maintaining, running
an asset over its life.

The whole life cost information supplied by Tarras has an impact on the
overall net present value (NPV) saving of the project, as does the timing of
the construction works. (The NPV saving is the future savings that will be
made from moving into the new headquarters over a 30 year period
discounted to current day prices).

The report to Executive on 21 September 2009, estimated that the NPV
would be £5.0m and that there would be an “early years deficit” figure to
be funded from the venture fund reserve of £1.69m. It should be noted
that a review of the capital receipts shows that due to the timing
differences of capital receipts being received later than previous reported,
the position of the “early years deficit” has changed to £1.89m. (an
increased cost to the venture fund reserve of £0.2m). The timing of capital
receipts are reviewed in conjunction with property services on a regular
basis and change depending on current market conditions.

Information supplied by Tarras during the final stage of the tender process
has been used to update the finance model, which can be used to monitor
the project savings against in future. The NPV saving is forecast to be
£4.70m, £0.3m lower than previously estimated and the “early years
deficit” figure £1.93m, £0.04m higher. (This will be an increased cost to the
venture fund reserve). Two factors contribute to the change in the NPV
saving and the “early years deficit” figure. An increase in whole life costs
has an unfavourable affect, whilst the reduction in finance costs has a
positive affect and goes towards partially netting off the increase in the
whole life costs.

The whole life costs estimated by Tarras are higher than those forecast in
the original model. This is substantially due, as described in paragraph 17
above, to the increase in the net internal area of the accommodation
being approximately 500sq.m more than that identified within the
development brief. However, this external accommodation should provide
the opportunity to generate additional income, which could be offset
against the higher whole life costs incurred.

The finance costs have reduced using the construction budget profile
provided by Tarras as there is a change in timing of the borrowing required
in the earlier years of construction / refurbishment. This is because the
construction budget profile is slightly weighted to build completion of the



58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

Page 95

project life in 2012/13, and therefore has a positive affect on the NPV
saving and “early years deficit” figure.

The construction budget estimated in the original model was £0.24m
greater than that presented in the Tarras however this does not make any
difference to the NPV saving or the “early years deficit” figure as the
difference is incorporated elsewhere in the remainder of the £43.804m
Administrative Accommodation budget.

It should be noted that the payment profile of the construction budget, the
profile of the remaining Administrative Accommodation budget and the
timing and value of the capital receipts will be subject to slight fluctuations
over the next 3 years, leading to minor variations in the funding profile of
the project, in the NPV saving and the “early years deficit” figure. The
change in the NPV saving to £4.7m and the increase of £0.24m in the
‘early years deficit” figure to £1.93m, which are to be funded from the
venture fund reserve, will be included for executive approval in the Capital
Monitor 3 report.

Financial Viability — As part of the procurement process in order to ensure
that the bidder is financially viable a review was carried out taking into
account the organisations financial standing and other relevant financial
information. The review of Tarras shows that the company has a high
financial strength in its industry and also a very good credit rating.

Legal
See exempt Annexe 2.
Equalities

Work is currently underway to complete a full set of Equality Impact
Assessments (EIA’s) as an integral part of the Accommodation Project.

Liaison with the Corporate Equality and Inclusion Team has been
undertaken to ensure a corporate approach and effective communication
is in place at all times to benefit the process. Initial work involved the
Council’'s Staff Equalities Reference Group examining key issues for
consideration at its meeting of the 27 April 2009 which proved beneficial
and raised some key points for examination.

These work outputs were then used as part of an Equality Impact
Assessment (EIA) Workshop involving the Accommodation Project Team,
the Directorate Equality Leads network and Corporate Equality and
Inclusion Team members to shape the ‘groupings’ of ElIA’s into three
areas. These areas (Design and Construction, Facilities Management and
Communications) have a broad representation of officers working on them
on an ongoing basis to deliver and identify the EIA’s required, their known
outcomes to be addressed and key timescales to take them through to the
commissioning and beyond of the chosen headquarters scheme in 2012.
The Equalities Staff Reference Group and the Social Inclusion Working
Group will also be involved throughout this process.

Risk Management

The accommodation project is managed within a project management
framework adopting the principles of the well-established PRINCE 2



66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

Page 96

project management methodology. This was a key component of the
accommodation project Business Case approved by Members in
November 2005.

The major controls for the project include the approved business case,
project plan, risk register, issues log, exception reports and end of stage
assessments. The project risk register is maintained on Magique, the
Council’s corporate risk reporting system and this provides full reporting
and traceability of the project’s risks.

The project risks were reviewed at the Audit and Governance committee
on 21% September 2009.

The proposed agreement with Tarras will be subject to Tarras obtaining
satisfactory planning permission. It is understood the current scheme is
likely to receive positive support for planning consent with foreseeable
planning conditions having principally been identified and included for
within the scheme, minimising risk of unforeseen conditions.

Under the terms of the CSDA Tarras would not have grounds to determine
the agreement if delays are experienced or additional costs incurred as a
result of adverse ground conditions or archaeological issues, or indeed if
the building contract price comes in at more than they had expected. All
of these risks will be transferred to Tarras.

The key risks identified at this stage to the project are addressed in
exempt Annexe 2.

Recommendations
Executive are asked to:

. Note the content of the report and in particular the outcome scores
of the evaluation of the tenders for the delivery of a new Council
headquarters building.

. Approve — West Offices, Station Rise — Tarras as the Preferred
Bidder.

« Grant delegated authority to the Project Champion (Director of City
Strategy) in consultation with the Director of Resources to enter into
a contract with Tarras following agreement of the final terms of the
Conditional Sale and Development Agreement and satisfactory
resolution to any outstanding items of clarification.

Reason: To enter into a Conditional Sale and Development Agreement to provide
a new Council headquarters



Page 97

Contact Details
Authors: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:

Maria Wood Bill Woolley
Project Director-Accommodation Director of City Strategy
Tel N0.553354

Report v Date
lan Asher Approved
Head of Strategic Business &
Design, Property Services
Tel No. 553379
Specialist Implications Officer(s)
Financial
Name: Louise Branford-White
Title: Technical Finance Manager
TelNo. 551187
Wards Affected: Acomb, Clifton, Fishergate, Guildhall, Heworth, Heworth All

Without, Micklegate

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

22" November 2005 Executive - Accommodation Project — Business Case
3" February 2009 Executive - Accommodation Project — Update Report

14t April 2009 Executive - Accommodation — Update Report
21%" July 2009 Executive -Accommodation — Update Report
Annexes

Annexe 1 — Evaluation Criteria

Exempt Annexe 2 — Evaluation Scores/Legal information: Conditional Sale and
Development Agreement and Top Ten Project Risks



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 99

Annexe 1

Procurement Criteria

The council will consider applications on the basis of the Most Economically
Advantageous Tender criteria being: -

Financial — 40%
Quality — 60%

Financial Criteria

Whole life cost

Capital cost

Financial ability to deliver

Quality Criteria

Description

Site assembly

The extent to which the bidder has control of an
appropriate site sufficient to meet the council’s needs.

Timescales The extent to what the bidder can complete all work to
enable the City of York Council to occupy the new
premises by the end of 2012 or earlier.

Planning The extent to which the bidder’s development proposal
is likely to achieve all necessary consents.

Buildability The extent to which the building proposal is feasible in

terms of cost and design.

Risk to delivery

The extent to which the bidder’s proposals pose risks to
the project, e.g. Archaeology, listed buildings,
contamination.

Building efficiency

The extent to which the bidder’s proposals meet council
needs efficiently.

Customer facilities

The extent to which the customer facilities meet the brief
and enable the council to, deliver its services and
promote the customer first ethos exemplified by the
‘More for York’ programme and customer service
strategy.

Accommodation

The extent to which the business and staff
accommodation will meet the brief and effectively
balance the needs of people, process and place.

Enhancement of
built environment
and public realm

The extent to which the bidder’s proposal will deliver an
outstanding example of office, urban and civic design.

Carbon saving

The extent to which the building will be carbon neutral. If
not, the extent to which it can achieve the best possible
reduction in carbon emissions.

Sustainability

The extent to which the design and construction of the
building demonstrate sustainability, including
sustainability in use To what extent will it support council
targets and approach.




Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 101

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 105 Agenda ltem 10

YORK

c’j\%‘ CITY OF
& CouUNCIL

Executive 15 December 2009

Report of the Director of Resources

Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009

Summary

1 The purpose of this paper is to present to Executive the Audit
Commission’s final reports for the 2009 Comprehensive Area
Assessment.

2 The council is pleased to receive the Comprehensive Area Assessment
reports set out the final results for 2009, these are attached as annexes
as follows:

e Area assessment with one green flag for ‘working together for
disabled children’ (Annex A) and no red flags (see Annex B for
summary version, Annex C for full version);

e Organisational assessment with an overall score of 2,
Performing Adequately (see Annex D for summary version,
Annex E for full version);

e Annual Audit Letter with a clear audit opinion on the council’s
financial statements for 2008/09 (see Annex F). The content of
this Letter has already been published in the Annual
Governance Report, presented to the Audit & Governance
Committee on 21 December 2009.

3 The final reports in addition to other performance information relating to
the city have been published by the Audit Commission on the ‘One
Place’ website as from 9 December 20009.

4. The council’s detailed response to these reports is contained in a
further report called “Response to CAA 2009” published in agenda item
11 for this meeting.



Page 106

Background

The process

Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) is the new framework for the
independent assessment of local public services in England; CAA was
introduced in April 2009.

The CAA framework is area based and focused on outcomes delivered
by councils working alone or in partnership. It is designed to be more
proportionate than previous performance frameworks, and is aligned
with frameworks in other public sectors. The development of CAA
came at a time when government was committing to an overhaul of
performance management. CAA has been developed to work closely
with the new Local Area Agreements (LAAs) and the National Indicator
Set as part of a single system.

By bringing together evidence across different local services, the Audit
Commission believe that CAA is more effective in driving improvement
than separate assessments for each sector can be.

CAA has two main elements which inform each other:

e An area assessment that looks at how well local public services
are delivering better results for local people across the whole
area, focusing on agreed priorities such as health, economic
prospects and community safety, and how likely they are to
improve; and

e Organisational assessments for councils, combining the external
auditor’'s assessment of value for money in the use of resources
with a joint inspectorate assessment of council service
performance, for example Audit Commission, Ofsted and Care
Quality Commission.

The area assessment is not be scored, it is a narrative report providing
an overview of key priorities for the area, overall success and
challenges, and a summary of prospects for improvement highlighting
where different or further action is required. It identifies significant
contributions made by individual partners and, if need be, where a
partner organisation needs to do more. The area assessment may
include green and red ‘flags’:

e Green flags highlight exceptional performance or outstanding
improvement from which others can learn

e Red flags represent significant concerns about outcomes or
future prospects where more or different actions are required.



10

Page 107

The organisational assessment is carried out annually across all
councils, fire and rescue services (FRSs), police authorities and PCTs.
Organisational assessment will include two elements:

e use of resources

e managing performance

The organisational assessment is scored for the use of resources and
performance elements separately. These two scores will then be
combined to give an overall organisational score as follows:

Score Descriptor Performance
1 An organisation that does not meet minimum
requirements Performs poorly
2 An organisation that meets only minimum
requirements Performs adequately
3 An organisation that exceeds minimum
requirements Performs well
4 An organisation that significantly exceeds
minimum requirements Performs excellently

11

12

13

14

The Area and organisational assessments are being published
annually; the first round of CAA results are to be published on 9
December 2009. The Audit Commission is committed to making the
CAA more relevant and accessible to the public and has adopted the
‘oneplace’ brand for public reporting to help this. The main vehicle for
publication will be on the ‘oneplace’ website where results of both area
and organisational assessments are accessible by geographical area.
The Audit Commission envisages ‘oneplace’ becoming a powerful tool
for public accountability.

Summary Results 2009
Area Assessment:

York has been assessed on how well it delivers against its seven aims
in the Sustainable Community Strategy - to create a Thriving City,
Sustainable City, Safer City, Learning City, Inclusive City, City of
Culture and Healthy City.

The council is delighted that the city has been awarded a Green Flag
for its achievements and innovative working with disabled children.
Strong partnership working, including the involvement of parents, is
having a significant and positive impact on the lives of children with
disabilities in York. Annex A gives fuller details of the submission
made by the council for the Green Flag, which demonstrates how the
council and its partners are at the forefront of excellent service delivery.

York has one of only seven green flags in the Yorkshire & Humber
Region and significantly no red flags. Nationally there are 62 red flags
in areas of concern with a lack of future prospects.




Page 108

15 York is quite unique, with only two other authorities (Slough &
Wolverhampton) matching York’s CAA profile in terms of:

achieving 1 green flag and no red flag

scoring only a 2 overall for the organisational assessment, despite
scoring a 3 on managing performance. Most councils in this
position score a 3 overall (see ‘Analysis’ below).

16 The area assessment in summary:

a.

City of Culture - highlights the satisfaction amongst residents
regarding art galleries and museums in the city, as well as a
lower level of satisfaction with leisure and sporting facilities.
Healthy City - praises York as a healthy city, where life
expectancy is higher than the national average. The number of
early deaths from heart disease, strokes and cancer has
reduced in recent years. The number of adults taking part in
regular physical activity, however, is decreasing.

Inclusive City - highlights York’s growing BME population and
that people from these backgrounds are less likely to have
positive experiences in the city. It recognises the work that has
already been done to tackle issues of equality, but also raises
concerns about high house prices in York and the impact that
has on home ownership.

Learning City - rates York’s educational and children’s services
as excellent quality and highlights the city’s exam results as
amongst the best in the country. The OFSTED children’s
services annual rating for York has been confirmed as
‘performing excellently’.

Safer City - rates York as a safe city, where overall levels of
crime have fallen in recent years. Youth offending is also
relatively low, but alcohol and drug misue is a significant
contributory factor to crime.

Sustainable City - praises the work of organisations making
York more sustainable, for example through its status as Cycling
City and the use of Park & Ride as particularly good. The
assessment praises the city for planning to mitigate further
flooding in the future as a result of climate change. Particularly
strong performance has been highlighted in reducing waste and
increasing recycling in partnership with communities, with this
being raised as a potential Green Flag area for the future.
Thriving City - rates York’s local economy as strong, with levels
of unemployment below regional and national levels and weekly
wages high. It recommends that the main area of focus should
be on ensuring that local people can acquire the necessary skills
to get the new jobs that are coming to the city, as well as helping
businesses weather the recession.



17

18

19

20

21

Page 109

Organisational Assessment:

The council has been awarded a score of 3 ‘Managing Performance’
within its services and a 2 for its ‘Use of Resources’. The Audit
Commission weighted combined score for the organisation is 2
'performing adequately'. See ‘Analysis’ below for national comparisons
relating to this score.

The Managing Performance score reflects the continuing strong
performance scores across the council with Children’s Services
continuing excellent performance and in respect of adult care services,
the council responding well to address the need for improvement in its
services provided for older people.

Within the Use of Resources score there are elements of stronger
performance in some areas, in particular the council's provision of
value for money services, its risk management arrangements and
elements of its commissioning of services. The report acknowledges
that the council has already embarked on a challenging programme to
deliver £15m efficiency savings over a three year period, the need for
which was identified through our own self assessment processes. The
successful effective delivery of the ‘More for York’ programme should
have a positive impact on the council's future use of resources.

Annual Audit Letter:

The Letter summarises the findings from the District Auditor’s audit of
the council’s 2008/09 financial statements, giving an unqualified audit
opinion, and the work undertaken to assess the council’s
arrangements to secure value for money in its use of resources. This
confirms the outcomes reported earlier this year by the Audit
Commission in the Annual Governance Statement (Audit &
Governance Committee 21% September 2009).

The Council’s Response

The council’s response to the CAA reports is outlined in item 11 on this
meeting’s agenda, which also updates progress against the council’s
Improvement Plan 2009/10.

Consultation

22

The Audit Commission consulted with the council and its partners on
the CAA findings before presenting the final report.



Page 110

Options

23 No options are required in this report.

Analysis

24 Unlike York, the vast majority of councils who scored a 3 for managing

performance and a 2 for Use of Resources, received a 3 overall for
their Organisational Assessment:

. Authorities in
AuthAolll'ities District S_ll_r;g:e Yorkshire &
Humber
Scored 3 for organisational 71 24 29 4
Assessment made up of Wakefield
3 — managing performance Scarborough
2 -UoR Harrorgate
Hambleton

25 A much smaller proportion of councils received an overall score of 2 for
their organisational assessment, having scored a 3 for managing
performance and a 2 for Use of Resources:

Authorities in

All Single

Authorities District Tier Yorkshire &
Humber
Scored 3 for organisational 19 10 9 2
Assessment made up of York
3 — managing performance Richmondshire
2 - UoR

26 Also, other councils who have scored 4 (excellent) for Children's
services, also scored well on their overall organisational assessment.
However in comparison to Kingston on Thames (who have the same
scores for Use of Resources and managing performance), York's
overall Organisational Assessment score has been labelled a 2 rather
than a 3 (see table below). It should also be noted that Kingston upon
Thames received a red flag, whereas York did not.

D
@)
Q
Q
Q
@)
(@)

D

Q
O
Q
U
U
D
O
Q
D
O
D
O
>

York

Blackburn with Darwen

Camden

City of London

Kensington and Chelsea

Kingston upon Thames

Lewisham

O |O |—= |O O |0 |— |0 =
W W N (W W |~ |W]|N [
W W W (AW I|N R
E P E N E N F N P P O

= A a NN O |-

W WWAsd | |W L

Tower Hamlets




Page 111

Corporate Priorities
27 The delivery of the council’'s priorities through the sustainable
community strategy and the corporate strategy is a fundamental part of
the comprehensive area assessment, both at a citywide level and at a
more local level through the organisation assessment.
Implications
28
(a) Financial - There are no implications
(b) Human Resources (HR) - There are no implications
(c) Equalities - There are no implications
(d) Legal - There are no implications
(e) Crime and Disorder - There are no implications

(f) Information Technology (IT) - There are no implications

(g) Property - There are no implications.

Risk Management

29 Comprehensive Area Assessment is a key strategic risk area for the
council, which is being monitored by CMT and the Audit & Governance
Committee.

Recommendations

30 Executive members are asked to consider the content of this report
and its annexes in context of national comparisons, and in conjunction
with next item on the agenda for this meeting entitled ‘CAA Response’.

Reason

To ensure that members are aware of inspection and audit outcomes,
recognise the achievements and also areas for improvement identified
in the report.



Page 112

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Pauline Stuchfield lan Floyd
Assistant Director of Resources Director of Resources
(Customer Service &
Governance)
Report Approved N Date 7.12.09

Tel: 01904 4551706
Marilyn Summers

Head of Performance and
Business Assurance

Tel: 01904 551723

Specialist Implications Officer(s) Not applicable

Wards Affected Not applicable an [ ]

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers

Comprehensive Area Assessment (Framework Document)
published by the Audit Commission
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/localgov/audit/caa/pages/caaframework.aspx

Annexes

Annex A Green Flag Submission

Annex B Area Assessment summary report

Annex C Area Assessment detailed report

Annex D Organisational Assessment summary report
Annex E Organisational Assessment detailed report
Annex F The Annual Audit Letter



Page 113

Annex A

York — Consideration of Green Flag Status for:

Integrated Services For Disabled Children

There are few more important challenges which face local government than ensuring
the individualised needs of our most vulnerable citizens are fully met. The position of
children with complex difficulties and disabilities has been the source of national
concern and subsequent high profile programmes. York is significantly on the front
foot of this agenda — driving real partnership improvement with genuine full parental
engagement.

Ofsted judged our services for children with learning difficulties and/or disabilities to
be “outstanding” in 2008, and the drive for still further improvement has continued
relentlessly. Meeting the needs of disabled children, young people and their families
is a strategic priority for the city. This is clearly articulated in the Corporate Strategy
for an Inclusive City, the Local Area Agreement and the Children & Young People’s
Plan 2009 — 2012, The needs of disabled children and young people are intrinsically
woven through all our planning.

A well-embedded understanding of the universal responsibility for inclusion
underpins the drive of all our colleagues to further improve services for disabled
children, young people and their carers. There is a strong multi-agency commitment
to provide personalised services across the whole range of services within health,
education and the voluntary sector. For example Young People Services, specialist
teaching and social care services, a voluntary agency and the parent forum are
working in partnership to provide a pioneering service of personalised mentoring
support and increased access to leisure opportunities.

“Excellent multi-agency working is undertaken within strong working relationships
and demonstrates a keen sense of responsibility across the agencies with regard to
inclusion.” (Ofsted 2008)

The recently published, unique City of York Charter for Disabled Children 2009-2012
and the accompanying “Our Promise” booklet demonstrates to parents the progress
made in the city to-date, plans for the future and the difference this will make for
them.

This extension and expansion of the “Every Disabled Child Matters Local Authority
Charter”, written in consultation with parent/carers, young people and partner
agencies, has been welcomed wholeheartedly by parent/carers across the city.

In early 2009, York gained the highest score in the country in the NI54 survey, which
asked parents with disabled children to rate health, education, social care provision
and support based on the Aiming High for Disabled Children Core Offer. Ahead of

CAA — York’s Area Assessment/Case for a Green Flag/ Integrated Services For
Disabled Children Page 1 of 3



Page 114

Annex A
the national recommendation to improve information and feedback to families, we
launched the booklet “You Said, We Did”. This booklet ensures that parents know
they are listened to and, as a result, services have been shaped and changed in
order to meet their needs. It has been highlighted and nationally acclaimed by Kate
Sturdy, Assistant Director for DCSF, with responsibility for Aiming High for Disabled
Children as an example of good practice.

The strength of these services lies in the underpinning consultation and engagement
with disabled children, young people and their parents. “Children with LDD have a
clear voice in the services and activities which support them.” (Ofsted 2008). For
example, disabled young people have completed accessibility surveys of leisure
services and supported schools in writing their Disability Equality Schemes.

Services have been responsive to this and have implemented the changes
recommended.

Our well established parent forum, CANDI, (Children and Inclusion) is a dynamic
group that has co- written, and jointly leads, two levels of unique disability equality
training for all staff and universal providers. Recently showcased by “Together for
Disabled Children”, CANDI supports participation of parents and young people at
every level and has helped to ensure parent / carer representation at all of the
strategic planning for a in the City.

Exemplary work is undertaken in the city to ensure the early identification of children
and families’ and that they are supported through outstanding Early Support services
and close multi-agency working. In 2008 “The efficiency with which statutory
assessments of children and young people with LDD are made” (Audit Commission
Survey of Schools’ Views of the Local Authority) was ranked first in the country.

Pupils make good progress at school and there are excellent arrangements to
support them through points of transition. The new co-located multi-agency
Transitions Team supports young people aged 14-25 through a seamless service,
improving outcomes for young people and their families. A successful, innovative bid
means that the team will shortly be moving to purpose built premises on the site of
the only secondary special school in York. This nationally recognised team
(designated as being in “Offer One” by the National Transitions Support Team — one
of 24 in the country) includes independent travel training, children and adults social
care support, participation support and provision of shared and independent
housing.

In 2009, partners developed an innovative response to the needs of young people
and parents for further information, advice and guidance about the options available
to them when they leave school. The ground breaking Opportunities Fair of 2009
was hailed as a great success by young people, families and providers. Participants
received one to one advice, face to face contact with providers and workshop
taster activities, designed to raise young people’s aspirations and support them in
making decisions about their future.

“I think it was brilliant because it gave me a chance to show what | can do...made
me feel very proud of people and MYSELF” (young person)

CAA — York’s Area Assessment/Case for a Green Flag/ Integrated Services For
Disabled Children Page 2 of 3



Page 115

Annex A
In summary, outcomes for disabled children and young people have been judged to
be outstanding, are consistently ahead of comparator authorities and continue to
further improve. The 2009 Audit Commission Survey of School’s Views of the Local
Authority placed the City in the top quartile of performance with seven questions
relating to children and young people with LDD being ranked first amongst our
statistical neighbours. With high performance and low levels of funding, it can be
said that York provides outstanding value for money in this area.

The achievement of Green Flag Status for our Integrated Services for Disabled
Children will recognise, celebrate and further strengthen a set of arrangements,
which have already delivered significant improvement in the lives of disabled
children, young people and their families in York.

And if still not convinced we attach a human perspective — a letter received just last
week which describes the experience of just one parent but which so passionately
endorses our success in providing inclusive education and integrated support
services to our disabled children and their families. (not attached for public view
privacy reasons).

CAA — York’s Area Assessment/Case for a Green Flag/ Integrated Services For
Disabled Children Page 3 of 3



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 117

York

Area Assessment (Summary version)

Dated 9 December 2009

for an independent overview
of local public services




Area Assessment

2 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 118

York at a glance

This independent assessment by six inspectorates sets out how well local
public services are tackling the major issues in York. It says how well they are
delivering better results for local people and how likely these are to improve in
future. If, and only if, our assessment shows that the following special
circumstances are met in relation to a major issue, we use flags to highlight
our judgements. We use a green flag to highlight where others can learn from
outstanding achievements or improvements or an innovation that has very
promising prospects of success. We use a red flag to highlight where we have
significant concerns about results and future prospects that are not being
tackled adequately. This means that local partners need to do something
more or different to improve these prospects.

Green flags - exceptional performance or

innovation that others can learn from

Green flag: Working together for disabled children

Red flags - significant concerns, action

needed

No red flags have been identified for York

The local area

York has been a centre of government, religion, education, commerce,
entertainment and transport for 2000 years. The City and its surrounding area
include the historic walled city, the suburbs and a large area of countryside.
Four million visitors each year bring wealth into the area as well as disruption
and congestion.

The total population is 195,400, 4.9 per cent of which come from black and
minority ethnic (BME) communities. The proportion of people from BME
communities doubled between 1991 and 2001 and is expected to grow
further in the next few years.

York's population is growing and is projected to rise by 4.2 per cent between
2001 and 2011 and by a further 8.3 per cent up to 2021. The four institutions
of further and higher education bring the total number of students in York to
around 20,000 (or approximately one-tenth of the population). York's four
million visitors each year boost the local economy but place significant
demands on the transport system.

York's public services have agreed the following challenges that they need to



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 119

tackle:

The City of Culture
The Healthy City
The Inclusive City
The Learning City
The Safer City

The Sustainable City
The Thriving City

The next section tells you how York's public services are doing in each of their
local priority areas.

How is York doing?

The City of Culture

Local partners want to inspire residents and visitors to free their creative
talents and make York the most active city in the country. They plan to
achieve this by providing high quality cultural and sporting activities for all.
Public satisfaction with museums and art gallaries and parks and open spaces
is among the highest in the country.

Four million tourists visit the city each year, attracted by a number of the city's
cultural attractions including York Minster, the National Railway Museum and
the Yorvik Viking Centre. These facilities are well regarded by both visitors
and residents of the city, and a City of Festivals programme provides year-
round cultural activities for local people.

However, local people are less satisfied with the quality of local sports
centres. York is home to a large variety of sporting organisations, with around
350 sports clubs based in local communities. Public sector partners are
working with these sports clubs to provide activities for local people,
particularly those in the poorer parts of the city, although there is a lack of
public sports and recreation facilities to meet the needs of local people.

The Healthy City

Partners want York to be a place where residents enjoy long healthy and
independent lives. The city's strategic partnership - Without Walls - plans to
achieve this by supporting people to make healthy lifestyle choices. They also
want to develop health and social care services quick to respond to those that
need them.

York is a healthy city. Life expectancy is high and the number of early deaths

from heart disease, strokes and cancer has reduced significantly in recent
years. However, there are differences across the city with people in some

3 York



Area Assessment

4  York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 120

poorer parts of the city dying up to five years earlier than in more well-off
areas.

Several other issues are becoming more significant. Adults are not as
physically active as they should be and this is contributing to increasing
obesity. Binge drinking is also increasing and has resulted in an increase in
alcohol-related hospital admissions. The number of teenage pregnancies has
increased. Drug misuse in York is above the national average and more needs
to be done to tackle the problem.

The standard of general health care is good, although the quality of care for
adults with mental health problems, whether in hospital or in their own
homes, needs to be improved. Social care services perform well but there are
plans to improve these further.

The Inclusive City

Local partners want York's citizens to feel included in the life of the area.
They plan to achieve this by improving prospects for all, tackling poverty and
exclusion and making services and facilities easy to access.

York's community is changing, with an increasing number of people from
black and minority ethnic (BME) backgrounds coming to live in the city.
Although most local people think York is a pleasant place to live people from
BME communities are much less positive about the city. Public sector partners
are taking action to develop their understanding of the issues facing BME
communities and have recognised that more needs to be done to meet the
needs of this group of people.

The needs of other groups, such as older people, children and young people,
and people with disabilities, are more likely to be met. And much work is
going on to ensure people from the less well-off parts of the city are not
disadvantaged. Public sector agencies are working together to help people
from these neighbourhoods into employment and make sure they get the
benefits they are entitled to.

York is an expensive place to live and home ownership is beyond the reach of
many local people. Increasing the supply of affordable housing remains a
major issue for public sector partners. Some progress has been made but,
because of the current economic downturn, it is unlikely that targets for the
next two years will be met. Homelessness in the area is higher than
elsewhere, particularly for young people.

The Learning City

The city's strategic partnership - Without Walls - wants to make sure that
local people have access to world class education and training facilities and
provision. Partners want people to develop the skills and aspirations they need
to play an active part in society and contribute to the life of the city.

York's children and young people can take advantage of good quality
education in the city. Most of the city's schools perform well and the city's



Area Assessment

5 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 121

universities and further education colleges have a good reputation.

Ofsted has rated the City Council's services for children and young people as
performing excellently. A review in 2008 by the Audit Commission and Ofsted
rated the city's arrangements for keeping the city's children safe as
outstanding. Exam results for York's schools are consistently among the
highest in the country.

But children from the poorer parts of the city do not do as well as other
children, and this gap is wider than in many other parts of the country. This
also applies to a small number of pupils from black and minority ethnic (BME)
backgrounds.

Fewer of York's young people from poorer backgrounds go on to higher
education than in other parts of the country. However, most young people do
go into education, employment or training when they leave school and
opportunities for adult education are improving.

Skill levels in the city are high in comparison with local areas in Yorkshire and
Humberside and among the highest nationally. But more needs to be done to
enable all local people to gain the skills they need to take advantage of the
new industries arriving in the city. Partners in the city know this and are
working together to tackle the problem.

The Safer City

The Without Walls Partnership wants to make York a safer city with low crime
rates and high public satisfaction with the city's safety record.

York is a safe place to live. Overall levels of crime have fallen consistently in
recent years although the fear of crime, though reducing, remains an issue for
local people. Youth offending rates are low when compared to other areas,
although the number of young people who re-offend is relatively high.

Drug and alcohol misuse continues to be a significant contributory factor to
crime in the city. One issue of particular concern in York is the level of cycle
theft - particularly as the city is nationally recognised as a cycling city. There
has been some success in improving road safety, particularly in more rural
areas, which has resulted in a fewer road casualties.

The Sustainable City

York's partnership (the Without Walls Partnership) is aiming to reduce its
impact on the environment while maintaining York's special qualities and
enabling the city and its communities to grow and thrive.

Good work by local organisations is making York a greener more sustainable
place to live, work and visit. Recycling rates have improved because of this
strong partnership working and are now among the highest levels of
performance nationally.

Investment in park and ride and developing cycling routes through the City is



Area Assessment

6 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 122

reducing traffic and giving people healthier choices for travelling into the City.
The City was recently awarded Cycling City Status in recognition of its
progress.

There's a strong focus on reducing the CO2 people in York produce as they
go about their lives. Partners are working well together to plan for the
increasing risk of flooding that will go with climate change.

The Thriving City

Partners aim to support York's economy to make sure that employment rates
remain high and that local people benefit from new job opportunities.

Despite job losses in recent years from the loss of traditional industries such as
the railways and chocolate making, York's local economy remains strong.
Levels of unemployment are below national and regional averages and
weekly pay levels are high. The tourism industry remains buoyant despite the
recent economic downturn and new jobs, many in science-related industries,
are being created.

The main challenges facing the city are to help local people to weather the
recession and to make sure that local people have the training and skills they
need to get the newly created jobs. The number of people with formal
qualifications is higher than many other cities nationally, but the challenge is
to make sure those qualifications are relevant to the new jobs being created
as the local economy changes. The need for new economic development in
the city also has to be balanced against the need to preserve the historic
nature of the city, which is one of the main attractions for tourists.



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 123

CAA looks at how well local public services, working together, are meeting the
needs of the people they serve. It's a joint assessment made by a group of
independent watchdogs about the performance of local public services, and
how likely they are to meet local priorities. From 9 December you will find the
results of Comprehensive Area Assessment on the Oneplace website -
http://oneplace.direct.gov.uk/

Alternative formats - If you require a copy of PDF documents in this site in

large print, in Braille, on tape, or in a language other than English, please call:
0844 798 7070

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ
Telephone: 0844 798 1212

Fax: 0844 798 2945

Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

m for an independent overview
- of local public services

7 York



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 125

York

Area Assessment

Dated 9 December 2009

for an independent overview
of local public services




Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 126

Contents
York at a glance
How is York doing?

About York

How well do priorities for York express
community needs and aspirations?

Priorities for York
. The City of Culture

. The Healthy City

« The Inclusive City

. The Learning City

« The Safer City

. The Sustainable City

« The Thriving City

2 York



Area Assessment

3 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 127

York at a glance

This independent assessment by six inspectorates sets out how well local
public services are tackling the major issues in York. It says how well they are
delivering better results for local people and how likely these are to improve in
future. If, and only if, our assessment shows that the following special
circumstances are met in relation to a major issue, we use flags to highlight
our judgements. We use a green flag to highlight where others can learn from
outstanding achievements or improvements or an innovation that has very
promising prospects of success. We use a red flag to highlight where we have
significant concerns about results and future prospects that are not being
tackled adequately. This means that local partners need to do something
more or different to improve these prospects.

Green flags - exceptional performance or

innovation that others can learn from

Green flag: Working together for disabled children

Red flags - significant concerns, action

needed

No red flags have been identified for York

The local area

York has been a centre of government, religion, education, commerce,
entertainment and transport for 2000 years. The City and its surrounding area
include the historic walled city, the suburbs and a large area of countryside.
Four million visitors each year bring wealth into the area as well as disruption
and congestion.

The total population is 195,400, 4.9 per cent of which come from black and
minority ethnic (BME) communities. The proportion of people from BME
communities doubled between 1991 and 2001 and is expected to grow
further in the next few years.

York's population is growing and is projected to rise by 4.2 per cent between
2001 and 2011 and by a further 8.3 per cent up to 2021. The four institutions
of further and higher education bring the total number of students in York to
around 20,000 (or approximately one-tenth of the population). York's four
million visitors each year boost the local economy but place significant
demands on the transport system.

The next section tells you how York's public services are doing in each of their
local priority areas.



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 128

How is York doing?

The City of Culture

Local partners want to inspire residents and visitors to free their creative
talents and make York the most active city in the country. They plan to
achieve this by providing high quality cultural and sporting activities for all.
Public satisfaction with museums and art gallaries and parks and open spaces
is among the highest in the country.

Four million tourists visit the city each year, attracted by a number of the city's
cultural attractions including York Minster, the National Railway Museum and
the Yorvik Viking Centre. These facilities are well regarded by both visitors
and residents of the city, and a City of Festivals programme provides year-
round cultural activities for local people.

However, local people are less satisfied with the quality of local sports
centres. York is home to a large variety of sporting organisations, with around
350 sports clubs based in local communities. Public sector partners are
working with these sports clubs to provide activities for local people,
particularly those in the poorer parts of the city, although there is a lack of
public sports and recreation facilities to meet the needs of local people.

The Healthy City

Partners want York to be a place where residents enjoy long healthy and
independent lives. The city's strategic partnership - Without Walls - plans to
achieve this by supporting people to make healthy lifestyle choices. They also
want to develop health and social care services quick to respond to those that
need them.

York is a healthy city. Life expectancy is high and the number of early deaths
from heart disease, strokes and cancer has reduced significantly in recent
years. However, there are differences across the city with people in some
poorer parts of the city dying up to five years earlier than in more well-off
areas.

Several other issues are becoming more significant. Adults are not as
physically active as they should be and this is contributing to increasing
obesity. Binge drinking is also increasing and has resulted in an increase in
alcohol-related hospital admissions. The number of teenage pregnancies has
increased. Drug misuse in York is above the national average and more needs
to be done to tackle the problem.

The standard of general health care is good, although the quality of care for
adults with mental health problems, whether in hospital or in their own

homes, needs to be improved. Social care services perform well but there are
plans to improve these further.

The Inclusive City

4  York



Area Assessment

5 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 129

Local partners want York's citizens to feel included in the life of the area.
They plan to achieve this by improving prospects for all, tackling poverty and
exclusion and making services and facilities easy to access.

York's community is changing, with an increasing number of people from
black and minority ethnic (BME) backgrounds coming to live in the city.
Although most local people think York is a pleasant place to live people from
BME communities are much less positive about the city. Public sector partners
are taking action to develop their understanding of the issues facing BME
communities and have recognised that more needs to be done to meet the
needs of this group of people.

The needs of other groups, such as older people, children and young people,
and people with disabilities, are more likely to be met. And much work is
going on to ensure people from the less well-off parts of the city are not
disadvantaged. Public sector agencies are working together to help people
from these neighbourhoods into employment and make sure they get the
benefits they are entitled to.

York is an expensive place to live and home ownership is beyond the reach of
many local people. Increasing the supply of affordable housing remains a
major issue for public sector partners. Some progress has been made but,
because of the current economic downturn, it is unlikely that targets for the
next two years will be met. Homelessness in the area is higher than
elsewhere, particularly for young people.

The Learning City

The city's strategic partnership - Without Walls - wants to make sure that
local people have access to world class education and training facilities and
provision. Partners want people to develop the skills and aspirations they need
to play an active part in society and contribute to the life of the city.

York's children and young people can take advantage of good quality
education in the city. Most of the city's schools perform well and the city's
universities and further education colleges have a good reputation.

Ofsted has rated the City Council's services for children and young people as
performing excellently. A review in 2008 by the Audit Commission and Ofsted
rated the city's arrangements for keeping the city's children safe as
outstanding. Exam results for York's schools are consistently among the
highest in the country.

But children from the poorer parts of the city do not do as well as other
children, and this gap is wider than in many other parts of the country. This
also applies to a small number of pupils from black and minority ethnic (BME)
backgrounds.

Fewer of York's young people from poorer backgrounds go on to higher
education than in other parts of the country. However, most young people do
go into education, employment or training when they leave school and
opportunities for adult education are improving.



Area Assessment

6 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 130

Skill levels in the city are high in comparison with local areas in Yorkshire and
Humberside and among the highest nationally. But more needs to be done to
enable all local people to gain the skills they need to take advantage of the
new industries arriving in the city. Partners in the city know this and are
working together to tackle the problem.

The Safer City

The Without Walls Partnership wants to make York a safer city with low crime
rates and high public satisfaction with the city's safety record.

York is a safe place to live. Overall levels of crime have fallen consistently in
recent years although the fear of crime, though reducing, remains an issue for
local people. Youth offending rates are low when compared to other areas,
although the number of young people who re-offend is relatively high.

Drug and alcohol misuse continues to be a significant contributory factor to
crime in the city. One issue of particular concern in York is the level of cycle
theft - particularly as the city is nationally recognised as a cycling city. There
has been some success in improving road safety, particularly in more rural
areas, which has resulted in a fewer road casualties.

The Sustainable City

York's partnership (the Without Walls Partnership) is aiming to reduce its
impact on the environment while maintaining York's special qualities and
enabling the city and its communities to grow and thrive.

Good work by local organisations is making York a greener more sustainable
place to live, work and visit. Recycling rates have improved because of this
strong partnership working and are now among the highest levels of
performance nationally.

Investment in park and ride and developing cycling routes through the City is
reducing traffic and giving people healthier choices for travelling into the City.
The City was recently awarded Cycling City Status in recognition of its
progress.

There's a strong focus on reducing the CO2 people in York produce as they
go about their lives. Partners are working well together to plan for the
increasing risk of flooding that will go with climate change.

The Thriving City

Partners aim to support York's economy to make sure that employment rates
remain high and that local people benefit from new job opportunities.

Despite job losses in recent years from the loss of traditional industries such as
the railways and chocolate making, York's local economy remains strong.
Levels of unemployment are below national and regional averages and
weekly pay levels are high. The tourism industry remains buoyant despite the



Area Assessment

7 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 131

recent economic downturn and new jobs, many in science-related industries,
are being created.

The main challenges facing the city are to help local people to weather the
recession and to make sure that local people have the training and skills they
need to get the newly created jobs. The number of people with formal
qualifications is higher than many other cities nationally, but the challenge is
to make sure those qualifications are relevant to the new jobs being created
as the local economy changes. The need for new economic development in
the city also has to be balanced against the need to preserve the historic
nature of the city, which is one of the main attractions for tourists.

About York

A recent survey shows that in York 87 per cent of people are satisfied with
their immediate local area as a place to live. This is higher than the average
for similar areas and higher than the national average of 81 per cent.

Covering an area of 105 square miles, the district of York comprises an urban
area centred on the historic city surrounded by many small rural and semi rural
settlements. For many it provides a great standard of living. Schools are good
as is healthcare. The City is popular with students and both its universities are
growing. Until recently the economy has been strong with well-paid jobs in
financial services as well as many other opportunities in tourism. Despite the
recession for most York residents unemployment is a risk that seems remote.

But some people are still not sharing the benefits that living in York brings.
Owning their own home is out of reach of many residents on average
incomes. Residents are dissatisfied with the choices for recreation available to
them. Some in York do not have the skills and qualifications that will help
them get good jobs in the new businesses coming into the City. A fifth of
York's people live in poverty. This poses a major challenge to its hope of being
an even more inclusive city.

Population growth and a decrease in the average number of people in a
household is placing pressure on housing. ‘Affordable’ housing is in particularly
short supply and house prices are well above the regional average. Given the
historic nature of the city's built environment, planning and development are
highly sensitive issues.

York is a relatively affluent city but this masks pockets of deprivation. There
are low levels of unemployment in the city, but high levels of relatively poorly
paid jobs, most associated with the tourist sector. Over the last few years, the
city has responded to the relative decline in employment in traditional local
industries (such as chocolate manufacturing and railways). Traditional
industries have been replaced by a high-tech and science based industrial
sector linked to the universities. The Council and partners see Science City
York as playing an increasingly important part in the development of the city.

Educational attainment in York is high, with achievements that are
significantly higher than both the Yorkshire and Humber and England
averages. Adults in York have better skills levels than adults in most other
areas but a minority, often from poorer areas, do not. Partners in the City



Area Assessment

8 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 132

know this and are working on the problem.

Health is generally good and life expectancy is greater than the national
average. However, there are pockets of poor health in more deprived areas
of the city. Levels of crime are below regional and national averages.
Congestion is a significant issue in the area as York remains a major tourist
destination in the UK.

The Without Walls - WoW - partnership brings together local private, public
and voluntary organisatons to work on the most significant issues facing the
city.

How well do priorities for York express
community needs and aspirations?

The needs and aspirations of York's people are reflected to a great extent in
the priorities the Without Walls Partnership (WoW) is working on. The
partnership has a clear shared set of ambitions for the City for the next 20
years or so. The local area agreement and Sustainable Community Strategy
are based on a good understanding of local needs. The local area agreement
has 35 national and 13 local indicators within the priority themes for the City.

The City's priorities are based on a clear vision and challenging ambitions,
underpinned by priorities which have been influenced by the views of local
people. The preparation of the sustainable community strategy involved an
extensive consultation exercise, a robust assessment of current performance
and analysis of the issues facing the city. Partners are ambitious for the City
and all its people.

It was informed by a wide ranging consultation such as the 'Festival of Ideas'
which used approaches such as radio debates, conferences and
neighbourhood consultations and targeted communities of interest, such as
older people, people with disabilities, representatives from BME communities
and Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) residents.

Local communities are getting increasingly involved in decision making
through neighbourhood management with local action plans setting out the
ambitions and actions for local areas. A more comprehensive approach to
engagement with local communities has recently been adopted. The impact
of this is not yet clear. Before its introduction the results of consultation were
not being shared in a systematic way. Partners did not know whether all
groups in local communities have had a chance to contribute.

The City of Culture

The City's cultural heritage is a key element of its attraction to tourists and
makes a significant contribution to the local economy. Four million tourists visit
the city each year generating around 11,000 jobs for local people and bring
some £350 million into York. Partners in the City focus strongly on preserving
and improving the city's built environment and Visit York, the local tourism



Area Assessment

9 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 133

partnership, has made good progress in raising the profile of the city's
attractions since its inception in April 2008.

The city is the home to notable national and regional attractions, such as York
Minster, the National Railway Museum, Yorvik Viking Centre and York
Racecourse. These are well used and regarded by visitors and residents alike.
The city's Museums Trust, which manages a number of museums and galleries
across the city, runs many events designed to involve visitors and local people
in cultural activities and is increasingly using museums for educational
purposes for local schools. The city's racecourse is the venue of major race
meetings which provide an additional attraction for people within the city and
across the region.

The level of public satisfaction with these facilities is understandably high -
significantly higher than in most other parts of the country - and many local
people participate in cultural activities. York's residents participate in the arts
more than those in any other city in the region. At 53.5 per cent, participation
is also well ahead of the national average. The proportion of local people who
visit museums is also much higher than the national average, and York schools
have the highest level of achievement of "Culture Mark" of any authority in
the country.

Another important feature of the cultural life of the city is the City of Festivals
programme. This year-round programme includes a range of events dealing
with different cultural activities such as dance, drama, food and drink,
literature and sport. Local people are heavily involved in the festivals and they
are highly valued by residents and visitors alike.

However, the situation regarding facilities designed specifically to meet the
needs of local people is less positive. Although the number of visits to public
libraries is relatively high, public satisfaction with them is low. The City Council
has recognised this and is part way through a programme to make them more
attractive to local people and place them at the centre of local communities.

There is a lack of public sports and recreation facilities that meet the needs of
local people. Only about one in three local people are satisfied with the quality
of sport and leisure facilities. This places York in the bottom 20 per cent of
cities in the country. The gap between what people need and want and what
is available now is great. This applies to indoor activities such as swimming

and badminton, and external facilities such as football and rugby pitches.
Some facilities are seeing more use though, for example, the redeveloped
Oaklands Sports Centre. York's people's dissatisfaction with these gaps may
also be contributing to falling numbers of people taking part in exercise.

Action is being taken to tackle these problems. For example, the ‘Fitas a
Fiddle' programme for older people is increasing the numbers of people taking
exercise. York is home too to a large variety of sporting organisations, with
around 350 sports clubs based in local communities. Public sector partners are
working with these sports clubs to provide activities for local people,
particularly those in the poorer parts of the city.

We want to look more deeply at how partners in the City are working
together to ensure that all York's people get to benefit from the City's status
as an important visitor destination.



Area Assessment

10 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 134

We will also want to know more about how the city is going to close the gaps
in what sport and leisure facilities are on offer. We will be following this up in
our work ahead and report what we find next year.

The Healthy City

There is a lack of public sports and recreation facilities to meet the needs of
local people. The gap between what people need and want and what is
available now is great. This applies to indoor activities such as swimming and
badminton, and external facilities such as football and rugby pitches. York's
people are dissatisfied with these gaps which may also be contributing to
falling numbers of people taking part in exercise. Some facilities are seeing
more use though, for example, the redeveloped Oaklands Sports Centre.

Action is being taken to tackle these problems. For example, the ‘Fitas a
Fiddle' programme for older people is increasing the numbers of people taking
exercise. York is home, t0o, to a large variety of sporting organisations, with
around 350 sports clubs based in local communities. Public sector partners are
working with these sports clubs to provide activities for local people,
particularly those in the poorer parts of the city.

We want to know more about how the city is going to close the gaps in what
is on offer. We will be following this up in our work ahead and report what
we find next year.

York is a healthy city. Average life expectancy at birth is increasing and, at 83
for women and 78 for men, is higher than both regional and national
averages. Early deaths from heart disease and strokes and from cancer have
reduced significantly in recent years and are below the national average.
Deaths from smoking are also below the national average, as is the number of
smokers. York's babies and young children are more likely to live than in other
areas. Babies born in the City are also more likely to be the right weight than
is the case across the country as a whole. Expectant mothers are smoking less
and breastfeeding rates are improving.

More needs to be done to deal with health inequalities and encourage local
people to develop healthy lifestyles. Life expectancy varies across the city,
with people in more deprived parts of the city dying five years earlier than in
more well-off areas. Local GP surgeries provide a way to promote better
health with other projects to encourage more healthy lifestyles.

The number of people taking part in physical activity is low and falling. Latest
data shows that only one in five adults exercise three times a week compared
with one in four in 2007/08. This is contributing to an increase in the number
of obese adults. Partners across the city have recognised the problem. They
are working together to improve access to more sport and leisure facilities.
They have also developed programmes aimed at specific groups, such as the
over 55s and people with a disability, to increase participation.

The number of children and young people participating in physical activity is
high, with almost all school children taking part in at least 2 hours PE and
school sport a week. This is well above the national average. However,
childhood obesity is becoming more of an issue. Although not high when



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 135

compared with other parts of the country, 8.4 per cent of children at age 5
are obese and this figure increases to 15.6 per cent when they reach eleven
years of age.

Alcohol and drug misuse in the city is a concern. Estimated levels of binge
drinking are high, affecting almost one in four adults compared with one in
five nationally. As a result, the number of alcohol-related hospital admissions is
increasing. Although still below the national average, the number is expected
to rise further. Drug misuse in York is also above the national average, and
actions to reduce drug and alcohol related harm have also been inadequate,
resulting in intervention from the National Treatment Agency. Good evidence
about the scale of drug misuse among the adult population is not available.

The number of teenage pregnancies has increased by a quarter since 1998.
However, the rate of teenage pregnancy remains one of the lowest rates in
the Yorkshire and Humberside region and is lower than the national average,
although partners recognise the need to do more to address the issue which
provides an additional health risk to both mother and child.

Most patients feel the quality of health care is good, although there are some
issues about the quality of care for people with mental health problems. The
Healthcare Commission has assessed the quality of hospital services for
people with acute mental health problems to be weak - in other words, not
meeting minimum requirements and the reasonable expectations of patients
and the public. The proportion of adults with learning difficulties and mental
health problems who are helped to live at home is low and declining, as is the
number of households receiving intensive homecare.

Dental health in the city is good, with the average number of decayed,
extracted or filled teeth in young children being significantly lower than the
national average. However, access to NHS dentists is a major issue and local
health organisations have recognised the need to make it easier for local
people to get dental treatment, particularly those in less well-off areas.

We will continue to monitor the impact of actions taken to improve the health
of local people, particularly about reducing inequalities in health and in
encouraging people to develop healthy lifestyles.

The Inclusive City
@ Green flag: Working together for disabled children

Strong partnership working, including the involvement of parents, is having a
significant and positive impact on the lives of children with disabilities in York.
In early 2009, parents of disabled children in York gave the city's quality of
health, education, social care and support for their children the highest score
in the country. Meeting the needs of disabled children, young people and their
families is a strategic priority for the city. Strong partnership working in the
city is giving children and families personalised services across health,
education and the voluntary sector.

An inspection in 2008 by Ofsted and the Audit Commission judged the City
Council's services for children with learning difficulties and/or disabilities as

11 York



Area Assessment

12  York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 136

outstanding. These services are making real differences to the lives of
children. For example, Council services, a voluntary agency and the parent
forum are working together to provide a pioneering service of personalised
mentoring. This is giving children support that matches their needs tailored to
their problems. Another outcome from joint working is increased access to
and take-up of leisure opportunities by children with disabilities. Families value
these opportunities for the difference they are making to their children's lives.

Innovation is strengthening the joining up of services. For example, ‘end to
end' care and support is now provided. Children and young people are
supported through the significant challenges that they face in their lives when
they move from school into further education, employment or independent
living. A new multi-agency Transitions Team supports young people aged 14-
25. This nationally recognised team provides independent travel training,
children and adults social care support, participation support and provision of
shared and independent housing. Support is seamless - its focus is on the child
or young person not on the particular organisation providing the support. It
successfully puts the customer at the heart of what partners are doing.

Other actions are having a positive impact on the quality of life of children
with disabilities. They include the City of York Charter for Disabled Children
which sets out what children and their parents can expect from partners. This
provides a way to hold partners to account to ensure they provide joined-up
services to meet their specific needs. It is based around nine promises covering
a range of issues. These include: involvement in planning and decision making,
access to more places and activities, a wider range of short breaks, and better
support in the transition into adulthood. All children have a single named
contact to make sure that all service providers work together to deliver
seamless services.

In early 2009, York gained the highest score in the country in a national survey
that asked parents with disabled children to rate the quality of health,
education, social care provision and support. The survey gives a way of finding
out whether partners really are delivering on the ambitions set out in the
national strategy - Aiming High for Disabled Children. Feedback to parents is
done through a You Said, We Did booklet. This shows how services have been
shaped and changed to meet children's and families' needs. This booklet has
been recognised by government as an example of good practice.

The views of disabled children and their parents are at the heart of the way
services are delivered. Disabled young people have completed accessibility
surveys of leisure services and helped schools write their Disability Equality
Schemes. The issues they raised have resulted in changes to the way services
are provided. The long-standing parent forum, CANDI, (Children and Inclusion)
is a dynamic group that has co-written, and jointly leads, two levels of unique
disability equality training for all staff and universal providers. CANDI supports
participation of parents and young people at every level and has helped to
ensure parent and carer representation in strategic planning for services in the
city.

Successful action is being taken to raise children's aspirations. In 2009, a
ground breaking Opportunities Fair provided young people and parents with
information, advice and guidance about the options available to them when
they leave school. Participants received one to one advice, face to face
contact with providers and workshop taster activities, designed to raise young



Area Assessment

13  York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 137

people's aspirations and support them in making decisions about their future.
Young people, families and providers gave the Fair excellent feedback.

Partners in the City know that children with special educational needs do less
well than their peers when they take their GCSEs. This is because York tries,
whenever, possible to avoid labelling children as having these needs. So
York's pupils with special educational needs are those for whom an academic
qualification will be unattainable. Nevertheless the work on inspiring children
through mentoring and the other initiatives going on in the City give these
children a real chance of making their own positive contribution to the City.

The Inclusive City

York's population is changing. It is getting older and the over 50s will make up
an increasing proportion of York's people. At the same time people from a
black and minority ethnic (BME) background are coming into the city in
greater numbers. York experienced the second highest percentage growth
rate in ethnic minorities of any city in the country in the period 1991-2001.

People from these communities believe that York is a less welcoming and
tolerant place than people from other communities think is the case. Although
more than half the population of the city feel they belong to their local
neighbourhood, fewer than one in five people from BME communities feel the
same way. Some of the needs of these communities are being met but
organisations in the city know they don't yet fully understand the needs of the
growing BME community. Public sector partners know they will need to alter
the way they work to address these differences.

Partners in the city are working together to address inequality with many
groups such as people with disabilities, children and young people and older
people. Young people with learning difficulties or physical disabilities get good
support in their transition to adult life. Such support includes encouraging
independent travel and by providing shared and independent housing. Many
programmes and activities provide support targeted at the most vulnerable
children and their families. New arrivals from Eastern Europe and the Traveller
community receive prompt and suitable support to help them settle into the
life of the area. Changes have been made at some sports centres to make
them more accessible to people with disabilities and a local library runs a
computer club designed for older people and those with disabilities.

York is rightly seen as a well-off city (In 2007, York was ranked as the 242nd
least deprived of 354 areas nationally, having improved its position from 219th
least deprived in 2004). But there are pockets of significant deprivation in
some parts of the city. One neighbourhood is in the 10 per cent most deprived
in the country. Around a third of households are living on low annual incomes
and around 1 in 8 of the city's children live in poverty. About 4,600 homes
suffer from fuel poverty - their inhabitants are spending more and more of
their money on keeping warm. This is better than in other areas regionally and
nationally but it's still a real problem for the people involved. Some of the
older houses in York are hard to heat and keep warm too.

The poorest area of the city is now the focus of joined-up working to tackle its
long-standing problems. This is improving the lives of many people in this
community. Some local people have been helped into work and others, many



Area Assessment

14 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 138

of whom are elderly, have also been helped to claim the benefits to which
they are entitled. Benefit payments to people in this neighbourhood have
increased by £22,000. This project is now being rolled out into neighbouring
communities.

Living in York is becoming more expensive, with house prices increasing by 38
per cent between 2002 and 2005, while earnings only increased by 16 per
cent over the same period. York's average wage is around £19,000 while an
average house costs a little under £200,000. Home ownership is out of reach
of many York residents. There has been a drive to provide more "affordable"
housing in the city through agreements with developers, and 151 such homes
were builtin 2008/09. However, the current economic downturn means that
this is unlikely to be repeated in 2009/10 which places increased pressure on
the social housing stock and housing waiting lists.

The quality of housing in York is improving. The number of houses failing to
meet national decency standards has fallen significantly. Almost all council
housing now meets basic decency standards, compared with almost 84 per
cent four years ago. The quality of private sector housing is also improving,
with less than one-fifth of private sector homes failing to meet decency
standards compared with a national average of around two-fifths.

More housing is also being provided to meet the specific needs of older
people. Recently 100 bungalows that could not be brought up to decent
homes standards were demolished and are to be replaced by a 40-bed extra
care facility for older people, with 60 new bungalows and 100 affordable
general needs houses.

The number of homeless people, particularly young people, is high compared
with many other parts of the country. In 2007/08, half the people accepted as
homeless in York were 16 to 24 years old. A fifth of this group were 16 to 17
year olds - twice the national rate for this age group. However, partners have
recognised the issue and have had some success in dealing with it. At the end
of 2008/9, there were 167 households in temporary accommodation, which is
a 20 per cent improvement on the 209 households in 2007/8. Specific action
has been taken to help homeless young people. This includes joint action
between the city council, Arc Light, the Salvation Army and the Peasholme
Charity. Their work has reduced the number of rough sleepers in the city.
Partners won external funding of £350,000 which has been used to deliver a
Teenage Parent Housing Support Project.

There are some examples of how local people have been involved in issues
affecting them, but this has not happened in a consistent way with different
communities in the city. Partners have now agreed a comprehensive
community engagement strategy. Turning this into action is an important
priority for the City.

We will review the success of the Without Wall Partnership in putting its plans
into action over the next year.

The Learning City

York is well known for the standard of education received by its young



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 139

people. This year, Ofsted has rated the City Council's children's services as
performing excellently.

Most schools, children's homes, pupil referral units, nurseries and childminders
are good or better. This means that almost all children and young people get
good help and support. Ofsted's inspections of York's schools found most of
them to be good or better - more in similar areas or nationally. No school in
York is inadequate. Almost two-thirds of the city's primary and secondary
schools perform above the average for England.

York Council's adoption and fostering agencies are outstanding and children's
homes are good or outstanding. Most childcare is good or better. Nursery and
primary schools in York perform better than in similar areas or nationally.

Ofsted and the Audit Commission looked in December 2008 at how York's
children are kept safe. They said these arrangements were outstanding. The
review also looked at the services children in the Council's care receive. These
too, were outstanding. One serious case review has taken place since
December 2008. (These happen to ensure that lessons are learned after
instances of potential abuse emerge.) The review was judged by Ofsted as
adequate.

Some of York's most vulnerable children and young people do not do as well
as their peers. Most young people get services that are good or better but one
of the City's special schools and one of its units for pupils with challenging
behaviour are not so good and are rated as adequate. Also, children aged 11
who have free school meals do less well than the rest of their age group in
the City. This gap is wider in York than elsewhere in the country.

A similar gap exists for young people at 16 who have special educational
needs. A small number of young people from a minority ethnic background do
not do as well as their peers at 16. More of York's teenage girls get pregnant
than is the case nationally or in similar areas. Partners in the City know about
these problems and are working together to tackle them.

The difference in achievement between the City's poorest and wealthiest
continues into higher education. Fewer of York's young people from low-
income backgrounds go into higher education than in most other parts of the
country.

In November 2008, the QS-Times Higher Educational Supplement ranked the
University of York 81st out of the world's top 200 universities - a rise of 43
places from 2006. York St John's University plays an important regional role
and is particularly popular with mature students. Both universities continue to
grow with significant building programmes. They are playing a significant role
in developing science-based and high-tech industries which are replacing
more traditional industries in the city and are a key element of the city's
future economy.

Almost all adults in York have some form of qualification. But, although not
high in comparison with most other parts of the country, there are a
significant number of adults with no formal qualifications, and many people
experience literacy and numeracy problems. Developing higher level, more
diverse skills across the working age population is key for partners in the city.

15 York



Area Assessment

16  York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 140

York's people will need these skills to succeed in the knowledge-based
industries replacing the traditional manufacturing industries on which the city
was built. Good work is underway on this but partners in the city know more
needs to be done.

The Safer City

York is a safe city. Overall, crime has fallen consistently between 2003/04 and
2007/08 and is below regional and national averages. Serious acquisitive crime
has continued to fall and local targets have been achieved. Targeted action
has resulted in significant decreases in crime and anti-social behaviour in some
areas of the city. For example, an alley-gating campaign resulted in a 68 per
cent fall in reported crime levels in the Clifton area in August and September
2008, compared with figures for the same period in 2006.

There has been an increase in the percentage of people who feel York is a
safe place. But partners in the City are not complacent about this. Of 18
Neighbourhood Action Plans developed by local communities, 17 contain
ambitions around the theme of community safety. However, a high proportion
of local people feel that their views are considered in dealing with crime and
anti-social behaviour and many feel these issues are being dealt with
successfully.

A high number of offences in the city are carried out by a few persistent
offenders. Although reoffending rates of young offenders supervised by the
Youth Offending Team fell by 32 per cent in 2008, they remain at a level
significantly above those for similar cities. The percentage of young offenders
engaging in education and work is low compared with other similar areas. The
number of first-time entrants into the youth justice system has fallen and
young people in care who offend are well supported and few are involved in
reoffending.

Preventive programmes such as the Youth Inclusion Support Programme (YISP)
and targeted youth work are contributing well to continuing these low
numbers. The Youth Offending Team has become the strongest performing
team in the region, although the dependency on short-term funding presents
a risk to keeping the current performance.

Partners have worked well together to improve road safety with a particular

focus on the specific concerns of rural communities. This has had a significant
impact, most notably in reducing accidents involving children, where a 50 per
cent cut was achieved in six months in 2007/08.

However, some issues remain to be addressed. Despite overall decreases in
crime, one issue of concern is the high level of cycle theft - particularly for a
city recognised nationally as a cycling city. This issue has been recognised by
partners and a programme of education and prevention is being carried out by
the Safer York Partnership in parallel with the Cycling City programme.

Drug and alcohol abuse continues to be a significant contributory factor to
offending within the city. Estimated levels of binge drinking are significantly
higher than the national average, as is the drug abuse in the city. Local public
sector bodies recognise the need to address these issues, but actions so far



Area Assessment

17 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 141

have not been successful. This is strangely at odds with the views of local
people. Few people feel that anti-social behaviour is a problem in the city, or
that drunk and rowdy behaviour or drug misuse is a significant problem.

We have not had the chance to look in detail at the issues around alcohol and
drug abuse this year. We will include these issues in next year's assessment.

The Sustainable City

York has been recognised for the actions partners have taken to protect the
environment. In a national survey, the City was ranked 18th out of 324 towns
and cities for the number of recycling centres, conservation groups and eco-
friendly businesses. Partners have made good progress in balancing the needs
of a vibrant city against protecting the environment.

The volume of household waste is falling, while the proportion of waste
recycled and composted has more than tripled from a low base a few years
ago. Almost half of York's waste is either recycled or composted - one of the
highest rates in the country. Three out of four local people are satisfied with
recycling facilities. This is also higher than most other parts of the country.

A major reason for this success has been involving local people and action
from local environmental groups such as York Rotters who champion
composting. Young people in particular are recycling more, with schools
recycling 76,600 kg of paper and cardboard which has saved more than 101
tonnes of CO2 emissions going into the atmosphere. There are high levels of
public satisfaction with street cleanliness standards, which have continued to
increase in recent years, although levelled out in 2008/09.

The standard of parks, play areas and public spaces is good. Three parks have
been awarded Green Flag status and public satisfaction is high. Despite an
increase in visitors to the city, overall traffic volumes have remained stable.
More people are using the city's park and ride system and there are plans to
develop it further. The first Car Free Day took place in the city in September.
It was supported by the City Council and around 30 local businesses who
encouraged their employees to leave their cars at home and use alternatives
to get to work. Early signs are that it was successful in reducing the volume of
traffic in the city centre.

An increasing number of people in the city walk or cycle, and York has been
awarded national Cycling City status. This means government funding will be
available over the next three years to improve opportunities for cycling and to
build on the one-in-five residents who currently cycle to work. Work is already
underway to make the city's roads safer and easier to use by cyclists and to
expand the existing cycle network.

Many events have also taken place to encourage more people to cycle. A
Biking Viking event involved 70 school children from 4 schools in York dressed
as Vikings riding into the town centre for a Viking show and various
competitions. The city also hosted its first Festival of Cycling in August which
attracted around 10,000 visitors and was successful in encouraging local
people to take up cycling. The city also hosted a stage of the Tour of Britain
raising the city's profile as a cycling city.



Area Assessment

18 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 142

Some early progress has been made in reducing carbon emissions across the
city. City of York Council introduced a carbon management programme in
April 2008, which is helping to reduce its carbon footprint, and other
organisations and businesses across the city are looking to follow suit.
Progress has been made to improve local biodiversity, although not as quickly
as expected. This is because of lack of resources (money and people), the
need to negotiate with private landowners and altered management
practices.

In a city where the built heritage is so important it obviously has an important
effect on where development can happen. Despite this, the area of previously
developed land that has been vacant or derelict for more than 5 years is high
and increasing. However, developments are well planned to make best use of
the space available and most are found near to other services which reduces
the need to travel.

Another challenge facing the city is the growing risk of flooding, which has
had a major impact on the city many times in recent years. Work is underway
to improve flood defences in and around the city. Action is also being taken to
manage the flow of the river upstream of the city in North Yorkshire.

We will track progress on the city's plans over the coming year. Our work will
include a look at two main areas. Firstly, what are organisations in the city are
doing to reduce their carbon footprint. Secondly, the progress on working
with others on managing flood risk.

The Thriving City

Local organisations are working well to give York's people the help and
support they need to cope with the effects of the recession. Events have been
held to provide advice and guidance both to small businesses and to
individuals hit by the recession. For example, York Enterprise Week included a
range of events to help local residents and businesses through the credit
crunch. It included an event called Thrive and Survive at the city's racecourse.
The event covered many issues including skills and training, business support
and doing business with the Council. Free workshops were also provided
aiming at giving businesses and individuals practical help. The event was
popular and attendees' feedback has shaped other work.

People who have lost their jobs have been targeted for extra help and support
to give them the best possible chance of getting back into work. Targeted
programmes in the most deprived areas of the city have been successful, with
367 people from such areas helped into employment or training over the last
year. People with money troubles have also had services developed to help
with their particular needs and a benefits take-up campaign has resulted in
people claiming £22,000 more benefits that they were not claiming. A
mortgage rescue scheme has also helped some families facing repossession.

There was a significant fall in the number of new business start-ups in
2008/09, although the percentage of established small businesses showing
year-on-year employment growth has improved and remains among the
highest in the country. An Enterprise Fund is now in place to help with
business start-ups. So far six new local businesses are now up and running



Area Assessment

19 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 143

after support from the Fund. Other support for new businesses has been
provided through initiatives like the Pheonix Centre and Eco Business Centre.
This provides accommodation tailored to the needs of new small businesses
and is popular - almost all of its 60 units have tenants. The City Council is
paying suppliers quicker to help their cash flow.

Support is also available to longer-standing businesses. This is being done
within a clear vision of how partners think York's economy should develop.
Partners in the City have commissioned research from the Centre for Cities
that has helped shape the vision. Partners understand the strong base the
City's universities, colleges and the Science City development give them in
developing an economy that can take the City forward while making it less
dependent on tourism. Joint work on the York Business Forum and the
VisitYork brand supports the wider plans for other areas of the City's
economy.

Traditional local jobs in the railways, sugar processing and chocolate
manufacturing industries have reduced significantly in recent years and are
being replaced by jobs which need different skills.

The city's status as a national Science City means that many new jobs are
being created in science-related industries and in more high-tech, knowledge
based industries. This will make it more difficult for some local people to find
employment unless they are able to develop the new skills needed.

Training more people to technician level (NVQ 3 and above) will support the
development of a knowledge-led economy. The number of local people with
formal qualifications is relatively high in comparison with many other similar
cities. But more needs to be done to make sure they have the qualifications
and skills they need for the new kinds of jobs being created.

In a survey carried out in 2006/07, almost one-in-five employers reported skills
gaps in their current workforce, which is higher than the national average.
More recent figures suggest this situation is improving. In 2003 around 25,000
people (one in five of the working age population) had numeracy and literacy
problems. In 2008 more than 7,000 people (6.8 per cent of the working age
population) had no formal qualifications.

Progress is being made but more needs to be done. A 'Spotlight on Skills'
Campaign involving a month long programme of events has been successful in
encouraging local employers to invest in developing the skills of their
workforce and in encouraging working age adults to participate in skills
training. The programme involved 110 employers, 290 individuals and 33 local
agencies, and has improved working relationships.

Other longstanding programmes have had a positive impact on peoples' lives.
Future Prospects provides help and support to people looking to develop their
skills, get back into work or deal with being laid off. The service offered by
this organisation includes skills training as well as helping people work through
what getting work will mean for their household income when their benefits
change. Finding a way through the benefits system was identified as a barrier
to getting into work in a survey of Future Prospect's clients.

There has been an increase in the number of adults achieving basic literacy,



Area Assessment

20 York

Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 144

numeracy and IT qualifications, and young people gaining vocational
qualifications. People in the less well-off parts of the city are not as well
qualified, although partners are targeting actions in these areas and the gap
with the rest of the city is narrowing. Partners are focusing on helping young
people into work as they are being hit hard by the recession. However, after a
continued fall, the percentage of young people not in education, employment
or training (NEETSs) increased to 4.2 per cent in 2008/09. The increase has
continued into the first quarter of 2009/10, although it remains lower than
most other places in the country.

We will follow up the City's progress in achieving its priorities for the City's
economy in the next phase of our assessment. We want to know how the
advantages the City has are being used to help the more disadvantaged in the
area.



Area Assessment Publication Version Dated 9 December 2009

Page 145

CAA looks at how well local public services, working together, are meeting the
needs of the people they serve. It's a joint assessment made by a group of
independent watchdogs about the performance of local public services, and
how likely they are to meet local priorities. From 9 December you will find the
results of Comprehensive Area Assessment on the Oneplace website -
http://oneplace.direct.gov.uk/

Alternative formats - If you require a copy of PDF documents in this site in
large print, in Braille, on tape, or in a language other than English, please call:
0844 798 7070

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ
Telephone: 0844 798 1212

Fax: 0844 798 2945

Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

m for an independent overview
- of local public services

21  York



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 147

City of York Council

Organisational Assessment (Summary version)

Pre-publication version dated 03 December 2009

Provided under embargo




Organisational Assessment M-~_publication Version Dated 03 December 2009

Page 148

City of York Council

Overall, City of York Council performs adequately

Managing performance 3 out of 4
Use of resources 2out of 4
Managing finances 2outof 4
Governing the business 2outof 4
Managing resources 2outof 4

Description of scores:

1. An organisation that does not meet minimum requirements, Performs Poorly

2. An organisation that meets only minimum requirements, Performs Adequately

3. An organisation that exceeds minimum requirements, Performs Well

4. An organisation that significantly exceeds minimum requirements, Performs Excellently

Summary

City of York Council performs adequately overall. It is improving in many of
the priorities for the city it identified with partners. These priorities are to
make the city thrive, sustainable, safer, a learning place, inclusive, healthy and
a city of culture.

In assessing the Council's overall performance we have given particular
weight to its use of resources. The Council's systems for managing its
resources meet minimum requirements. They do the things they are designed
to achieve. But the evidence of outcomes from this aspect of the Council's
work was not consistent enough to score a 3. Areas of lower performance
include financial planning, asset management and ensuring diversity and
equality are dealt with consistently. Achieving its priorities will put greater
demands on its use of resources as public spending comes under increasing
pressure. Budget constraints held back some priority services in the past. This
remains a risk now.

York scores three out of four for managing its performance. The Council's
priorities reflect the City's needs. Many community groups were consulted as
local priorities were identified. Groups included travellers, the homeless, single
parents with young children, students, housebound elderly, and people with a
physical or learning disability. Their views have led to priorities being amended
giving a stronger focus on housing and homelessness, and children and young
people.

Services key to the Council's priorities are doing well.
Ofsted rate services for children and young people as performing excellently.

The Care Quality Commission rate services for adults as performing well. But
vulnerable peoples' needs and wishes want further attention though to

2 City of York Council
Provided under embargo



Organisational Assessment m-~_publication Version Dated 03 December 2009

Page 149

ensure they are met. The Council knows this and its plans reflect its ambitions
for all of York's people.

The Council has worked well with partners to support the local economy and
help local people through the economic downturn. Initiatives include providing
advice and support to local businesses and individuals.

The Council has also worked well with partners to improve the environment. It
has updated the way it manages waste and has increased recycling - a
service now well regarded by local people. Progress on managing traffic
congestion is being made. The Council is reducing its carbon footprint.

Successful joint action with the police is dealing with anti-social behaviour and
reducing youth offending. York is a safe city although there has been an
increase in some types of crime.

Quality and choice in housing is improving. Homelessness is reducing, but
remains high for young adults when compared with similar areas. Plans are in
place to tackle this. Satisfaction with local recreational facilities is poor, and
the lack of good quality leisure facilities may be limiting progress in increasing
adult participation in sport.

The Council scores two out of four for managing its resources. llts work meets
minimum requirements. The quality of many services has improved while the
Council's costs remain low in comparison with similar councils. But several
issues held the Council's rating down in this area of its performance.

For example, the Council's arrangements for asset management lack
consistency and are not helping it achieve better value for money. It does not
have all the information it needs on the assets it has available to it in every
area of the city. Coupled with a lack of robustness in its asset management
plans all this means the Council cannot be certain that it has the assets it
needs to deliver its priorities. Enforced delays in rationalising its offices have
held up savings and other improvements in how the Council works.

The Council is improving its understanding of its impact on natural resources
and has taken early steps to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions. Plans are
being developed to improve the way the Council uses its buildings to make it
easier for the public to get its services and to provide better value for money.

The Council has recently developed a Fairness and Inclusion Strategy
satisfying its statutory duties as an employer and service provider. But equality
and diversity are not yet consistently dealt with in all Council services. The
Council has listened to local people to make it more likely that their needs are
met. The Easy@York project has made access to services easier. It has also
improved the way it responds to local people.

The Council's financial and corporate planning processes are only partially
integrated. Links between the Council's medium term financial strategy and
capital, IT and workforce planning are not strong enough. Financial planning
has focused on savings that do not undermine priorities rather than starting
from what funding is needed to achieve those priorities.

This will need to change - the Council's costs are already low and greater

3 City of York Council
Provided under embargo



Organisational Assessment M-~_publication Version Dated 03 December 2009

Page 150

financial constraints now face the public sector. Different ways of providing
services are being explored that should improve efficiency. But the medium
term financial strategy is not clear about the risks that may prevent the
delivery of corporate and service priorities.

The Council provides good community leadership in bringing local partners
together and gives good support to joint working. More work is needed
though to ensure that all councillors and officers work together consistently to
achieve the Council's overall purpose and vision. Managerial leadership has
been strong which has strengthened joint working across services. However,
the Council is in transition following the recent departure of the Chief
Executive and the arrival of his replacement.

4  City of York Council
Provided under embargo



Organisational Assessment m-~_publication Version Dated 03 December 2009

Page 151

CAA looks at how well local public services, working together, are meeting the
needs of the people they serve. It's a joint assessment made by a group of
independent watchdogs about the performance of local public services, and
how likely they are to meet local priorities. From 9 December you will find the
results of Comprehensive Area Assessment on the Oneplace website -
http://oneplace.direct.gov.uk/

for an independent overview

al public services

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ

Telephone: 0844 798 1212

Fax: 0844 798 2945

Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946
www.audit-commission.gov.uk

5 City of York Council
Provided under embargo



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 153

City of York Council

Organisational Assessment

Pre-publication version dated 03 December 2009

Provided under embargo

for an independent overview
of local public services




Organisational Assessment M-~-publication Version Dated 03 December 2009

Page 154

City of York Council

Overall, City of York Council performs adequately

Managing performance 3 outof4
Use of resources 2 out of 4
Managing finances 2outof 4
Governing the business 2 out of 4
Managing resources 2outof 4

Description of scores:

1. An organisation that does not meet minimum requirements, Performs Poorly

2. An organisation that meets only minimum requirements, Performs Adequately

3. An organisation that exceeds minimum requirements, Performs Well

4. An organisation that significantly exceeds minimum requirements, Performs Excellently

Summary

City of York Council performs adequately overall. It is improving in many of
the priorities for the city it identified with partners. These priorities are to
make the city thrive, sustainable, safer, a learning place, inclusive, healthy and
a city of culture.

In assessing the Council's overall performance we have given particular
weight to its use of resources. The Council's systems for managing its
resources meet minimum requirements. They do the things they are designed
to achieve. But the evidence of outcomes from this aspect of the Council's
work was not consistent enough to score a 3. Areas of lower performance
include financial planning, asset management and ensuring diversity and
equality are dealt with consistently. Achieving its priorities will put greater
demands on its use of resources as public spending comes under increasing
pressure. Budget constraints held back some priority services in the past. This
remains a risk now.

York scores three out of four for managing its performance. The Council's
priorities reflect the City's needs. Many community groups were consulted as
local priorities were identified. Groups included travellers, the homeless, single
parents with young children, students, housebound elderly, and people with a
physical or learning disability. Their views have led to priorities being amended
giving a stronger focus on housing and homelessness, and children and young
people.

Services key to the Council's priorities are doing well.
Ofsted rate services for children and young people as performing excellently.

The Care Quality Commission rate services for adults as performing well. But
vulnerable peoples' needs and wishes want further attention though to

2  City of York Council
Provided under embargo



Organisational Assessment ™-~-publication Version Dated 03 December 2009

Page 155

ensure they are met. The Council knows this and its plans reflect its ambitions
for all of York's people.

The Council has worked well with partners to support the local economy and
help local people through the economic downturn. Initiatives include providing
advice and support to local businesses and individuals.

The Council has also worked well with partners to improve the environment. It
has updated the way it manages waste and has increased recycling - a
service now well regarded by local people. Progress on managing traffic
congestion is being made. The Council is reducing its carbon footprint.

Successful joint action with the police is dealing with anti-social behaviour and
reducing youth offending. York is a safe city although there has been an
increase in some types of crime.

Quality and choice in housing is improving. Homelessness is reducing, but
remains high for young adults when compared with similar areas. Plans are in
place to tackle this. Satisfaction with local recreational facilities is poor, and
the lack of good quality leisure facilities may be limiting progress in increasing
adult participation in sport.

The Council scores two out of four for managing its resources. llts work meets
minimum requirements. The quality of many services has improved while the
Council's costs remain low in comparison with similar councils. But several
issues held the Council's rating down in this area of its performance.

For example, the Council's arrangements for asset management lack
consistency and are not helping it achieve better value for money. It does not
have all the information it needs on the assets it has available to it in every
area of the city. Coupled with a lack of robustness in its asset management
plans all this means the Council cannot be certain that it has the assets it
needs to deliver its priorities. Enforced delays in rationalising its offices have
held up savings and other improvements in how the Council works.

The Council is improving its understanding of its impact on natural resources
and has taken early steps to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions. Plans are
being developed to improve the way the Council uses its buildings to make it
easier for the public to get its services and to provide better value for money.

The Council has recently developed a Faimess and Inclusion Strategy
satisfying its statutory duties as an employer and service provider. But equality
and diversity are not yet consistently dealt with in all Council services. The
Council has listened to local people to make it more likely that their needs are
met. The Easy@Y ork project has made access to services easier. It has also
improved the way it responds to local people.

The Council's financial and corporate planning processes are only partially
integrated. Links between the Council's medium term financial strategy and
capital, IT and workforce planning are not strong enough. Financial planning
has focused on savings that do not undermine priorities rather than starting
from what funding is needed to achieve those priorities.

This will need to change - the Council's costs are already low and greater

3  City of York Council
Provided under embargo



Organisational Assessment M-~-publication Version Dated 03 December 2009

Page 156

financial constraints now face the public sector. Different ways of providing
services are being explored that should improve efficiency. But the medium
term financial strategy is not clear about the risks that may prevent the
delivery of corporate and service priorities.

The Council provides good community leadership in bringing local partners
together and gives good support to joint working. More work is needed
though to ensure that all councillors and officers work together consistently to
achieve the Council's overall purpose and vision. Managerial leadership has
been strong which has strengthened joint working across services. However,
the Council is in transition following the recent departure of the Chief
Executive and the arrival of his replacement.

About City of York Council

York is a historic city with an international reputation. The City and its
surrounding area include the historic walled city, the suburbs and a large area
of countryside. 4 million visitors each year bring wealth into the area as well
as disruption and congestion. Covering an area of 105 square miles, the
district of York comprises an urban area centred on the historic city
surrounded by many small rural and semi rural settlements. The area has a
total population of 195,400. The black and minority ethnic (BME) population is
4.9 per cent of the total. The proportion of people from BME communities
doubled between 1991 and 2001 and is expected to grow further in the next
few years.

The population of the district of York is increasing and is projected to increase
by 4.2 per cent between 2001 and 2011 and by a further 8.3 per cent up to
2021. The four institutions of further and higher education bring the total
number of students in York to around 20,000 (or about one-tenth of the
population).

Population growth and an increase in smaller household is placing pressure on
housing. ‘Affordable’ housing is scarce and house prices are well above the
regional average. An average house in York costs around £200,000. The
average annual wage in the city is about £19,000. Given the historic nature of
the city's built environment, planning and development are sensitive issues.

For many the area provides a great standard of living. Schools are good as is
healthcare. The City is popular with students and both its universities are
growing. Until recently the economy has been strong with well-paid jobs in
financial services as well as many other lower paid opportunities in tourism.
The City has responded well to the relative decline in employment in
traditional local industries (such as chocolate manufacturing and railways).
These jobs have been replaced by a high-tech and science based industrial
sector linked to the universities. Science City York is playing an increasingly
important part in developing the city.

But some people are still not sharing the benefits that go with living in York.
Owning their own home is out of reach of many residents on average
incomes. Residents are dissatisfied with the choices for recreation available to
them. A fifth of York's people live in poverty. This poses a major challenge to
its hope of being an even more inclusive city. The Council's plans reflect the

4  City of York Council
Provided under embargo



Organisational Assessment ™-~-publication Version Dated 03 December 2009

Page 157

depth of this challenge.

Organisational assessment

Thriving City

The Council and partners have worked well to soften the impact of the
economic downturn on the city. Despite recent job losses, businesses still feel
York is a good place to be. Initiatives involving the Council include York
Enterprise Week. During the event businesses and individuals got advice and
support. An enterprise fund to support new business start-ups is now in place.
The Council, with its partners, has set up a mortgage rescue scheme to help
people who are at risk of losing their homes. But, for all this increased support,
York like other places saw significantly fewer new small businesses in
2008/09.

The city’s economy is strong compared with neighbouring areas. The
unemployment rate remains below those for the region and the UK. The
number of people claiming job seekers allowance rose in line with national
and regional trends. Interestingly - and in contrast with other trends - the
number of working age people on out of work benefits fell slightly in 2008/09.
The number of people of working age with qualifications has increased.
Almost two-fifths have NVQ Level 4 qualification or above. This is higher than
in most other parts of the country.

Housing and council tax benefits claimants are getting a better service. The
average time taken to process new benefit claims fell to 15 days in 2008/09.
But this is still longer than the national average. Benefit take up campaigns
have been successful in helping people to claim what they are entitled to. The
Council is working successfully with partners to help the poorer parts of the
city. Residents are being helped into training and employment. Other people
are being given advice on how to keep their homes warmer while saving
money.

Sustainable City

Council action to reduce household waste has led to a 5 per cent fall in the
amount collected in 2008/09. Almost half of the waste collected is now
recycled. Significantly less waste was disposed of through landfill. That's good
for the environment and saves taxpayers money. Soon more waste will be
recycled through a new kerbside collection scheme. Alternate weekly
collection of waste and recycling across the city will help achieve its target of
recycling half of the city’s waste by December 2010. Public satisfaction is
improving and is now around the national average.

After four years of improvement standards of street cleanliness were static in
2008/09. York’s standards are just below the national average but satisfaction
with the standard of street cleanliness is high. The Council improved the way
it manages sites of nature conservation value in 2008/09, with more of these
sites now being well managed. However, the Council carried out fewer
conservation area appraisals than planned.

5 City of York Council
Provided under embargo



Organisational Assessment M-~-publication Version Dated 03 December 2009

Page 158

The Council has helped manage traffic congestion. While this remains a major
local issue peak period journey times in the city have stopped increasing. Plans
to extend the Park and Ride network are being rolled out. People are happier
with their bus services than is the case in other areas. Over the last two years
the number of bus journeys in the City increased putting the City amongst the
best performers nationally. Almost half a million more bus journeys were made
in 2008/09 than in the previous year. But this was 1.7 million short of the
target of 17 million journeys the Council had set itself.

After a successful Council bid for national Cycling City status, external funding
is available to enable it to improve facilities for cyclists over the next three
years. Early progress has been made in resurfacing existing cycle lanes,
improving cycle access and encouraging children to cycle through events such
as the Biking Viking event involving children from four schools cycling into the
city centre.

The Council has made some early progress in reducing its carbon footprint.
Completed projects on the Eco Depot, Yearsley Pool, school waste recycling
and the use of renewable energy has reduced carbon emissions. Other
projects are in progress to make schools, sport centres, street lighting and
Council housing more energy efficient as the Council works towards reducing
its CO2 emissions by a quarter by 2013.

Safer City

The Council’s work is helping to make York an even safer city. Crime and
anti-social behaviour are being tackled successfully. A high proportion of
people feel that their views are considered and that issues are being dealt
with effectively. Few people see anti-social or drunk and rowdy behaviour as
being a problem. Serious acquisitive crime increased slightly in 2008/09 but it
remains below the 2006/07 level. The increase is due mainly to a 14 per cent
increase in domestic burglaries.

The Council’s Youth Offending Team has worked well with young offenders,
contributing to the number of first time entrants to the youth justice system
falling by a third. Reoffending by young people in York is also going down but
is higher than in similar areas. The percentage of young offenders engaging in
education and work is also low compared with other areas.

The Council has good arrangements for ensuring children and young people
are safeguarded. Children’s needs are assessed quickly and families are given
the support they need to help them cope. This has resulted in fewer children
coming back on to the child protection register than in most other parts of the
country.

The Council and its partners have also had some success in improving road

safety, with a slight fall in the number of people killed or seriously injured in
road traffic accidents in 2008/09.

Learning City

Children’s services in York perform excellently. York’s schools provide a high
standard of education for most local children. Most schools, children’s homes,

6 City of York Council
Provided under embargo



Organisational Assessment ™-~-publication Version Dated 03 December 2009

Page 159

pupil referral units, nurseries and childminders are good or better. This means
that almost all children and young people get good help and support. Ofsted’s
inspections of York’s schools found most of them to be good or better more
than is found in similar areas or nationally. No school in York is inadequate.
York Council’s adoption and fostering agencies are outstanding and children’s
homes are good or outstanding. Most childcare is good or better. Nursery and
primary schools in York perform better than in similar areas or nationally.

Ofsted and the Audit Commission looked in December 2008 at how York’s
children are kept safe. They said these arrangements were outstanding. The
review also looked at the services children in the Council’s care receive. These
too were outstanding. There has been one serious case review since
December 2008 which was judged adequate.

York’s performance against almost all national performance indicators for
education matches or exceeds that of similar areas. The number of children
achieving 5 or more A*-C grades at GCSE including English and Maths is
among the highest in the country, despite falling slightly in 2008/09.

Children from communities at risk of disadvantage do not necessarily do as
well though. York’s vulnerable children and young people do not do as well as
their peers. Most young people get services that are good or better but one of
the City’s special schools and one of its units for pupils with challenging
behaviour are adequate. This is in the context of good or better provision for
the majority of young people.

Also, children aged 11 who have free school meals do less well than the rest
of their age group. This gap is wider in York than elsewhere in the country. A
similar gap exists for young people at 16 who have special educational needs.
Some young people from a minority ethnic background do not do as well as
their peers at 16.

The skills of the working age population are improving. About three out of
every four people in the city now have at least an NVQ Level 2 qualification.
This is below the target the Council and its partners set for themselves. They
know more needs to be done to ensure local people are able to take
advantage of new job opportunities as the economic recession ends.

As the economic downturn developed, the number of 16 to 18 year olds not in
education, training or employment increased in 2008/09 to 4.2 per cent. But
this is still much lower than in most parts of the country.

A smaller proportion of young people from poorer homes in York go on to
higher education than is the case for those from better off families. This gap is
wider than in many other parts of the country.

Inclusive City

The Council and its partners have made some improvements to the quality of
services to those with specific needs. The Care Quality Commission has rated
the City Council’s adult social care as performing well and improvement from
last year.

The Council has improved the quality of services to vulnerable older people,

7  City of York Council
Provided under embargo



Organisational Assessment M-~-publication Version Dated 03 December 2009

Page 160

but more needs to be done. Significant improvements were made in 2008/09
for older people with care needs, and the number of people being supported
to live independently in their own homes increased by over a tenth.

More carers now get support. A high proportion of older people are satisfied
with their homes and the local neighbourhood although many feel more needs
to be done to help them live independently. In comparison with services in
other similar areas, performance remains below average and the Council
recognises the need to take further action to continue the improvement so
far.

The Council has also reduced the time taken to carry out assessments of
children with care needs. Children in its care are being moved around less
which is better for them. A high proportion of parents are satisfied with the
services provided to disabled children, with York coming out top of 30
authorities who took part in a survey in 2008/09.

Good progress has been made in meeting the city's housing needs. The
number of homes not meeting the Government’s decency standards fell by
almost half to 5.7 per cent in 2008/09. There are 151 new affordable homes
in the City because of the work of the Council and its partners. Although less
than the Council's target it represents good progress in the current economic
climate.

Work has recently started on replacing 100 prefabricated bungalows with 196
new homes across three sites in the city. These include 95 houses and
apartments for affordable rent, discounted sale and sale on the open market.
There will be new housing too designed to meet the needs of older people.

The Council has also been successful in dealing with homelessness, with the
number of families living in temporary accommodation decreasing by a fifth,
although homelessness of young adults remains relatively high.

City of Culture

The Council, with partners, has continued to provide the City of Festivals
programme. This includes events dealing with different cultural activities such
as dance, food and drink, literature and sport. As well as a residents’ festival,
some events are targeted at different groups, such as older people. Local
people are closely involved in the festival programme. The festivals uphold and
promote the strong sense of community for many in the city.

Cultural facilities are a key part of the attraction for visitors to the city and
satisfaction with subregional cultural attractions, such as museums and art
galleries, is high.

The Council has taken some actions to encourage local people to take
advantage of local facilities. For examples the Council is developing the
“Changing Places” project. This is opening up the city and cultural and leisure
opportunities to people with more complex health and care needs.

Satisfaction with facilities provided for the use of local people, such as libraries
and sport and leisure facilities, is poor despite recent improvements. There
have been delays with plans to redevelop the Barbican Centre and, although

8 City of York Council
Provided under embargo



Organisational Assessment ™-~-publication Version Dated 03 December 2009

Page 161

progress has been made in improving the quality of some swimming pools and
sports centres, rates of adult participation in active sport and recreation are
low. Targets for increasing participation in physical activity have not been met.

The Council has taken action to develop and improve play areas and the level
of satisfaction with parks and open spaces is above average.

Healthy City

The Council has taken actions to improve the health of local people, although
results have been mixed. The Council is joining in a local ‘Altogether Better’
programme focusing on healthy eating, physical activity and mental well-being
and has targeted those with greater health and social care needs.

Healthy eating programmes have been introduced for older people in
residential care, although these are not in place in all facilities provided by
independent providers. Despite introducing a range of activities, the
proportion of adults taking part in physical activity has fallen. A ‘Fit as a Fiddle’
programme has been introduced to encourage older people to take part in
physical exercise. The numbers of people taking part are increasing and, as
well as helping older people stay healthy, the programme provides older
people who would otherwise have been isolated, a chance to socialise.

The Council has been successful in developing services to help older people
live independently, although the number of older people being admitted to
residential care remains relatively high. The Council has strengthened its
arrangements for safeguarding vulnerable older people and treating them
with dignity and respect. Carers now have greater choice to enable them to
get personalised support that bests meets their circumstances, although more
needs to be done to support them.

The Council has been more successful in promoting healthy lifestyles with
children and young people. Health promotion in York’s schools has had a
positive impact on most pupils. More children take part in PE and sport than in
similar areas, although the take up of school lunches is lower. Obesity rates in
primary schools remain lower than most parts of the country, although there
was a slight increase in 2008/09.

Services for young people needing support for mental health issues are good
and are better than most other parts of the country, although services for
adults are not as effective.

Despite projects to reduce it, the rate of pregnancies in the under-18 age
group has continued to increase. Unplanned and unwanted conceptions are a
particular area of concern. Work is continuing on this and the Council is
hopeful that the situation is now improving.

9 City of York Council
Provided under embargo



Organisational Assessment M-~-publication Version Dated 03 December 2009

Page 162

CAA looks at how well local public services, working together, are meeting the
needs of the people they serve. It's a joint assessment made by a group of
independent watchdogs about the performance of local public services, and
how likely they are to meet local priorities. From 9 December you will find the
results of Comprehensive Area Assessment on the Oneplace website -
http://oneplace.direct.gov.uk/

m for an independent overview
of local public services

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ

Telephone: 0844 798 1212

Fax: 0844 798 2945

Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946
www.audit-commission.gov.uk

10 City of York Council
Provided under embargo



Page 163

Annual Audit
Letter

City of York Council
Audit 2008/09
November 2009

‘B g&'rﬁ?rt]ission



Page 164

Contents

Key messages

Financial statements and annual governance statement
Value for money and use of resources

Closing remarks

Appendix 1 — Use of resources key findings and conclusions

Appendix 2 — Action plan

Status of our reports

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body.
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive directors/
members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. Auditors
accept no responsibility to:

¢ any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or

e any third party.




Page 165

This report summarises the findings from our 2008/09 audit. It includes messages
arising from the audit of your financial statements and the results of the work | have
undertaken to assess your arrangements to secure value for money in your use of
resources.

| gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's 2008/09 financial statements on
30 September 2009.

The draft financial statements presented for audit contained a number of significant
and material errors which the Council amended. The Council is designing and
implementing quality assurance processes that will prevent and detect these errors
before the 2009/10 draft financial statements are approved by members and submitted
for audit.

Additional audit work required to give the unqualified opinion has resulted in me
charging the Council an extra £2,000.

| gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's value for money arrangements in
2008/09.

The Council's overall use of resources score for 2008/09 is level 2, meeting minimum
standards and representing an adequate performance.

Within this score there are elements of stronger performance in some areas, in
particular the Council's provision of value for money services, its risk management
arrangements and elements of its commissioning of services.

The Council has embarked on a challenging programme to deliver £15m efficiency
savings over a three year period. The successful delivery of this programme should
have a positive impact on the Council's future use of resources.



Page 166

Key messages

Table 1 Audit fees
Actual Proposed Variance
Financial statements and annual 134,701 132,701 2,000
governance statement
Value for money 108,354 108,354 0
Total audit fees 243,055 241,055 2,000
Non-audit work 0 0 0
Total 243,055 241,055 2,000
Actions
8 Recommendations are shown within the body of this report and have been agreed with
officers.
Independence

9 The audit has been carried out in accordance with the Audit Commission’s policies on

integrity, objectivity and independence.

City of York Council

4



Page 167

Financial statements and annual ge.<..iwiive wowcement

Financial statements and annual
governance statement

The Council's financial statements and annual governance statement are an
important means by which it accounts for its stewardship of public funds.

Audit opinion

10 | gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's 2008/09 financial statements on
30 September 2009.

Significant issues arising from the audit

11 My audit of the 2008/09 financial statements identified a number of errors, and some
were material.

12 A significant proportion of the errors related to the tangible fixed assets balance and
the related capital accounting entries. In particular we identified a number of duplicate
entries in the 'assets under construction' category of the balance sheet. In total the
tangible fixed assets balance was reduced by £25.5m from the balance in the draft
financial statements as a result of my audit.

13 The asset register has an important role in helping the Council manage and account
for its tangible fixed assets. While the Council has improved the usefulness and quality
of its asset register from 2007/08, further work is needed to ensure that it is fully
effective. The Council is reviewing the register to ensure that it contains all, and only,
the fixed assets that it needs to account for in 2009/10.

14 Other material errors included £15.3m of expenditure and £2.6m of income being
mis-classified in the Income & Expenditure Account, and £19.5m mis-classified as a
deferred asset and a deferred liability in the balance sheet, as a result of a change in
the financial reporting requirements. In addition there were several smaller value
errors.

15 Officers are establishing the reasons why these errors occurred, and are committed to
implementing a thorough robust quality assurance process, to identify and correct the
errors before the financial statements are approved in June 2010.

Recommendation

R1 Implement a thorough and robust quality assurance process that is designed to
identify material errors in the financial statements before they are approved in
June 2010.

5 | City of York Council



Page 168

Whilst my audit identified a greater number of errors than the previous year's audit, the
Council had improved its project planning and project management for producing the
2008/09 financial statements. The financial statements were produced slightly earlier
than in 2007/08, and the supporting working papers were generally produced to the
required standard. | will continue to work with officers to enable them to deliver further
improvements in 2009/10.

Other than the comments above relating to the quality assurance processes in the
closedown of the accounts, | did not identify any significant weaknesses in your
internal control arrangements.

The Council made a number of amendments to the presentation of the financial
statements before we gave our opinion. These amendments improved the quality of
the financial statements.

There are some outstanding matters that officers intend to resolve in the 2009/10
financial statements, and | will work closely with officers to continuously improve the
quality of the financial statements. These matters were fully reported in my 2008/09
Annual Governance Reports issued in September 2009.



Page 169

Value for money and use of resour...

Value for money and use of
resources

| considered how well the Council is managing and using its resources to deliver
value for money and better and sustainable outcomes for local people, and gave a
scored use of resources judgement.

| also assessed whether the Council put in place adequate corporate arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is
known as the value for money (VFM) conclusion.

Use of resources judgements

20

21

22

In forming my scored use of resources judgements, | have used the methodology set
out in the use of resources framework. Judgements have been made for each key line
of enquiry (KLOE) using the Audit Commission’s current four point scale from 1 to 4,
with 4 being the highest. Level 1 represents a failure to meet the minimum
requirements at level 2.

| have also taken into account, where appropriate, findings from previous use of
resources assessments (updating these for any changes or improvements) and any
other relevant audit work. However, the 2008/09 assessment is very different from
previous assessments. Judgements are now much more strategic and less detailed,
with a focus on outcomes rather than processes. The standard required to achieve a
level two assessment has been raised and is now much more demanding.

The Council's use of resources theme scores are shown in Table 2 below. The key
findings and conclusions for the three themes, and the underlying KLOE, are
summarised in Appendix 1.

Table 2 Use of resources theme scores
Use of resources theme Scored judgement
Managing finances 2
Governing the business 2
Managing resources 2
7 | City of York Council



Page 170

The Audit Commission’s overall score for the Council’s use of resources is level 2
(performing adequately). This takes into account

the Audit Commission’s scoring criteria in the new Use of Resources approach this
year; and

the Council’s planned and actual progress, and the positive impact this should
have on the Council’'s arrangements.

The Council has embarked on a three year efficiency programme to realise £15m of
savings and improve service delivery. While it is too early to assess the impact of this
programme on the outcomes delivered by the Councll, it is clear that the successful
delivery of the programme is critical for the Council to achieve its priorities with the
strict financial climate facing all public service bodies.

The Council has an established and well understood financial planning and monitoring
system. The design of the system is geared towards identifying and monitoring
efficiencies and savings in a detailed and methodical way on a service by service level,
rather than focusing on more corporate wide and cross directorate efficiencies.

The Council has recognised the difficulties in continuing with this approach and taken
positive action by employing an efficiency partner to look for savings across the
Council, as well as reviewing and revising the existing financial planning and
monitoring arrangements.

The Council has developed a strategic approach to asset management, which has had
some positive impact, but is not consistently applied across the organisation. The
approach is centred around a corporate Asset Management Plan (AMP) and a
corporate Asset Management Group charged with the task of implementing the AMP.
The group relies on influence rather than direct control of asset management across
the Council, and structures are not in place across the Council to ensure the principles
of good asset management are applied consistently. Implementation plans for asset
management are not consistently robust. Corporate and service AMPs are not
under-pinned by robust implementation plans although the existing area-based AMPs
have action plans which are clearly focused on local needs and priorities.

The delivery of the Council's ambitions for asset management is constrained by limited
financial resources and a lack of a full understanding of how assets contribute to the
achievement of corporate priorities. This makes it difficult to ensure that financial
resources are consistently prioritised to maximise their impact, although there are
examples of how social and environmental outcomes have been improved.

The Council does not have systems in place to effectively demonstrate value for
money in asset management. Steps are being taken to address the gaps in information
regarding the Council's asset portfolio through the development of a new asset
database.



Page 171

Performance indicators are not routinely used to monitor progress against the
corporate AMP. Annual benchmarking is carried out against a set of national asset
management indicators, but there is no framework of local indicators and targets to
monitor progress against the objectives and priorities contained in the corporate AMP.

The Council is not addressing the growing level of backlog maintenance. There is a
repair and maintenance strategy which is managed by the corporate landlord, and
aims to ensure the effective use of the Council's resources. It sets a number of
objectives designed to ensure that all the Council's assets are fit for purpose by 2017.
However, as repair and maintenance budgets are largely devolved to services, it is
difficult to ensure that they are consistently prioritised in line with the corporate Asset
Management Plan.

There are examples of how the Council is improving services through improvements to
its asset base. However, there is no consistent approach to challenge whether assets
are required, fit for purpose, and provide value for money in meeting current and future
needs.

The Council has an established policy to work with community groups which is
delivering community benefits. There are examples of assets being transferred to
community groups which have had a positive impact and others are being considered,
particularly in relation to those areas covered by an area Asset Management Plan. The
Council is also developing its approach to working with partners to improve the
effectiveness of the asset base. There are examples of shared use of buildings, but the
Council recognises the need to adopt a more strategic approach.

Produce and implement action plans arising from the use of resources
assessments and value for money work.

| assessed your arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your
use of resources against criteria specified by the Audit Commission. From 2008/09, the
Audit Commission will specify each year, which of the use of resources KLOE are the
relevant criteria for the VFM conclusion at each type of audited body. My conclusions
on each of the areas are set out in Appendix 1.

| issued an unqualified conclusion stating that the Council had adequate arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.



Page 172

Closing remarks

Closing remarks

36 | have agreed this letter with the Chief Executive and the Director of Finance. | will
present this letter at the Audit & Governance Committee in December 2009 and it will

be made available to all members.

37 Further detailed findings, conclusions and recommendations in the areas covered by
our audit are included in the reports issued to the Council during the year.

Table 3 Reports issued in 2008/09

Report Date issued
Audit & Inspection Plan April 2008
Financial Planning & Monitoring Arrangements March 2009
Data Quality Arrangements April 2009
Supplementary Opinion Plan April 2009

Use of Resources Report September 2009
Annual Governance Report September 2009
Supplementary Governance Report September 2009
Asset Management Report November 2009

38 The Council has taken a positive and constructive approach to our audit. | wish to
thank officers for their support and co-operation during the audit.

Steve Nicklin
District Auditor
November 2009

City of York Council | 10



Page 173

IDUNOD MIOA JO AN | LI

*Jeak sIy} S)JUNOD. Yelp By YIIM

Senss| |elis)ew palnuapl 8ARY aM JoABMOH ‘pajeadal usaq Jou aAey sieak snoiaid Jo swiejqold ay) JO sWos Jnsal e se pue sjuswabue.ie Juswsebeuew josloid
poob Buipnjoul sjuswabuelie umopaso|d pascidll 82e(d Ul 18s sey I0UN0D 8] INg ‘Wiay) YIIM SaNnssi snoJswinu pey aAey sjuswialels [eloueul Ipne-aid siesk
snoinaid 8y "SJUSUSSESSE S801N0sal Jo asn sieak aininy uo joedwi [Im ‘sieak aaly) ul sBuiaes Aousiolle 10 WG| F aAaIYoR 0] Syees yolym swwelbold Aousiolle
s Jlouno) ay] ‘seaue Buipodal eioueul pue Buluued jeioueul) 8yl 0] sjuswsAoidwi Bujew si pue ‘s)sod sy Buipuejsiepun uo AjBuoas pawlouad sey 1ounod 8y

suoisnjauod pue sbuipuiy Aoy

r4 2100s away |

saoueuly buibeuep

"SalaY) S824N0sal JO 8sn 8aJy) Y] JO Yoes Joj suoisnjouod pue sbulpuly Asy ay) esuewwns sajge) Buimojoy syl |

SUOISN|OU09D
pue sbuipulj Aay s8ai1nosal Jo asn — | Xipuaddy

suolisn|ouod pue sbuipuij A9y sa2i1nosal jo asn — | xipuaddy



Page 174

-abug|ieyo pue Aunnios aAnRoNIISUOD alow WOJ) Jyduaq pjnom asay) ybnoyye ‘sieah juadal ul sjesodoud

106png ay) 03 uone|al ul 1PUN0D AQ play usaq aney sajeqap Ayjbus| pue ‘siaquisw pue s1ad1o 0} papiroid usaq sey Buiuiel) payebie) swog “saljigisuodsal asay}
punoue yJomauwel} ay} apiroid uonebsjeq Jo swayosg pue suolenbay |eloueul4 8y} puUB ‘UoIN}IISUOD 8y} Ul INO 18s AjJes|o ale saljljigisuodsal [enplAlpu| “[IounoD
|In} 03 ybnouy) ajeloloallp wody sueld |eroueul) 8y} Jo Juswdojaasp pue Buiuodal JO saull 1ea|d Yjm 81njonJs aoueUIBA0D |elouBul pooisiapun [jam B Sey |1Iouno) 8yl
‘pasde||0o syueq ay) usaym

pasodxa jou sem JI Apuanbasuo) ‘papesbumop Buleq sbuijes Jpalo ay} 0} Joud SJUBWISSAUI 8SBY) PapPUS pPeY INg SHUEBJ JIPUB|8I| Ul SJUBWISSAUI 8ARBY PIP [I0UN0D
a3y -eouepinb y4d|D Junodoe Ojul Usye) Sey pue ‘syueq dlpuead| ay} Jo asde|j0o ay) o b1 ul ABajel)s Juswabeuely Ainseal] S} pamalAal Sey 1Iouno) 8yl
“Jejndodun aq 03 Jybnoy; Aisnoinaid ‘sywiad Buppied uspisal

uou JO 1S02 8y] Ul 8sealoul 8y) se yons apew Buleq suoisiosp j96png oij10ads 0] ps| uoe)NSU0D ay) pue ‘sjusplisal Jo Juao Jad g Aq 0] pepuodsal a1em sAaAIns ay)
60/8002Z U] Jeguwada( Ul uoljeynsuod 1o6png Jepim s)i Jo Jed se siapjoysyels Yyim sdoysyiom se [|om se SASAINS aul| uo pue |ejsod pue Jaquialdes ul uone)Nsuoo
196png aweyds Juawanocidwi |BOO| Sepn|oul Jey} Jepusied Juswabebus ue pue Absjeng juswabebug ue padojaasp sey [19uno) ay) ‘Buiuueld jeloueuly Jo SwWUs)

u| ‘sjuswssasse joedw saiiienba Bupjenspun Aq g0/200z @2uls uone|siba| sanienba ay) yum aul| ul saibsiel)s pue saioljod sy Buissesse usaq sey [1I9Uno0D a8y |

"sajioud Jandp 0} shkem anneulsye alojdxa pue asn a2Jnosal abusjieyd o} papusjul

sI pajuswajdwi mou malnal Aouaioiys ay) pue ‘sanold oibajens Aay s,|10uno) ay) sjo9jial pue pajepdn Auejnbal si jjasy Abajel)s |eloueuly WIS) wWNipaw ay |
‘Buipue)s |elouBUL PUNOS B UlejUleW 0} PaaU 8y} pUB ‘Wia} WNIpaw 8y} JOAO S||BjJOYS 82In0Sal S)l JO SSaUaIeme S [Iouno?) ay} Jo

}nsal j0auIp B aJe sieak 9aiy) }xau a8y} JOAO palinbai sbuines WG 3F 8yl "01/600g wody ssadoid Buiuueld yo6png ay) 03 Indul JoaJIp B pey 810}848Y) PUB ‘WJd) wnipaw
a2y} Jano sbuines Jo sjang| paldinbal Ajyuapl 0} padjay sey ey Jeuned Aousioys ue Bunuiodde Ag pasnooy ajeio}dalip uey) ajelodiod aiow sbBuiAes ayew 0} paAow
Ajuaoal sey [19uno) ay| “siaquisy Ag pasiunnios suejd sbuiaes onsijeal inqg buibus|jeyos Aq pauoddns “es si j1@bpnq onsijeal pue pasuejeq ‘aAisuayaldwod vy
'sassao0.d Buiuue|d

|eIOUBUL [BNUUE PUB WIS} wnipaw ayj o} [9]jeded ul unu ale jey) Buiuueld seoinosal uewny pue || ‘|ended Joj sessao0id ay) 0} apew aq 0} pasu syul| Jo1dxa alow
pue 18sojo Jnqg ‘ssaoold uoneouiuapl sbuines [enuue ay) 0y |edbajul si Buibieyo swoou| ul }jing saouabuuod pue palapisuod AjpAljoe ale sjuswdojaasp Buiwoodn
ybnoyye ‘(S4LN) Abajedis |eloueuly ws) wnipaw ay) 0} uoneal ul saiold adiAIas pue ajelodlod BuiAsiyoe Jou JO SYSU 8} 0]} Spew 8q 0} pasu syul| Jales|)
"S9IIAJSS ||B SSOIOB SBI0UaI0I8 pue sjuswanocidwl adIAIes JaAlap pue ajelbajul Ajns 0] )1 8|geus pinoys swuwelbold Aousiois mau s, |1IounoD

ay] ‘sbuines Aousiole 0} pajnqguiuod sey josloid yJoA@Ase] sy} 03 Buipuny Jo uonjoalipal 8y} pue ‘sieak snoinaid ul ayegap Jueodiiubis o0} 10algns uaaq aAey Buipuny
Joyj sanuoud ay | “syuswanoidwi Auoud ad1a1es ay) puny Ajjny 0] papasu ainjipuadxs ay) uo Buisnoo} uey) Jayjel ‘saijLioud a2IAI8S JO JuswaAalyoe ay) asipiedos(
1,Uop 1ey) sauo Jiaqe ‘sbuines Bupew uo usaq Ajgbie| sey Buiuueld [eioueuly Jo snooy ay “sanuoud yum paisedwod uonesijiin 82inosal Jo sisAjeue ue apnjoul
[1ouno) o} spodal pue ‘sanuioud uo joedwi Jisy) JO SWId) Ul palapisuod ale sjesodoud sbuineg ‘pajelbojul Ajened ale sassasoid Buiuue|d a)ei0diod pue [eioueul

suoiIsn|2uo0d pue sbuipuly Aoy
SOA JoW uoLIdIID N4A
c 9109g

(Buuueyd jeroueuy) L' 30IM



Page 175

‘ubisapal 92IAI8S |ejusWIBpUN)

ybnouy) sieak aaiy) 1xau ay} JBAO WG| F Jo sbuines Aouaiole ayew 0} swie ydiym aininy ay) Joj swwelbosd Aousioys snoljique ue dojaasp 0y Jauped 10)oas a)jeald
B U}IM PayIOM SBY [Iouno) 8y "Sa2IAIeS 0) $S800e panosdwi pue sbuines Aousiolie ul pa}insal sey Yolym sieak Jo Jaquinu e JaA0 Smalnal Jo abuel e pajesodiooul
sey pue ABojouyos) mau Jo asn aaieAouul Buyew si swwelbold siy] -swwelboid yiok@Ases ay) Aq paouspins se ‘sanuoud uo snooy Jes|o e sl aidyl ‘60/8002

ul panaiyoe Buiaq 6/ 1 IN Ag painsesaw sbuines Buisesjal Ysed wg3 JOA0 pue papasdxa Buieq g0/2.00z 0} sieaA 9aly) ay} Jo yoes 4o} sjabie) Aousioie yim way)
Buinaiyoe jo plodal yoed) B sey [1ouno) ay) pue ‘sjabie) Aousioe Buibusjieyo jo Buipes ayj sadinbas sajesado [1oUNOD By} YoIYM UIYJIM SJUIBIISUOD [eioueul Jybi ay |
‘PaA8IYOR Uda(Q SABY SBWO0IIN0 dAISod awos pue joeduwi [elouBUl) 8Y) SB ||[oM SE SaNSS| [BI00S pue |ejUsWUOCIIAUS JO Junodoe saye) ABajells

JUBWaIN201d d|qeuleisng s |Iounod ay| “Alo ayj Jo sped swos ul s)sixe yoiym deb saijijenbs ay) Buimouleu uo siseydwa Buisealoul ue yym ‘syoedull [BJUSWIUOIIAUS
pue |e1o00s Japim Buliepisuod awily swes ay} 1. is|iym Aousiolys aroidwi 0y diysiaulied ul payiom sey [1Iounod syl moy Jo sajdwexs Jo Jaquinu e aJe aiay |

10edwi [enusjod Jo ajeas ay) pue sanloud yum juswubije uo paseq puny AlaAljop

VV1 98U} JO uoljeo0||e 40} SPIg UO SUOoISIoap apew aAey sisuled aleym Bupjiom diysisuped o) spusixs yoeoudde siy| UOIEPOWLIOIIE 821}J0 MBU JO jJuswdojanap ay)
0} Bunejas asoy) se yons ‘suoisioap oibajens Jofew o} Ajjenbs sajidde 3l puy ‘seale Jo Jaquinu B ul SSWO023N0 0} S}S0D JO Oljel 8y} ul sjuswaaoidwi [enpelb ul pa)nsal
aABY UoIym suoisioap |euolielado aunnod 0y saiidde siy| ‘Buiyew uoisioap wioyul 0} [esodsip S} e UOIIeWIOUI }SO0 8Y} JO @SN Ja)eq ayew o} Buiuels si [1ouno) ay |
‘Bunyiom diysisuped 1anoo o) padojansp Buiaq si yoroidde siy| 'Sawo0IN0 AISAIIBP 92IAISS 0} 8)NJLIJUOD S)SOD MOY UO 3)eqap pawlojul

alow e a|qeus 0] }101jdxe alow apew a8 0] paau Seale OM) 9S8y} USaM]aq SYul| 8y} Jng uonew.lojul Juswabeuew aouewlouad 82IAI8S UM Siaquiaw 0} pauodal mou
Bulojuow |eIoUBUIH "JUBWISSOSSE |BJUSWIUOIIAUS UB PapNn|oul 0s|e Sey UYdIym ‘Uuoljepowilodoe 8210 mau 0} aaow pauueld ayj se yons ‘sjosfoud Jolew oy paidde

ale sanbiuyoa) Bunsoo 81| BJOYAA [IoUNOYD BY) SSOIOB S)SOD 8oUasge Ssauyols Buionpal se yons ‘sanss| 8)el0diod ssaippe 0} uay e} usag Os|e Sey UoIjoe |NjSsaoong
"S9OIAISS 10} puewap Buimolb sy} JO JUNOJOE YOO0) pue SjuswaAoIdwl 82IAISS PaIBAIIBP OS|e INg ‘1S0D 8oNpal 0} SUOIOR PapN[oul SBJIAISS

2led ]JJNpe JO M3IASI Y/ "PauleISNS S82IAISS S,Ualp(iyo ul ouewlopad ybiy pue ‘sieak juadal ul sadinlas Aliold Jo ebuel e ul spew usaqg aAey sjuswaoidwl ‘S)sod
Buibeuew uo snooj Buoss ay) aydseq "Aousioiaul [erualod Jo seale Ajjuspl 0) sasn 1 yaiym saniunuoddo Bupjiewyouag snojawnu Jo asn sayew |Iouno) ay |

‘Alleuoneu sj1ounod Alejun o sjel Xe| [1I9uno) @ pueg 1Semo| pJiyl ay) pue pesy Jad puads 1samo| ay) 1e saolales Allijlenb poob JaAljep 0] [1ouno) ay) psjgqeus
sey aouew.lopad pue 1S02 Uo snooy Buolis v "Ajjeulsixe pue Ajjeulsiul yjoq ‘sainssald pue sisAlp Asy ay) pue ‘S}soo sl Jo Bulpueisiepun Jesjo B sey |Iouno) ay |

suoiIsn|2uo0d pue sbuipuly Aoy

SOA JoW UoLIdID IN4A

¢ 2109g

(salouaioyja Buiaaiyoe pue s3sod Buipuelsiapun) 'L JOIM



Page 176

"osay) Buneoo| Jo asea ay) 0} spew usaq aAeYy Sjuswanoldwi Jusdal pue uone[suel) abenbue| ubiaio) Buipnjoul
‘SJUBLINOOP JO SUOISIOA 8|gISSOII. JUSISHIP UO UOIIBWIOLUI UIBJUOD SBOP 8)IS oM S,[10uUno) 8y “AJUNWILIOD |BO0| 8SISAIP 8U} JO SPAaU 8y} }JodlW pue Ssasse
0] papaau s| YIoMm Jayuny jey) pabpsimousoe sey pue ‘sjuawnoop a|gejieae Ajpignd sy jo Ajiqissaooe ay) buinoidwi ul ssaibold awos spew sey |1ouno) ay |

"Jeak jse| wolj panoidwi sey ety Jaded Bupjiom ay| "ewi} U0 SIaquuaw 0} PaRILIgNS alom SJUNOIoe

ay) pue ‘1eaf jse| ueyy yoeosdde pabeuew josfoid pue painjoniis ajow e Buisn paonpoid usag aneY g0/800Z Ul JIPNE JOj paiwgns Sjuswalels |eloueul) ay |

‘Aem Jus)ISISUOD pue Jes|o B Ul apew Jou Ajjualind ale elep |elouBUL-UOU PUB |elouBUl UsaM)aq sabeyull ay)

‘e}ep Jo s}as om} ay) ulejdxa o} spodal ay) ul suoljeue|dxas Jesjo ale alay) pue ‘lodal ajbuls e ul Jayiaboy} papodal SI UOBLLIOUI [BIDUBUIL UOU PUB [eioueul ybnoyyy
‘pJOMBI0} BY) Ul [9A8] Alewwins e Je uinjno o}

196pnq Jo uosiedwod e uiejuod op sjuswaslels ay) ybnoyje ‘syuswalels [eioueuly ayy ul Ajleussixe pauodal 8soy) pue sjnsal payodal Ajjeulajul usamiaq [leJ) Jes|o
e Ajjuapl 03 }noip si ) Buuojuow |eloueul Ul pasnh ale suoljosfosd yoiym ul Aem ayy 0} enQq “pauiiuspl aie spuadsiano aiaym Alaaljep ad1A18s uo joedw [enusiod
Aue a1ebijiw 0) usye} 8q 0} UOIOe 10 JUBIdIYNS SI PapPIACId UoIIBWLIOUI JBY) UMOYS SeY SJeaA snolaaid ul JJ0M JnQO “Sanss| Jouiw uo snooy alow Bunnowoud Ajjenusyod
pue ‘Ayjbus| suodal [ewuoy alow asay) bupjew ‘(sesodind juswabeuew asuewlouad 10} Je pey0o| 8q JYbiw SSOUBLIBA JOUIW SI0W BI8YM) [9A3] 8)eI0108.Ip By}
aAoge pallodal aie 000 0G3 JoN0 sadueleA |y “sjuswdojaasp Buiwoodn umouy pue spual) Buljieassd Jo JeaA Joud uo paseq ale jsow ‘suonosfoid asay) buionpoud
Jo} ABojopoyjaw }8s ou si a1ayj ybnoyye pue ‘pus Jeak ayy 0} suonosfoid uo paseq Aj@AIsnjoxa jsouwe si Buuojiuow ‘[@As| ajelojoalip anoqy “yoeosdde ul suonelea
ale a1ay) pue a|gejawi} buuojyiuow 1obpng [ew.lo} e sey ajelojoallp auo Ajuo ybnoyye ‘siseq Ajyjuow e uo Ajewnd si sajelio}oalip uiyum buniodal jeloueul ay |
‘6002 dunp ul pajussald

sem Jodal |euly e alojeq 600z Alenuer 0} pouad ay) ul pajesiuaduod aiem suodal pue ‘gz Jaqwisidag [un uonewlojul Buuoyuow }obpng anigdal JoU pIp SIaquIS|A|
'S9)el0J0alIp 1SOW Ul 800z AINr [13uNn Jels

10U pip BuuojiuoW ey} JUBSW SIUNOIJE BY) JO BINSOJD pue §0/800Z Ul paydope ajgelawi) 8y} ‘aInsojd sjunodoe Js)ske) Jo sainssald pajedionue ay) yym adod [1Iouno)
ay} djay pjnoys sjuswaAociduwl paNURUOD 8Y | JUBWISSSSSE S82IN0SY JO 8SM ,sJedA 1Xau ul 8say) Jo joedul 8y) SSBSSE |[IM 8M pue /6002 Ul pajuaws|dwi Buiaq
ale sjuswanoidwi Jayun4 "'60/8002Z JO PuUs 8y} 810jaq Sy} JO awos juswajdwi 0) pape)s pey pue ‘yiomawedy Buiiodal [eioueuly pasiaal e Buidojaasp si [1I9uno) ay |
“1eak ay) ybnouy) uonisod payosloid ay) pue 16pnqg ay) yum aulj ul Buiaq uinino 60/800Z @Y} 0) paINguUIU0d sey SIy| -uonewlojul Bulojuow ay} uo Aunnios
9)el10di09 JO |9A9] 8y} pue Buliojiuow [9A8] 81el0}oalIp ay) 0} spiebal yum Auenoiled ‘Q// 00z @2UlS apew uaaq aAey sjuswanoldw] “|aAs| ajelodiod ay) je uey)
|9A9] 8)eJ0}08.IP BY] Je BAN08YS pue jusnbal) aiow usaq sey Bulioyuow g0/800Z Ul ybnoyye ‘aoeid ul swalsAs Buliojiuow [eioueul 8jenbape sey [1Iouno) sy} ||BI9AQ

suoisnjouod pue sbuipuiy Aoy
SaA JaWw UouaId N4A
Z 2100g

(Bunsodau jeroueuy) ¢ 30U



Page 177

"AJanijop 82IA18S JO ALIOU0DS paxiw aIow

B SpJemo} |1ouno) ay) BuIALIp SI SIY| S82IAIaS A8 JO Jaquuinu e Jo ubisapal [ejuswepun) e ybnoly) sieak aaly) 1xau ay) JoA0 SBUINBS WG| F JOAIISP 0} SWie YdIym
awwelboid mainay Aouaiolyg Jofew e yum pajeibajul buieq si swwelsbold Y10ADASES Y| "S82IAISS paleys swos pue ‘aled awoy JO Sjuswald pue juswabeuew
199} ‘S92INIBS YIoM}au pabeuew Se yons ‘sadiAIas palnoold Ajjeulaixs Jo sajdwexa sawos ale alay| -Bunjom ajiqow Buipusaixa se yons saaneniul ybnouy)
S8I0UBIDIYS pue sjuswancldwi 82IAI8S Jaylny JaAIBp O} Buiyeas S pue S82IAI8S 0} SSB20E J0alIp JO sueaw e se a)is gam s}l dojaasp 0} Buinunpuod si 1ouno) ay |

-ABojouyoa} Jo asn ayj pue ubisapal sseo0id ssauisng ybnoiy) sieak aaiy) 1se| ay) Jano sbuines Aouaiolye a|geysed ul 000 03 paJanap

pue sadIAIas 0} ssa92e panoidwl sey swwelbolid yioA@Ases ay | "Aousioie aroidwi pue saolnles ubisapal 0y A6ojouyos) Jo asn poob Buew si pue ‘malral

10} saoInles Buisnuioud pue juswanoidwi Jo) seale BulAjnuspl ul sisuled pue siasn WOl YOBgpas) JO JUNOJOE Sa)e) PUB UoIjoR)SIiES 82IAISS SI0)UOW [I0UN0D 8y |
"S$S900R asiwixew 0) Aem e ul paubisep ale sadIAIas ainsua 0} J109foid yJoA@Ases ay) pue 198(oid uoepoOWWOIDE 8210 MU Y} SB Yyons

s109lo.id ajel10diod jo ubisep ay) uo jJoedwi ue pey osje sey juswabebus Ajunwwod “suejd uonoe pooyinoqybiau padojensp aABY YoIYUM S8aILIWIOD PJeAA SAI1040
10 yiomiau e ybnouyy Juswanoidwi Jo) senioud |eoo] Bulesibe ul paAjoAul 81e saiiunwwo)) ‘ajdoad Jap|o 10} 82IAISS UOIIBWIOJUI PUB 82IAPE MBU B pue 92IAI9S
suosJtadApuey e Jo Buluoissiwwod sy} ul paynsal sey swwelboid ajdoad buuoddng sy 0y payul| Juswsbebus Jasn "ejdoad Jap|o pue saniigesip yym sidoad
‘o|doad BunoA jo 10adsal ul Allgnoied ‘@ouanjjul ue pey aABY SMAIA JISY} MOY pue SadlIAIas Buluoissiwwod ul pabebus usaq aAey siash moy Jo sajdwexs ale alay |
‘Spaau ainnj Jo

JUNOOJE S8 E) PUB ‘9|geJau|nA 1sow asoy) Ajienoiued ‘saolales Buluoissiwwod 0} yoeoludde ay) Buousnjul st siy] (10d) 1snil aie) Alewld ay) yum diysiaupued ul
1IN0 paLlIBd JUBWISSASSY SpaaN 21698]e.1S uIor ay) pue JuswdojaAap d1louods 0} Bunejal sisAjeue Jaypuny Aq pawiojul os|e si siy] ‘Abajesis Ajunwiwo) sjgeuie}sng
ay} Jo juswdojansp ay) ul Juswabebus pue uoieNSUOI BAISUBIXS YBNnoay) Saiiunwiwod [Bo0) JO Spasu ay) Jo Bulpuejsiapun Jes|o e padojaasp sey |1Iouno) ay |

suoiIsn|2uo0d pue sbuipuly Aoy
SOA jaw uoldd N4A
[4 91098

(yusawainsoud pue BujuoissiwWwod) L'z 3O

'SBWO02)N0 parosdull Jes|d sjesjsuowap

0] 9|ge 8 0} s}oadxa |IPuUN0YD Y} 8J18YyM /6002 Ul Buinuiuoos ale sjuswanoidwi asay) pue ‘Ajijenb ejep s,|1ounoD 8y} 0} 8pewl 8 0} SNUUOD sjuswacidwi Jaypn4
"g|geJaulnA Jsow asoy) Ajenoiped ‘eidoad Jepjo pue ajdoad BunoA pue uaip(iyo ‘6-9 1o} sadiales Buluoissiwwod 0} yoeoidde Buoss e sey [1ouno) ay] ‘sdiysiauped
S,]1oUN0D 8y} 0} papualxd ale sadljoeld poob ayl yolym o) Jusixe ay) anoidwi o0} 8doas s alay) ybnoyye ‘yuswabeuew ysu uo Ajbuols pawlopad sey [1ounod ay |

suoiIsn|2uo0d pue sbuipuly Aoy

YA 9109S awidy |



Page 178

‘suonesiuebio Jaylo yum suosuedwod JueAs|al Sapnjoul papiAcid uoleuwIoU| “SaNnss| adouewlopad Jualind uo suonejuasald pue suodal yidap
-Ul JOPISUOD BAIINJ8XT S,|I0UN0Y) 8y} pue wea ] juswabeuely ajeiodio) Buiajoaul suolissas Buliojiuow asuewlopad juiof ‘spodal Buliojiuow Jeinbal 0} uolippe uj

‘puBlsIapUN 0} JBISes Way) ayew 0} pamalnal usaq Ajjuadal sey Jewlo) JIsy| ‘aoualpne ay} JO Spaau 8y} 0} palojie)

S YoIym uoljewlojul souewlopad [euonelado pue [BlouBUl JO UOIJEUIGUIOD B apnjoul spoday “sieyew uolsiosp poddns o) papiaoid si uoijewloul Ajljenb pooo

"JoS J0}JedIpuU| [BUOIIEBN MaU 8y} JO aWos Jo Joadsal ul sanss! yum Buljesp se |jom se ‘ejep diysioulied swos ul sassauyeam ssalppe 0} Buissaiboid si YIOAN 1ouesul

S |louno) 8y} uIyIm eale palseys e ybnouyy Ajulew suop Buleq ‘@yenbape ale siauped wol) pajos||0o ejep Bunepljea 1o} SwalsAs pue ‘ejep a|gel|a) pue JueAs|al

Buisn pue Buronpoud jo plooal yoel) poob e sey [1ouno) ay] Jpne s JeaA ise| ul pasiel sanssi 0} Buipuodsal ul ssaiboud Buipnjoul ‘syuswabuelie Jo SSaUBANO8YD
9y} Uo spodal SaAI90al 98I0 S2URBUISAOS) % JIpNy 8y "ejep Jo Aoeinooe ay) 0) abusjieys Buiobuo ue sapinoid pue saoiaIas ulyIm g suoidweys yoiym (90d)
dnolg 19210 9oUBWIONSd SpIM-IoUN0D B Yybnoly) uoijoe ojul paje|suel) SI pue Uuoijo8||oo ejep ul sjuswarosdwi oddns 0} syyj00} pue aouepinb sepinoid Aoljod ay |
‘DA Jo $¥08Yd lpne |eulajul 0} yoeoidde paseq-ysi

e Buiwioyul si pue ‘(yy1) Juswealby ealy |B207 8y} ul papnjoul siojedipul Ajiond asoyy yum Buipe)s ‘ssaiboud ul s juswissasse siy| ‘pame)) Buiaq eiep Jo Sysil 8y}
ajebiiw 0} suoljoe Ayjuspl pue splepuels ay) jsuiebe J0jedipul Yyoea Jo JUSLISSSSSE Palods B MO||e 0} XIJew e sapnjoul 3| “elep Jo AJjigissadoe pue ssauljawiy ‘Alplea
‘Aoeunooe 1oy spiepue)s 1no sjas yoiym pajdope usaq sey Aoljod v "ue|d Juswanoidwi s,louno) ay) uiyum 10afoid Asy e se pQ Jo uoisnjoul 8y} pue uoidweyo

DA Sk 19010 J21yD ke Jo uoljeuiwou ay} ybnouyy pasies usaq sey sanssi D Jo ajyoid syl (oa) Ajenb ejep aasiano 0} ylomawel) a}ei0diod }sngod e si alay |

suoiIsn|2uo0d pue sbuipuly Aoy

SOA jJaw uoLIdId N4A
Z 910908
(uonewuoyut jo asn pue Ayjenb ejep) z'z 30IH

‘10edwi a8y Ajnuenb Ajny 0} |geun si 1oUNOY 8y}

ybnouyye ‘sbuines [eloueuly Se [|oM SB SJjauaq [BID0S pue [BjuswuoliAue Buliaalap si ABajelS Juswaindold a|geuleisng ay| SwajsAs |eloueuly mau JO uolonpoJul
ay) ybnouy) passaippe aq 0} si siy} ybnouyye ‘ puads J0BIUOI-1O, JO JUSIXS 8Y} UO UOIJBWIOUI Pa}iwi| AQ paullwISpun S| SJOBIJUOD YIOMBWRI) BUllSIXd JO SSBUBAIOBYSD
8y ‘epusbe saniienbs ay} pue A}jIGeuUIB}SNS [EJUBSWIUOIIAUS UO SNO0J JB3IO B S8pNnjoul $S8001d 8y "doueape ul paysiignd eusjud uonenjeas yym ‘Ajjenb pue

180D s8dUBle(q YOIym [9poW YY4d|D B Buisn psjenjeas aie siapua) Jolej "uoiien|eAs Japus) J0} Sassad0ld paysi|igelsa ||om Sey [Iouno) 8y "S92IASS a1ed Ausp|d 1oy
puewap ul 8sealoul pajedionue ay) Se yons ‘sadiAIas o) puewsap ul sebueyd Joj uejd 0} s18ylo pue 10398s Alejunjoa ay) ypm Buppiom osje s} ‘Asuow 1o} anjea pue
Saljuold UO SNO0) PaUIBISNS B 8INSUS 0} BUIUOISSILIWOD pamaIAal AjJuadal sey pue 10}oas AJejun|oA 8y} Woly Jeak yoes Sa9IAISS JO Wi L3 JOA0 saindoud [19uno) ay |
‘sJaiiddns |e20] jo ainjie} |enusjod 8y} 0} 8NP SBIIAISS [1IoUNOY 0} s 8y} Buisiwiuiw se [[am se sqol |eooj 10830.1d

0} padjay sey Ssiy] "uInjumop 2IWLOU0Id By} 0} payull Sassauisng |eoo| 03 poddns oloads papiaold sey [19UnNoD 8y) ‘Ssauisng [I9UNOY 10} JBpusd) 0} Moy uo sialiddns
0] 92IApe pue Juoddns |essuab 0} uonippe U] 'S82IAI8S 10} puewap Buisealoul ue 19aw 0} Ajoeded ay) Buidojaasp ul pue sa2IAI8s pasijeuosiad 810w SpJemo)

aAoW 8y} Ul siapinold a1ed ynpe Buioddns si | “way) dojensp 0} siaupued yum Bujiom si pue sjaytew Ajddns |eoo) jo Buipuelsiapun poob e sey |1Iouno) ay ]

(panunuog) (Juswainosoid pue BuluoissiWWOI) L'Z JOIM



Page 179

"sanond [1ounod poddns jey) seale souewiouad Aoy jsuiebe ssaiboid meinal 0) SIaqUBI\ BAIINDSXT puUB | D Usamiad Jeak yoes pjay suoissas Jojiuouw juiol noy
ale alay) pue ‘Aem painjoniis e ul seioud ajelodiod ansiyoe o) Jayjebo) pexlom aABY BAIINDSXT J8Iy) pue JepeaT ay] "uonesiueblo ay) ssoloe siayip uoneladood
SIY} JO |9A8] BY} pUB ‘UOISIA pue 8sodind ||BIJ8AO S JIoUN0D 8U) 8A8IYOE 0} J8Y1ab0o] }JoM SI901)J0 PUB SI8quIBW |[B Jey) 8INSUa 0} Op O} IOM SWOS [|}S SI 8Iay |

‘ue|d juswdojanap [euosiad [ewloy e 0} dn paubis Ajjualind aney sieqwaw /| Ajuo ybnouyye ‘paonpoujul usaq aaey sjesieldde juswdojaasp Jaquiaw
pue ‘1aley) juswdojaaaq Jaquisly ap| 8y} 0} dn paubis aaey siaquisyy “padinbau s Bujuiel) Jeym apiosp pue spasu Bujuiel) Umo JIay} SS8SSe Ued siaquiswi
0S ‘paysl|gelse usaq sey aapiwwo) uswdojpasq Jequiay v “padojansp pue paddinbs Alledoud aie siaquisw ey} ainsua o) buluiel} sepinolid [1IoUN0D ay |

‘sjuswianoidwi Jsuiebe ssaiboid yoel) pue ainsesw 0) Moy BulIBpISUOD SI pue ‘lpne soueulaAob

[ea1y1e JNO WO} sawoo)no ay) o} AjaAnisod pspuodsal sey [1ouno) 8y "epewl 8q Ued sjuswiaAcidull Jayun) pue suoisus) swos [|is aie aiay) ybnoy) ‘siesk
JUS08J Ul 8peW Usag aABY SsjuswaAcldul] "siso1lo pue siequisw usamiaq sdiysuolejas Buiyiom poob Ajjueuiwopaid ale aisy| "ajep 0} dn sulewal }l 0S pemaInsl
AenBal s pue [spow Y13 9Y) SMOJ|0} )| "SISO PUB Siagquis|y Jo salljigisuodsal pue sajol 8y} JNo s)as Al1es|o ‘eAlsusyaidwod sI uoin}iIsuo) 1ouno) ay |

suoiIsn|2uo0d pue sbuipuly Aoy

soA Jow UoLIdLID IN4A
Z 21098

(eoueusanob poob) ¢z 30

‘anosdwi 0} suonoe Ajjuapl pue Asuow 1oy anjea anoidwi

‘aouewopad-ispun }abie) 0} uonewsoul sduewiouad Buisn Jo plodal yoel} e sey [1Duno) ay) pue Buluueld ssauisng pue ssa204d juswabeuew aouewlouad ay}
usam}aq SHyUI| Jes[O ale aiay] "ANSISAIP JO Sjuswa|d® pue slojedipul 8| Jo Ajjenb ‘uoioejsijes Jasn se ||om Se sainseaw AQuaiole pue [eliouBUl SSPN[OUl UOKBLLIOU|
‘lons] o168jed)s e je aouewiouad JO SaLBWWNS 8PNJOUl PUB ST 8y} PUB [IDUN0D 8y) Yylog Joj safloud punole painjoniis ale sjodal aduewliopad ‘[1ouno)

ay} Jo sanuoud ajeiodiod ay) pue juswaalby ealy [B00T 8y} Yum Juswubile ainsus 0} pamalnal usaq sey aouewlopuad abeuew 0} pasn slojesipul Jo abues ay |
‘piepues

108UU0Y) JUBWIUIBA0S) 8y} yum aoueldwod spiemo) Buppiom si j1ouno) ay) pue ‘sainpadsoid pue saonoeud ajeudoidde Aq pauoddns si pue spiepuels [euoljeu Yim
jueldwod si ‘seale ssauisng Asy S19A00 yoiym aoeld ul si Aoljod Ajunodss || uy “elep Jo Ajljigeral ay) uo 1pedwi pjnod yoiym swajqold Aue pauiuspl jou sey ueid ay}
Jo Bunsa] -pajsa) Alueinbal pue Ajjenuue pajepdn si yoiym aoeld ui si uejd A1anodal Js)sesip v "uoidniiod 10 SSO| Blep 4O YSI 8y} aSIWwiuiw 0} Pajj0Jjuod pue pabeuew
Alanioaye ale swa)sAs Juswabeuew eleq JUBAS|a) UleWal SJ0dal 8INSUS 0) SI8YeW UOISIOap Woll yoeqpas) Bulayieh 1oy wsiueydssw e sapirnoid H0Od 8yl

(dS7) diysieuped oibsiens a0 ayy 0} sjuodau

aouewlopuad Jeinbas sapincid pue ] 8yl Ul papn|oul SI0}BJIpUl [BUOIIBU pUB [BOO| 8Y) WB)SAS Juswabeuew aouewuopad s) uiyim pajelbaiul sey [1ounod ay |
‘elep Jo sisAjeue [eolydeiboab Jajealb sjgeus 0} swaisAs uonewlojul sy Buidojaaap s 1I0UN0D 8y} pue AJISISAIP JO SJUBWSIS JO JUN0JJke aye) sjuswabuelie Buuodey

(panuiuo9) (uonew.ojui jo asn pue Ajjenb eyep) z'z 30IM



Page 180

"S9OUR)SWNDIID [BOO] JIay} 0} paydepe aney Aay) 1ey) suonesiuebio Ajunwiwod pue Aiejunjon yim Buiyiom Joj yiomawel)

|jeuoneu e ‘1oedwo) 10}0ag paiyl 8y} aoe|d ul jnd aAey |1DuUno) ay | ‘epusbe Aousious Jiay) oyul payul Buieq si 1ey) suonesiuebio Ajunwiwod pue Alejun|oa

a1 ‘10108S pJIy} 8y} Yym juswaalbe apim Al[eoo| B sey [Iouno) a8y "'dST 9yl 01 Joeq paj s}nsal 8y} YlIM ‘Juawssasse j|os |enuue ue a)8|dwod sdiysiauyied jueoiiubis
pue ‘swie 118y buinsiyoe ale Aay) Jayiaym ainsesw 0} siojedipul aduewlopad pue sueld uonoe aAey sdiysisuped urew ayy ||y Ananoe diysisuped Buliojiuow

pue dn Bumes ul sieo1jo poddns 0) 8|ge|ieA. ale $82In0sal pue ‘pawloy 8q pjnoys diysisuied e Jayoym suiwislep siaolo diay o} ssuliepinb ajelodiod ul isiyosyo
wiod Qg e si 818y} ‘siaolyo o) papiroid si Buiuiely ‘sdiysiauped jueoiyiubis sy Buluiwielep 1oy elIgllo Jos sey ‘sdiysiauped s} Jo 8segelep e sulejuiew [Iouno) ay |
"JONPUO2 JO 8p092 8Y) JO sjuswalinbal ay) uo siaquiaw o} Ajjlenuue

JUSS aJe SIapullial pue ‘SI9d1o JoIuas pue siaquaw 4o} aoe|d ul ate Ajjendsoy pue syib jo sisjsifal pue sjsalajul Jo sisisibay "uonNIISUOD 8y} UIYIMm |020)0.d
1901440 /1I8quUUBW [BWIO) B S| 818y} pue a2e|d Ul 8le JONpU0D JO SBPO0D JSD1J0 pue Jaquiaj Jule|dwod a8y} Ul PaAjOAUl 8SOY) Wolj 1yBnos Ajjualind Jou SI }oeqpas)
‘ajIsgam ay) uo paysiignd ase suonebisaaul ||e Jo Sawoolno sy} ybnoyjje pue ‘ajisgam s,|Iouno?d) ay) BIA a|qe|ieAe Ajapim si ssao0id sjule|dwod Jaquisw ay |

'600¢ sunr

Ul play sem aAlINoax3 Jaly ayj yim buiesw jeiyul ue ybnoyjje ‘senssi |eolyie ssnosip 0} siapes| Aled Jaylo 1o JepeaT ‘eAlnoaxg JjaiyD syl yim jaaw Ajgunnol

10U Op Jieyd pue aa)iuwo) spiepuels ay] ‘60/800Z Buunp seale oioads ul Buluiesy swos papinoid sey jng ‘1oNpuo9 JO SpJepue)ls 0} uolie|al Ul slaguiaw Jo spasu
Buluiely ayy passasse A|n} j,usey |1ouno ay] “Jieyd se Jaquiaw paydo-o9 juspuadspul ue sey pue ‘@spiuwo)) spiepuels ay) Jo ajold ay) asies 0} buikiy Ajpaioe

S| [19Un0D 8y “suonesiuebio Jaylo yum diysisuped ul Buiiom usym pauiejuiew ale JNolAeyaq Jo spiepuels ybiy moy 0} usaib aq 0} Spaau uoljeiapisuod) 1oNpuod
JO 8p0o9 118y} Mojjo} siequisw sdiay pue ‘Ajjeulaxs pue Ajjeulaiul yjog ajod syl sesioljgnd ‘syuswialinbal ayj yum aoueploooe Ul sejelado sspiwwo) spiepuels ay |

(panunuod) (eoueutanob poob) ¢z I0IM



Page 181

‘paisa) pue pamainal Ajenbal ate pue aoe(d ul ale sueid Aununuod ssauisng pue Aouabiswg “suonenbal pue me| yym aosueldwod pue ainjipuadxs jo AJjeba)

a1 JaA0 [043u09 apinoid AjoAllosYs ‘UoiNINSUO) 8Y) Se |[oM Sk ‘1821)JO Bulojiuoly pue | GLS 8yl "SOY 8yl Jo uoneledalid se)eulpiood pue ‘sjuswabuelie aoueulonob
ssnoasip 0} Alieinbal sj@sw dnois) 8dUBUIBA0L) 19210 UY "SOY 8y} Bunsidwoo pue Buissasse 10} aoe|d ul yJomawelj e s| alay) pue ‘aoe|d ul sjuswabuelie

|0J1UOD |eUJIB}UI BY]} |[B suldiapun uoiIN}ISU0D 8y "S|0JJU0D [BIOUBUL JBAO 82UBINSSE JUBIDINS sapinoid ue|d Jpny |eulsiu| 8y ‘JUBLISSOSSE S80IN0Say

10 s ,sleak xau ul sjuswabuesie mau ay) Jo 1oedwi pue uonelado ay) SSaSSe |[IM AN 6002 [Mdy | U0 paduswwod Yyoiym ‘Japinoid 80IAI8s paleys Jipny |eulaju|
a)eledas e ysigelse 0} Josloid ay) paiaAljep sey [1ouUnoD 8y} 60/8002 Ul uonippe u| "Alaaliep uo pajoedwl aAeY 1Y) 60/800Z Ul SSIoUBDEBA Usaq 9ABY 818y} Ing ‘ue|d
1pne 60/800Z @Y} Jo a2 Jad Q@ JoAo pa}a|dwod Jey) S21AISS JIpNe [BUISIUI SAIJ08S UB SBY |IoUno) 8y "SONSSI |0J3U0D [eulajul [enusjod Ajljuspl 0] S89))ILUW0D J8Y10
YlIM UOSIel| Jo 80UspIAS aJ3}l| SI 8lay} ybnoy; ‘sjuswabuele |013u09 [eulsiul abus|jeys AjoAnoe 0] Builiels sI 99)IWWO0D 8y | "9aRIlIWoD 8y} 4O slaguaw 0} papiroid S
Buluies) pue ‘ylomawel) |01U02 8Y) Uo suodal senoidde pue saAledal ‘Juspuadapul si ‘diysiequisl paoue|eq B Sey 89))IWWO0D) 82UBUISAOL) puR JIpNy S,|Iouno) ay |

‘palela|0] 10U SI pned) 1Y) sssuaieme olignd B pue [19unod Y} UIylM 8inynd pnel}

Ja)unoo Buoss e paquie 0) paAlas aAey ‘uonnoasold umo Jisyl Buibuliq 1o 8o1j0d syl Yiim Buiiom Jsyjie ‘suonnossold |nisseoons ym seseo ajijoid ybiy |elenss
‘Apuanbal) pasn si suolnoasold |njsseoons pue wes) pnelj ay) Jo Alolignd [eulaixa pue |eulslul pue ‘spneudj [enusjod Alnuspl pue sssusieme asiel 0] Buisnoy se
yons sjuswiiedsp A8y Yim 3Jom wes) pnel) ey ‘suonesiueblo J1saylo pue damd 8yl Yum A[asojo }Jom 0] panuiuod pue ‘suolebisaaul [njsseoons sesioljgnd [10unoo
ay) ‘Uels Jo sdnoib urensos o) pepinoid sem Buiuiel) sssusieme pnel ‘sjuswabuelle s)l Jo SS820NS 8Y) SMaIAS) pue aln)nd pnelj J8junod Buol)s e sey |1ouno) ay |

‘llouno) ayj Jo yoeoudde ||BIBAO 8Y) 1IN0 s)as JI pue ‘sajdiounid aonoeld poob y4d|D Uim aouepliodoe ul pasedald ‘gooz yoJelN ul panosdde pue pasinas sem Aojjod
uondnuIoo pue pnedj J8JUNOD 8y ‘SSauaieme pnely |elauab pue Bujuies) Jjeis 10} swi} pue YoM aAljeluaAald pue aAljoeal yjog Jo} syabpng sepnjoul SiYy] "eapiuwo)
upny ay) Aq paaibe ue|d AlAlIOB pnely J8junod [enuue ue S| alay] “sjeuoiodold pue paseq Ysi ‘Padinosal S| }I0M uoidniIod pue pnelj Jajunod Jo swwelboud ay |

‘sanuoud [enpialpul 0} payull Apiolidxa usaq Jou aAey S)SU [enplAlpul Jodas ayj ul saijuoud ajelodiod 0] spew s| 8dualsjal sawos ybnoyye pue

‘palepdn sysu 8y} pue yum }jeap Buleq Suonoe ysu 8)ep JO JNO Ul Pa)NSal MBIASI Jaquisaw ay) Jeyl SMoys 60/800¢ 40 Modal Buuioyiuow |euly ay] ‘Aiessadau se uodn
JUSWIWOD puUB JBPISU0D O} Way} Jo} 88)ilwo) Ipny ayj 0} sysi 8jesodiod Aay uo pajussald Buieq sajepdn yum ‘ssaooid Juswabeuew 3sid 8y} Ul PAAJOAUI 8I0W dJe
slaquwia|\ ‘papusiie oym siaquiajy Aq paaiadal [lam sem Buluiel) sy} pue ‘1eak ayj ybnouy) sieoljo pue siaquisw o0} Buluiel; Juswabeuew ysu sapinocid [1DUnoD ay |
‘sdiysisuped Asy 0} asleuuonsanb jenuue ue ul

os|e pue siseq joafoid e uo paiapisuod si s diysiauned “sanuold ajelodiod oyoads Jo Juswanalyoe sy} 0} Sysi a8y} Buiubije ‘sysi uinjumop J1Wouods ay) abeuew
pue Ajuspi 0} Jybnos AjaAizoe sey [1Iouno) 8y} ‘9jew|d 21WOU0IS Jualind ay) U "uona|dwod 109foid [njssaa0Nns 0} sialleq [eluajod ay) JapISUOD pue SuoisIoap
109l0ud ayew djay 0} }su pasn yjoq aAey |4d 91Sem ay} pue 108(old Woddy Ulwpy 8y "1aoujo juswabeuew s ay) Ag uey) Jayjel sjuswedsp Uulylim paiaalap
pue pabeuew ‘paumo ale sysiy ‘Aouaios Buinoidwi pue Aylunuoddo Buiyess Jo Aem e se pue ‘Alaaldp josloid |njssaoons alow 10j J9|qeus Ue Se poojsiapun

S1 ysiy "sessao0.d juswalinoold pue Bupew uoisioap ‘Aoljod e 0] paxyull pue ‘Juswabeuew j08(oid Jouiw pue Jolew |je ul papnjoul Buiaqg ‘1ounNo) 8y} JO SaljiAljoR

Aep 01 Aep ay} ulylIM pappaquis aiow 8q 0} SeNUjUOd pue ‘saonoeld Bupom ulylm pappaquid siysi ‘sjuswabuelle Juswabeuew ysi poob sey [19uno) ay |

suoiIsn|2uo0d pue sbuipuly Aoy
SOA jaw uoldud N4A

¢ 21008

(1043u09 Jeusdlul pue Juswabeuew ysul) ¥'Z JOIM



Page 182

‘sjobue) wel-1abuo| jJoaw 0} padojansp Buieq aie sbulpjing s, [1ouno)

ay) 0] sjuswanoidwl panuiuod pue Wodsuely ‘Bunybi| 19a1)s 03 Bunelal sjosfoid JayjO piepues SSWoH Jusdaq 8y} 0} payull ¥o03s Buisnoy ayj Jo uolje|nsul pue
swia)sAs Buneay o0y syjuswanoidwi ybnolyy patanap Buiaq aite sbuines Jaylng ‘010z 4O pua ay) Aq sauuo) g0t ‘g ueyl aiow o} Buines ay) asealoul [Im sajedionue
[1ounNoD 8y} yoiym ssaiboud ul ase syosfoid Jayjo “108loid yoes jo joedwi sy} ssasse Aj@jelndoe 0} 8jgeun si Ing ‘uoiensul paaosdw pue sbuipjing Jo Jaquinu

B Ul sJ9|log ssewolq Jo uone|eisul ay) ‘lodag 093 jjing esodind e jo Buiuado sy} ybnouy) gooz Bulinp paAes aiam UogIed JO Sauuo} 00f Jey} Sajewiisa |1Iounod ay |
‘Joedwi JiIay} aelisuowap Ajjns Jouue9 10UN0D By}

1ng ‘suoissiwe aonpal 0} sjosfoid Bunusweldwi uo spew usaqg sey ssaiboid Alue] ‘Buisnoy Jo 10adsal ul senssi Buipuny ws) Jebuoj Bunosysal ‘0zoz Aq uso Jad Gz
Aq o0)s Buisnoy s) wolj SUoISsIWd aonpald 0} swie 3| “buisnoy Buipnjoxe €10z Aq 1uad Jad Gz AQ suoissIwa uogJed s}l aonpal 0} }1able)] e 18s sey |Iouno) ay |

‘a|ge|ieAe Jou alom sBuipeal ajeinooe alaym sbuipjing o} Bunejal

S9]EWINSS SWOS papn|oul suljaseq [eulblio ay) pue ‘ejep auljeseq ay} Jo Aoeinooe ay} AJLI9A 0} panuluod Sey [10UNoD ay) ‘JanamoH ‘(juao Jad g) Bunybi 198138

pue (Juao Jad g) podsuel; ‘(Juad Jad gz) sbuipjing Jayio ‘(Juad Jad gg) Yo01s Buisnoy sy wouy Ajurew Buisue ‘ssuuo) 00g8‘/G SB SUOISSIWS ZOD |BNUUE S, |Iouno) ay)
pajew}sa siy| ‘ssaiboud ainseaw pue sjebie) jos 0} pasn sey I Yolym uolewloyul /0/900Z UO paseq suolssiwa OO S 40 ainbiy suljeseq e paje|nojed |1Iounod ay |

‘Joedwi sy ejelisuowap
AlIny J0uueD [IDUNOY 8Y) ybnoye ‘swwelbold uswsebeue|y uogied e uo payieque sey pue ABeeng Aljiqeulelsng [BlusWUOIIAUT pasnooj-Ajjeulalul ue padojansp
sey 1] 1oedwi |eluswuolIAUS S)I 8onpal 0} yoeoidde oiBsjesis e padojoasp sey pue sawnsuod J S82Inosal [einjeu ay) Jo Buipuelsiepun ue sey [1ouno) ay |

suoIsn|2uo0d pue sbuipuly Aoy
SaA JoWw UouaIo IN4A

ra 2109g

(s@o4nosad |eanjeu jo asn) L°¢ JOIM

‘uonesiueblo ay) ssoJoe sawoojnNo pue sjoedwi aAlIsod S1aAlBp 1l 1eY) ainsus 0) padojaAsp aq 0} spasu
Juswabeuew jasse 0} yoeoidde s|1ouno) ay| ‘paisAlep aAey Asy) sjuswanoidwi 8y} ainsesw Aj1einooe o) pue sjosfold ay) Jo 10edwi ay) 8jessuowsp 0} 01/6002
ur BuUINUUOD SI YIOM JBYMN4 “JoedWl [BJUBLUUOIIAUS S} PUB S82IN0S8aJ [eJnjeu Jo uondwnsuod s} 8onpal 0} sjosloid Jo Jaquinu e uo paylequis Sey |Iouno) ayl

suoiIsn|2uo0d pue sbuipuly Aoy

z 21090s awaYy |



Page 183

‘sauoud pue spasu |Bo0] U0 pasnooy Alueajo ale yodiym sue|d uoljoe aaey sdNY eale ybnoyye sueid uonejuswa|du

1snqoJ Aq pauuid-iapun jou ale SdIAY 921A18s pue ajelodio) jsnqod AJus)sisuod jou ale juswabeuew jasse 1oy sue|d uonejuswa|dw] "yoeosdde sjelodiod s [1ouno)
By} 9pISINO |aA9] 21IAISS e Je ade|d Bupe) Juswabeuew jasse Jo sajdwexs os|e ale aiay| ‘Aem jeawadald e ul padojaasp Buliaq aie pue ‘Ma} ale 8say) ‘JOASMOH
‘A)1eo0| 8y} ul sjesse Buibeuew ul Junodoe ojul uaye) ale sjdoad |B20] JO SPaBU 8y} ainsud 0} AJ10 8y Jo slied awos Joj padojansp usaq aney SdIAY ealy “sanuold
olbajens spiemo) ssalboid abeuew o} AjoAil0aye pasn jou ate asay) ybnoyye ‘Buiuueld aoinies ypm syull apiaoid yoiym aoejd ul sdi\Y 991AI8S aWos ale alay |

‘Ajuslsisuoo paljdde ale so|dioulid ainsus

0} 8oe|d Ul Jou 8Je $8INONJ)S pue juswabeuew }18SSe JO |043U0D J08lIp UBY) Jayjel asuanjjul uo saljald dnoub ay) ‘JanamoH “Buipuny jeyided oy spiq Buispiiond ul 8jo.

e sey pue ‘Juswabeuew jasse anoidwi 0} saniunuoddo BulAyizuapl pue uonewlojul Buleys 1o wnioy [nyasn e sapinold 3| “suoljesiuebio Jsuped woly seAiejussaldal
Aq pajuawalddns Ajjusdal ‘[1IoUN0D By} SSOIOE WU} SI9210 padualiadxe ‘ejelidoidde jo abues e sasudwoo dnoub Jaoio ay] “sejdioulid aonoeld poob uo paseq

pue painjonJis [|om si uejd ayl ‘) Bunuawajdwi Jo yse} sy} ypm pabieyos siaoyjo jo dnolib ajesodiod e pue (dINY) Ueld Juswabeuel 19ssy ajelodlod e s| aiay |
‘uonesiuebio ay) ssosoe paljdde Ajualsisuod jou si ng ‘yoedwi aAlisod sawos pey sey yoiym ‘Juswebeuew jasse 0} yoeoldde oibajel)s e padojaasp sey [1Iouno) ay |

suoIsn|2uo0d pue sbuipuly Aoy

SOA JoW UoLIdID IN4A
A 2109S

(uswabeuew jasse 21633ens) Z'¢c JOM

'saino0ud ) $82IAI8S 8y} ybnouyy Julidjoo) uogles s j1ounod ay) Bulonpal jo ssueuodwi ay) asiseydwa 0} pamainal Buleq ale sjuswabuelie uoien|eas

Japua] “1oeduwli |[eluswuoIIAUS MO| B BARY ey} s}onpoud Jo ash ay) sejowold pue ABajels Juswalnoold s|qeuleisns e sey |I0uno) 8y 600 Ul S81eJ0}oalIp

|le ssouoe yoeoudde siy) aonpoujul 0} suejd pue ABajels olwouod] yelp ay) pue Abajens ajelodio) ayj uo sjuswssasse 1oedwl Alljigeurelsns 1o palIed

Sey [10UNO)D 8y "UON98]0id |EJUSWIUOIIAUT puUR S82IAIBS pooyinoqybiaN Se yons seale awos Ul padueApe [|om sI ssaoold ay) ybnoyje ‘e}s|dwod oA jou si siy |
‘wiv)sAs Juswabeuely [BJUSWIUOIIAUT UB JO UOIIONpoJIul 8y} ybnouy) sysu |ejuawuoliaua Buibeuew o) yoeoidde spim-uonesiuebio ue spiemoy Bupiom si [1ounoD ay |

's9ss9204d Juswabeuew

aouewlopad paysiigeiss ojul JIng S| 8duewIONad [BJUSWUOIIAUS JO Sjuswald Jo Bulojuow ay| 186png uogles [enuue ue asodull ||IM YIYym JuswHWIWOD)

uolnonNpay uogled ay} Jo UoidONPOoJUIl BY) Jo) aledald 0} allysHIOA uondy uogie) ybnoly) swesyoss Buipes jlenuia e ul Buijedioiued os|e si j1ouno) ay] “Buipuny jeyded
spiq asnoLd 0y ssaooid sy Jo Led se paispISUOD SI SUOISSIWS UOGJED UO UOIBWLIOUI pUB UORONPal UOGJeD JopISUod jsnw sBuip|ing ul JuswisaAul [eudeo Joj spig
‘ueld uononpal

uogJed ay} Jo AlaAlBp 88SI8A0 0] SI0||IoUNO0I pUB S182140 Joluas Buisudwod pieog uogled e yium Buoje pajeald usaq aaey sisod mau om] syosfosd Bunybi yoa.4is
pue Buip|ing Joj papiwgns Buleq aie Buipuny [eulaixa 4o} Spiq pue ‘sjosfoid Jayuny ul pajsaAulal 8q 0} ate sbuiaes |eloueul Buynsay “sjosloid uononpas uogied puny
0} 60/8002Z Ul 000‘0GZ3 10 uonoadipal ay} ul Buynsal ‘1punod ayj 4o} Ajuoud e abueyd ajewld apew ue|d 8jelodio) 8y} JO MaIABI Jusdal i/ “S9|dIYdA ysem 0} Jodaq
003 ay} e s|dwexs Jo} ‘pasn-al Bulaq Jojem Jo sojdwexs os|e ale a1sy] ‘SSOIASpP UOIIBAISSUOD Jajem aAeY SBuIp|ing [1IoUN0D Mau pue palojiuow s| abesn Jajem ||y

(penunuom) (seoinosal jeanjeu jo asn) L'¢ JOIM



Page 184

‘yoeolidde

o16ajeuis aiow e dojaasp 0} Buppiom ale sisuiped pue [1ouno) ay) Ing ‘sisuped yym sbuipjing Jo asn paleys Jo sojdwexs sawos ale aiay] ‘Ajlunwwod [Ba0] ay)

O JBUaq 8y} Joj} sjasse Buueys Joj saiiunuoddo BulAyuapl ul sisuped Buibebus si 1ouno) ay) ‘dnoub isaio ajesodiod ayy ybnoay -bBuiuueld Juswabeuew jasse
eale Jo Jed se ‘passpisuod Buleq ale siayjo pue joedwi aAlisod e pey aaey yoiym sdnolb Ajlunwiwod o) pallsjsued) buisg sjasse [19uno?) Jo sajdwexa ale aiay |
‘Sjijeusq

Aunwwod Bursalep si yoiym sdnouab Ajiunwiwiod yyum yom o} Aoijod paysijgeiss ue si alay| "asijelajew 0} 194 ale sbuines asay) jJey) ueaw anow ayj ul sAejap 1nq
‘wg3 Aq Bopoeqg ay) aonpal 0] pajoadxa SI UOIIBPOWLWOIOR 321140 MaU 0} dAowW pauue|d ay] "edoueusjuiew Bopoeq Jo [aas] Buimolb ayy ssalppe 0} Buljie; si IounoD
9y ‘spaau ainjnj pue juaund Bunssw ul Asuow 1o} anjeA apinoid sjasse Jayaym abus|ieys o) yoeosdde jua)sisuod ou si alay) pue pasilioud Ajusisisuod ase

Aay) 1eY] ainsus 0} a|gissoduwil SI )1 ‘sadIAlIes 0] panjorap Ajebie| ale syjebpng aoueusjuiew pue Jiedal se ‘JoAeMOH “ase(q 1asse S)i 0] sjuswanoidwi ybnoay) sediales
Buinosdwi si 1oUNOD ay) moy Jo sajdwexs ale aiay) pue asodind 1o} Jij ulewal S}esse S} aINsud 0} swie yoiym Absjels aoueusjuiew pue Jiedal e sey [1I9Uno) ay |
"9seq }asse 8y} JO aouewlopad ay) Jo malA papunod e apiaoid 0} Jaylebo) 1ybnoiq jou ale pue siojedlpul paje|al-a0IAIas Se Uaas ale Aay) ‘ISIxa

SJ0)JeoIpuUl JueAs|al Jo abuel e ybnoy)y ‘dIAY 1elodiod ay) ul paulejuod sanuoud pue saAoalqo ay) jsuiebe ssaiboid Jojuow Ajsunnol o) sjabie) pue sioyeaipul
|e00] JO Ylomawiel) ou sI a1y} Inq ‘@onoeld poob Ajuapl 0} pasn si Yolym siojedipul jJuswabeuew jasse |euoljeu Jo 1as e jsuiebe jno palieo si Bujiewyouaq [enuuy
"9)9|dwo2 194 J0u SI SIY} INg ‘9seq elep 18sse mau e Jo jJuswdojansp ayl ybnoayy oljojuod jasse s, 1ouno) ay) buipiebal uonewlopul ul sdeb ay)

ssalppe 0} usye) bulaq ale sde)g Juswabeuew jasse ul Asuow 10} anjeA ajelisuowap 0} AJjIge S [Iouno) 8y} saulwiapun siy] “sanuold ajeiodiod Jo Juswaalyoe
8y} 0] 8)NQLIIUOD S}asSe Moy Jo Buipuelsiapun [N} e JO %OB| B pue $a2inosal [eloueul pajwl Ag pauleljsuod si juswabeuew 1osse 1o} suoljique Jo AlaAlep ay L

(panupuo9) (Juswabeuew jasse dibajes) z'c JOIM



Page 185

IoUNOY YIOA Jo AND | €2
“lom Asuow
10} 8N|BeA puB SJUBISSSSSE S92JN0Sal JO 8Sh Uy}
¢| woyy Buisue sueld uonoe juswaldwi pue 8onpold ZY 6
‘0L0Z aunp ul paacidde aue Aay)
810J9(q Sjuswale]s |eloUBUL Y} Ul SI0LIS |elalew
Ajuspi o) paubisap si jey) ssesoud soueinsse
e Ajienb 1snqos pue ybnoioy} e uswsdw| |y G
suoljepusawwiodsy 60/800¢ 191397 HpNy jenuuy
ybiH=¢
PN =2¢
MO = | ‘ou
ajeq sjuswwo) | paalby | Agisuodsay Ayoud uoljepusawwoddy | abed

ue|d uonoy — Z Xipuaddy

uejd uonoy — z xipuaddy




Page 186

The Audit Commission

The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone.

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and
rescue services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for
money for taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services
and make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local
people.

Copies of this report

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070.

© Audit Commission 2009
For further information on the work of the Commission please contact:
Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ

Tel: 0844 798 1212 Fax: 0844 798 2945 Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946
www.audit-commission.gov.uk




Page 187 Agenda ltem 11

Executive 15 December 2009

Report of the Director of Resources

Response to Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009
(including Improvement Plan 2009/10 Update)

Summary

1. To provide an initial response to the findings highlighted in the 2009
Comprehensive Area Assessment reports. The response includes the
delivery of the 2009/10 milestones contained within the council’s
Improvement Plan as approved by Executive on 21 July 2009.

Background
Response to the Area Assessment Report

2. The council is delighted with the findings of the Comprehensive Area
Assessment reports which have highlighted a number of areas of high
and excellent performance which has contributed to the award of a
green flag and no red flags and places the city of York in a strong
position nationally (see agenda item 10). The council and its partners
have been recognised as working well in delivering the priorities set
down by the citizens of York.

3. In addition to excellent partnership performance, the council itself has
also achieved a‘performing well’ status in managing the performance of
services, a clear audit opinion on the council’s financial statements and
a clear value for money opinion.

4. Whilst the majority of the Audit Commission’s reports are accurate and
have been discussed and agreed with the council and its partners, the
following matters have been raised with the Area Assessment Lead,
which present an inaccurate picture of the performance within the city.
These have been challenged previously and are of significant public
interest.They appear on page 4 of Annex B (summary report) and Page
4 and 11 of Annex C (detailed report):



Page 188

e ‘Adults are not as physically active as they should be and this is
contributing to increased obesity’. The council had previously
provided conclusive evidence previously that this analysis is
inaccurate. The Audit Commission have confirmed that the Area
Assessment reports need amending to reflect the error, but this may
not take place until a week after publication.

e ‘Binge drinking is also increasing and has resulted in an increase
Alcohol related hospital admissions’and ‘the number of alcohol
related hospital admissions is increasing......the number is expected
to rise further’ .This is a priority area for York (NP1 39). Whilst it is
accepted that overall rates increased on the previous year, at the
end of 2008/09 York was still well below the unitary, regional and
national average and is currently moving against the regional trend,
with the last three quarters flattening out / reducing.

Graph: York's rate of alcohol-related admissions per 100,000

population
450
400 -
350 - ——
300 \/
250

07/08 Q1 07/08 Q2 07/08 Q3 07/08 Q4 08/09Q1 08/09Q2 08/09 Q3 08/09 Q4

—&— National Average —#— Unitary Average —&— Regional Average =—#— York

e The report also contains negative statements regarding the city’s
mental health services, when the national in-patient survey puts the
city in the top 20 per cent of mental health trusts nationally for
quality of patient care.

The Audit Commission’s response on the above two points is that
Oneplace is an on-going assessment, and it makes sense for them to
look at the issues early in their programme, so they can update the
Oneplace content as soon as is possible if it is appropriate to do so
(the content will be updated quarterly. The lack of an early response
on this will mean that an inaccurate view may be formed of the city
until the reports are amended



6.

Page 189

Despite this the process is recognised to have identified areas for
further review, such as the need for improved sports facilities, and is a
judgement made of the city, not just the council. The detailed findings
of the assessment have been fed back to the city’s Local Strategic
Partnership (Without Walls or WoW) Partnership Board, via the WoW
Executive Delivery Board. The Board is being asked to take overall
responsibility for ensuring improvements are made across the city.
WoW fully respects the importance of this approach to delivering the
improvements complementing current arrangements within the
partnership and the council and a report will be brought back to
Executive in the New Year.

The response to CAA will fit within the wider WoW improvement
agenda that includes:

e The outcomes of the successful WoW annual conference in
September 2009, where a wide selection of partners identified
future actions regarding challenges facing the city;

e Monitoring progress against the strategic aims and actions under
each of the seven themes within the Sustainable Community
Strategy;

e Ensuring the WoW partnership is fit for purpose to deliver the
SCS, LAA and respond to the challenges of CAA.

These activities will identify improvements for WoW and its
partnerships and partners to work on. A coordinated approach to
identifying and agreeing these improvements will be developed to
ensure that no improvements ‘fall between the cracks’, and repetition of
effort is avoided. These improvements will incorporate issues identified
in the Area Assessment and are likely to include:

e Sustaining the proactive response to the recession (e.g.

Improving Adult Skills, Working age people claiming out of work

benefits);

Embedding the Fairness and Inclusion Strategy across the City;

Tackling Climate Change;

Developing a new Transport Strategy for the City;

Sharing the learning from the successful Kingsway West project

and rolling the pilot out to other areas in the city;

Increasing Adult participation in physical activity;

¢ Implementing the strategy to make York a ‘Volunteering City’.

e Encouraging a more collaborative approach to the Commissioning
of services between partners.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 190

Response to the Organisational Assessment Report

The council welcomes the exceptional service performance and
improvements highlighted in the ‘Managing Performance’ aspect of the
report, particularly relating to children’s and adults’ services. The Audit
Commission has highlighted areas for improvement in the Use of
Resources Assessment, which was reported in detail to the Audit &
Governance Committee on 21 September 2009. The assessment
primarily covered the period from 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009 — the
response to this is partially covered in paragraphs 11 to 20 below through
the reported delivery of Improvement Plan actions, with a further plan for
new areas developed as outlined in paragraph 21 below.

In response to governance and Use of Resources self assessments in July
2009, the Executive agreed the milestones and activity contained within
the 2009/10 Improvement Plan, which covered nine major areas for
corporate improvement arising from those assessments. Members
requested that future updates on progress be reported back to the
Executive; these are outlined below and progress against milestones
summarised in Annex A.

Improvement Plan Progress To Date

Progress is summarised under each theme of the Improvement Plan and
overall progress monitored by Executive against targets set within the
Corporate Strategy.

HR: This area for improvement followed up on work done in 2008/09, and
the key areas of progress for this year include:

a. the launch of e-recruitment, the ability both for applicants to apply
for jobs online, and for managers to manage the recruitment
process online. The e-recruitment project went live for three
directorates, Chief Executives, Resources and City Strategy in
November 2009, and will be rolled out to the other three in due
course.

b. Pay and Grading has reached the stage of notifying all appeal
outcomes to staff, after which there will be further follow-up actions
but the full process is expected to be complete by the end of the
financial year.

c. Workforce Planning is concentrating on the development of a
Workforce Planning Strategy, and consultation on a preliminary
draft is currently being carried out with Directorate Management
Teams and the Joint Consultative Committee.

Fairness & Inclusion (formerly Equalities): The new national Equality
Framework has introduced a new standard of equalities that CYC is
currently working towards. This is a far more exacting standard, and there



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 191

is considerable work under way to secure the initial level of “Developing”
within the framework, with plans to progress quickly onto the next level of
“Achieving” by 2011. Further work has commenced across the council to
be discussed with partners, to strengthen arrangements for social inclusion
and equality of access to services. Finally, additional training on human
rights is to be arranged.

Health & Safety: Work has been continuing from last year to promote a
culture of safe working practices across the council, and a regular
newsletter has been successfully launched. The analysis of training needs
for all staff has been rolled into the replacement HR system, known as the
Delphi Replacement Project, which will cover all training needs for staff.
The Health & Safety (H&S) team are developing courses at present, which
will be delivered through the training and development centre. Audits of
Health and Safety practice are ongoing, and the H&S team are introducing
a web-based risk assessment system to ensure that risks are reviewed
and adequate control measures are put in place.

Member Training: Substantial progress has been made in working
towards the IDeA Charter Status for Member Training and Development. A
steering group was established in May 2009, and this year's Member
Development Programme has set out a wide variety of events in which
members can participate. A Member handbook will be developed in the
near future, and the initial external assessment of Member Development is
expected to take place in Spring 2010.

Project and Programme Management: The aim of this workstream is to
introduce a standardised project and programme management
methodology across the council. York’s project management approach is
currently being used to deliver the More for York programme, which is
council-wide in its impact, however, the majority of milestones within this
workstream, such as agreeing standard templates and a gateway review
process, are still to be achieved. This, however, does not reflect that
project management as an approach is fully embedded in the council; it is
the future corporate framework for the council’s Business Model that is yet
to be developed.

Code of Conduct Awareness: A fraud survey is currently being
conducted amongst officers to gain further insight into code of conduct
issues and levels of management awareness. Online fraud awareness
training is being developed and will be available shortly. Training on the
officer code of conduct is planned for later in the year. Current audit work
is also looking at whistleblowing procedures, which picks up an item raised
in the staff survey, and will inform future training programmes.

Partnership Governance: The current governance arrangement for
partnerships and the Compact with the voluntary sector have been
reviewed. The York Compact Group have agreed to adopt a set of dispute
resolution procedures similar to those currently in use in Derby. Current
governance arrangements for significant partnerships will be analysed



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 192

against the council’s own best practice partnership guidelines, and training
on partnership governance will be delivered by the end of the financial
year.

Internal Communications: The new intranet, christened ‘colin’ (council
on-line information network), is under development and due for a phased
launch from January onwards. Once the launch is under way, there will be
an audit of internal publications, and new publications likely from April
onwards. A communications audit will also examine the role and practice
of team briefings, to understand existing cascades and barriers to good
communication, which is to be completed by the end of the financial year.

Risk Management: Risk reporting has been successfully integrated into
the new performance management framework, and the key corporate risks
examined and the risk register refreshed. The Risk Management Policy
and Strategy have both been revised and the council is on target to deliver
the revised Corporate Risk Monitor, reporting on risk management activity,
by the end of December this year.

Further Developments

An analysis has been undertaken to identify new areas to be built into a
supplementary action plan which are necessary, as a result of the Use of
Resources Assessment and with a view to moving the council to
'Performing Well’ in Use of Resources - lead officers have been identified
to implement those actions. This plan is being monitored by the CAA
Steering Group chaired by the Director of Resources and progress will
monitored by the Audit & Governance Committee.

The Audit Commission are already reviewing improvements since the last
Organisational Assessment, and must have a draft opinion on Use of
Resources 2009/10 by the end of March 2010, much earlier than in
previous years.

Corporate and partnership planning processes are under way to develop
the actions and milestones necessary to deliver outcomes for York’s
residents in 2010/11 onwards, and full cognisance will be taken of those
areas in the Area Assessment where the Audit Commission want to focus
their attention in 2010.

Consultation

24. In November 2009 the Directors responsible for each improvement
workstream were consulted, and they have provided the information that is
summarised in this report.

Options

25. No other options are presented as this report is an update report as

requested by Executive in July 2009.



Analysis

26.

Page 193

No analysis of options required.

Corporate Priorities

27.

The successful delivery of the CAA improvements and Improvement Plan
contributes to the achievement of all community and council priorities, and
is a key aim of the “Effective Organisation” priority contained within the
Corporate Strategy.

Implications

28.

(a) Financial There are no financial implications

(b) Human Resources (HR) There are HR implications relating to
the HR workstream.

(c) Equalities There will be Equalities implications if the Equalities
milestones are not delivered.

(d) Legal There are no immediate legal implications with this
report but each area of key activity is likely to generate the
need for detailed advice.

(e) Crime and Disorder There are no implications for Crime and
Disorder.

(f) Information Technology (IT) There are IT implications
contained within the Internal Communications workstream,
relating to the new intranet.

(9) Property There are no property implications.

(h) Other No other known implications.

Risk Management

29.

Failure to achieve improvement could affect the next Comprehensive Area
Assessment outcomes, which is a key corporate risk on the corporate risk

register.

Recommendations

30.

Executive are asked to comment upon the response to the CAA reports,
note progress and planned improvements to date and agree related
monitoring and reporting arrangements.



Page 194

Reason

To ensure that members are aware of the council’s response to inspection
and audit outcomes, recognise the achievements and also action taken or
planned for areas for improvement identified in the report.

Contact Details

Author:

Chief Officer Responsible for the report:

Helena Nowell
Improvement Programme
Manager

Performance & Business
Assurance, Resources
01904 551746

Pauline Stuchfield

Assistant Director of Resources
(Customer service &
Governance)

lan Floyd

Director of Resources

Report Approved N Date | 7 December
2009

Chief Officer's name

Title

Report Approved | fick Date | /nsert Date

Specialist Implications Officer(s) List information for all

Implication ie Financial
Name

Title

Tel No.

Implication ie Legal
Alison Lowton

Interim Head of Legal Services

01904 551004

Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all

All | tick
v

For further information please contact the author of the report

Annexes

Annex A — Progress against Improvement Plan Milestones.

Background Papers:

Executive Report 21 July 2009 on the 2009/10 Improvement Plan




Improvement Plan Update 2009/10

Annex A

KEY Symbol

Completed \/

On track to complete by end of

year ﬂ

Started but not on track =

Not started, milestone dates

missed X

Not started, milestone dates not

reached yet NS
Key actions towards improvement Key 2009/10 milestones Lead Status

HR

Develop and implement a Workforce
Development Plan

Plan completed by 30 September
2009 -
C33Plan implemented by 31 March
2010

lan Floyd/ Angela Wilkinson

Pay and Grading Implementation

Completed by 31 March 2010

lan Floyd/ Angela Wilkinson

< (<2

HR Transformation Programme Phase 1 to be
delivered: this includes e-recruitment, Delphi
replacement and the creation of an HR
Business Centre

Phase 1 completed by 31 March 2010

lan Floyd/ Angela Wilkinson

Page 1 of 4

G6 | abed



Key actions towards improvement

Key 2009/10 milestones

Lead

Status

Equalities

Meet all requirements of the 5eveloping level
of the Equality Framework

Completed by 31 March 2010

Bill Hodson/ Evie Chandler

Facilitate the development of a joint approach
to equality in access to services amongst
LSP partners

Completed by 31 March 2010

Bill Hodson/ Evie Chandler

Review the procurement strategy in the light of
equalities duties

Completed by 31 March 2010

Bill Hodson/ Evie Chandler

Deliver training on Equalities and human
rights, particularly to members

Completed by 31 December 2009

Bill Hodson/ Evie Chandler

Health & Safety

Carry out a H&S training needs assessment
within each directorate

Completed by 30 September 2009

Sally Burns/ Angela Wilkinson/
Jon Grainger

Deliver the H&S Training Plan to key
managers

Completed by 31 March 2010

Sally Burns/ Angela Wilkinson/
Jon Grainger

= (X [ |= |=

Achieve 2009/10 workplan goals for assessing
levels of legal compliance for Health & Safety
within each service area in line with key
performance indicators set out in the CYC
Safety Management System

Completed by 31 March 2010

Sally Burns/ Angela Wilkinson/
Jon Grainger

Ensure all new H&S risks entered onto the
corporate risk system have been reviewed by
the H&S team to ensure appropriate control
measures are in place

Ongoing from June 2009

Sally Burns/ Angela Wilkinson/
Jon Grainger

Launch Health & Safety newsletter

Completed by 30 September 2009

Sally Burns/ Angela Wilkinson/
Jon Grainger

Page 2 of 4

96| 8bed



Kex actions towards imErovement

Key 2009/10 milestones

Lead

Status

Develop and agree Member Development

Completed by 30 September 2009

Code of Conduct

Completed by 31 March 2010

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

& 2 Policy Bill McCarthy/ Quentin Baker
o =
£ = |Agree annual programme 2009/10 Completed by 30 September 2009 |Bjj| McCarthy/ Quentin Baker \/
= = |Agree implementation plan re achieving Completed by 30 September 2009
charter status Bill McCarthy/ Quentin Baker =
Agree corporate adoption of common
principles of project and programme
(0} management (via report to CMT and
E Executive) Completed by 30 September 2009 Bill Woolley/ Tracey Carter =
O +—
o) QC_, Develop a range of Project Management
O E templates and an assessment matrix to
% % identify the appropriate level of Project
c g Management control Completed by 30 September 2009 Bill Woolley/ Tracey Carter X
..(E ‘2‘5 Develop agreed gateway process for project
_&’_)\ review Completed by 30 September 2009 Bill Woolley/ Tracey Carter X
(@)
o Analyse training requirements for
project/programme management Completed by 30 September 2009 Bill Woolley/ Tracey Carter X
Develop training programme Completed by 31 December 2009 Bill Woolley/ Tracey Carter NS
=8 Review whistle-blowing and other conduct
8 S @ |procedures Completed by 30 September 2009 lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield ﬂ
T o
T C o
8 8 % Deliver training programme on the Officer

Page 3 of 4

/6| 8bed



Partnership
Governance

[Key actions towards improvement

Key 2009/10 milestones

Lead

Review current governance arrangements for
partnerships and the current framework for the
Compact

Completed by 30 September 2009

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

Develop gap analysis between current
compliance levels and the partnership
guidelines

Completed by 31 March 2010

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

Deliver training and awareness on good
partnership governance, including member
training

Completed by 31 March 2010

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

Internal
Communications

Launch of the new intranet

Completed by 30 September 2009

Pete Dwyer/ Matt Beer

Relaunch of News&Jobs and News in Depth

Completed by 31 December 2009

Pete Dwyer/ Matt Beer

Develop a cascade system for team briefings

Completed by 31 March 2010

Pete Dwyer/ Matt Beer

Risk Management

Integrate risk reporting into the new
Performance Management Framework

Completed by 30 June 2009

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

Fundamental refresh of strategic risk register
in line with the new Corporate Strategy

Completed by 30 September 2009

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

Work with lead ofticers to address risks
highlighted from partnership risk survey of
significant partnerships

Completed by 30 September 2009

lan Floyd/ Pauline Stuchfield

Page 4 of 4

86| abed



Page 199 Agenda ltem 12

COUNCIL

Executive 15th December 2009
Report of the Director of Resources

2010/11 Budget Strategy and Medium Term Financial Planning
2011/12 to 2013/14

Summary

1. This report seeks to update Members on the strategy being adopted for
the development of the 2010/11 Revenue Budget, which will require
approval from Council on 25 February 2010. The report also outlines
longer term issues linked to public sector funding and the implications
these may have on the council’s medium term financial planning.

2. The current funding assumptions underpinning the development of the
2010/11 Revenue Budget are:

a) A Council Tax increase of 2.9%.

b) A Formula Grant increase of 2.5%, which is 0.5% below the average
increase for unitary authorities and follows a ‘damping’ reduction of
£1.155m. The settlement also sees the council as the 9th lowest out
of all 55 unitary authorities in per capita funding, equating to £153.99
below the national average for each person in the city.

Background

3. The 2009/10 Budget Report approved by Council in February 2009
contained a Medium Term Financial Forecast (MTFF) which broadly
outlined the council’s financial strategy through to 2012/13. The MTFF
set out the main financial risks faced by the council, indicated a balanced
position for 2010/11 and was based on a number of key assumptions, i.e.

a) A Council Tax increase of 4%.

b) Efficiency savings delivered through a transformation programme
which would remove the need for unstructured ‘salami slicing’ of
budgets.

c) Resulting in additional financial capacity to allow investment in key
corporate priority areas.

4. Since the MTFF was produced, the economic climate has deteriorated
significantly resulting in pressures on income generating services and
additional demand for services from residents who have been worst hit by
the recession. In addition, demand for social care across the city has risen
dramatically, resulting in ongoing financial pressures in 2009/10 which will
need to be addressed as part of the development of the 2010/11 Budget.



Page 200

5. At the same time, the council’s corporate strategy has been refreshed
which was approved by Council in April 2009. Any financial planning
decisions that are made should therefore work towards meeting the
revised aims and objectives outlined in the strategy.

6. A report on the arrangements for the development of the 2010/11 Budget
was approved by Executive on 23rd June 2009, and this report seeks to
provide further information to Members.

2010/11 Revenue Budget — Latest position

7. As part of the development of the 2010/11 Revenue Budget, a review of
the MTFF has taken place and updates have been made in respect of key
assumptions, which have been extended following a review of the
council’s reserves and an assessment of the areas where corporate
growth is seen as essential for financial pressures deemed unavoidable.

8. The key assumptions underpinning the development of the 2010/11
budget are set out below:

a) A Council Tax rise of 2.9%.
b) A Formula Grant rise of 2.5%.

c) The cash limiting of budgets for directorates, with the need to self
fund all non-exceptional budget pressures within this cash limit,
including:

i) pay increases, i.e. operating on a cash standstill basis.

ii) inflationary increases, as above.

iii) any cost of appeals and increments arising from the Pay and
Grading review.

iv) one-off growth items to reduce pressure on the council’s reserves.

d) An assumed level of savings gained through the More for York
programme.

e) The reinvestment of any such savings into priority areas identified as
part of ongoing budget monitoring and from the corporate strategy.

9. The provisional Formula Grant settlement was confirmed on 26 November
2009 and it showed that York would be receiving a 2.5% increase in the
grant for 2010/11, giving total funding of £44.570m. This is low overall as
York does not have a high deprivation level in comparison to other
councils, which is one of the key drivers for allocating the grant. In
addition, York’s annual increase is top sliced under the ‘damping’ system
to guarantee other councils a minimum level of grant, meaning a loss of
£1.155m in 2010/11. Annex 1, summarised in the table below, outlines
the percentage increase in Formula Grant for all unitary authorities and
shows that the average increase is 3.0% which is 0.5% more than York.

% Increase in Formula
Unitary Authority Rank Grant -2010/11
Rutland (Highest) 1 6.2
York 34 25
Wokingham (Lowest) 55 1.5
Average - 3.0




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 201

The table below shows how much Formula Grant funding per person that
York will be receiving in 2010/11 and compares this to other unitary
authorities, the full results of which can be seen in Annex 2. It can be
seen that York is ranked 47" out of the 55 unitary authorities (9" lowest)
and receives £153.99 per person less in funding than the average.

Formula Grant Per,
Unitary Authority Rank| Capita - 2010/11 (£'s)
Leicester (Highest) 1 639.56
York 47 22419
Wokingham (Lowest) 55 126.69
Average - 378.18

The self funding of non-exceptional budget pressures by directorates,
along with the work being carried out through the More for York
programme, is designed to promote efficient delivery of services whilst at
the same time ensuring funding is available for investment in key priority
areas across the council.

The 2009/10 budget monitoring process has identified areas of activity
that currently have insufficient financial capacity to deal with the increased
demands placed on those services. It is essential that priority is given to
directing investment into these areas so that the planning and monitoring
for service delivery can take place against an adequate resourcing
platform.

As a result of this it is apparent that the following three areas need to be
at the forefront of discussions for additional investment:-

a) Children’'s Social Care — York's Looked After Children (LAC)
population has risen by 32% since March 2008 and investment is
required to ensure that this area is adequately funded. A new
government requirement for 16/17yr olds to be classed as LAC will
add pressures to this area anticipated to total approximately £2.1m.

b) Adult Social Care — throughout 2009/10, the council has faced
dramatic increases in learning disabilities cases, home care contracts
and care for the elderly which is expected to continue to rise due to
the ageing population. This rise in demand equates to approximately
£1.8m in investment.

c) Waste Management — includes the requirement to fund rising
Government levies on Landfill Tax, the £8 per tonne increase of this
costing the council a further £0.44m in 2009/10, as well as meeting
household recycling targets.

As part of the 2009/10 Budget, the council made a specific budgetary
provision of £400k to deal with the effects of the economic downturn,
which has affected services such as car parking, planning and leisure and
the prolonged effects of this suggests that it would be prudent to consider



15.

16.

Page 202

increasing this provision as part of the 2010/11 Budget, with anticipated
pressures next year totalling £1.3m.

Additionally, consideration must be given to Treasury Management where
an eventual upturn in the economy would ease current financial
pressures, currently predicted to be £3.1m in 2010/11, as well as
providing revenue support that will assist the council in meeting its long
term objectives through the capital programme.

In summary, the council is facing spending pressures that, due to
demands placed on services, greatly exceeds inflation. The council is
committed to investing only in priority areas outlined in the corporate
strategy which is exemplified by the fact that directorates will be expected
to contain all pay and inflation costs within existing budgets.

Linking Financial Planning and Corporate Priorities

17.

18.

19.

It is essential that the budget preparation process facilitates adequate
resourcing of the council’s priorities as expressed in the corporate
strategy. Some of the priorities will be addressed through specific growth
bids, however many will result from internal re-alignment of existing
budgets within directorates. Officers in corporate performance are working
closely with directorates to ensure that sufficient resources are in place to
deliver against the milestones contained in the corporate strategy.

It is important that the process is transparent, and that there is seen to be
a robust process of realignment of priorities, certainty over the way
Directorates propose to meet the cost of pay and grading, and that it is
demonstrated that funding has been allocated priority areas.

As a result each directorate will need to have demonstrated, and where
relevant submitted, on the following:

a) Requests for priority growth areas.

b) Clearly set out any budget realignment that they are proposing — i.e.
proposed internal savings that will fund any new priority areas or
inflationary pressures.

c) Clearly set out how they will be dealing with the effects of Pay and
Grading.

Timeline

20.

21.

A first round of budget meetings took place during November where each
directorate was required to present the current pressures being faced,
how they would fund these as well as explaining bids for corporate growth
as outlined in paragraphs 12 to 15. For directorates where further work is
required to reach a balanced position, a second round of budget meetings
will be taking place in the middle of December.

Following this, each directorate will be taking a report to an Executive
Member Decision Session during January where their plans will be



Page 203

considered in depth. Information made available will help form the basis
of the 2010/11 Budget Report presented to Members in February.

Medium Term Financial Planning Implications

22. The 2010/11 budget will be the last to be prepared under the current three
year Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) financial settlement, which
as outlined in paragraph 8 will be providing the council with a 2.5%
increase in government funding compared to 2009/10.

23. Since the previous settlement was agreed, the UK’s economic landscape
has changed dramatically which has placed great strain on public
finances. It is because of this that the council has to be prepared to
accept that it will be subjected to cuts in the funding it receives from
central government, with similar authorities predicting real term cuts of
upto 5% year on year.

24. A revised three year MTFF upto 2013/14 will be included as part of the
2010/11 Budget Report which will have to display prudent assumptions on
any future government funding. As a result, there is a need for significant
debate over the coming months in terms of the council's readiness to deal
with these potentially large funding reductions. This will require the council
to change the way it delivers its services in ways that go beyond the work
being carried out by the More for York programme.

Consultation

25. The budget strategy has been discussed and supported at Corporate
Management Team level which has resulted in each directorate, via their
Departmental Management Team’s submitting budget proposals.

Corporate Priorities

26. The information and issues included in this report is designed to
demonstrate that the council’s financial planning is focussed on achieving
the priorities set out in the council's corporate strategy (2009-12).

Implications
27. The implications are:

e Financial - the financial implications are dealt with in the body of the
report.

e Human Resources - there are no human resource implications to this
report.

e Equalities - there are no equality implications to this report.
e Legal - there are no legal implications to this report.

e Crime and Disorder - there are no crime and disorder implications to
this report.

e Information Technology - there are no information technology
implications to this report.

e Property - there are no property implications to this report.



Page 204

e Other - there are no other implications to this report.

Risk Management

28. It is clear that the current economic climate and the longer term
implications this may have on central government funding represents a
significant risk in terms of preventing the council from delivering quality
services and meeting its corporate priorities. All financial planning
decisions that are made need to be assessed for their sustainability in
view of reduced funding and set against expectations that significant
efficiencies are derived from the way in which the council delivers its
services.

Recommendations
29. It is recommended that Members:
a) Note the principles being adopted for the preparation of the 2010/11

budget, in particular the fact that any additional resources will be used
to invest in key priority areas across the council.

b) Note that work is continuing to review the impact of future public
spending reductions as part of the ongoing development of the
Council’'s Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Andrew Crookham lan Floyd, Director of Resources
Corporate Finance Report Approved | X Date December 2009
Ext 2912

Keith Best, AD Resources (Finance)

Report Approved | X Date December 2009
Specialist Implications Officer(s):
Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All | X

For further information please contact the author of the report

Annexes:
Annex 1 — Unitary Authority Formula Grant — Increases in Funding 2010/11
Annex 2 — Unitary Authority Formula Grant — Per Capita Funding 2010/11



Page 205

Unitary Authority Formula Grant - Increases in Funding 2010/11

Increase

in Grant

(£ million)

Rutland 0.452
Torbay 2.868
Blackburn with Darwen 3.848
Telford and the Wrekin 3.141
East Riding of Yorkshire 4.504
Cornwall 9.278
North Lincolnshire 2.462
Blackpool 3.175
Herefordshire 2.232
Bath & North East Somerset 1.583
Isle of Wight Council 2.284
North East Lincolnshire 2.680
Shropshire 3.383
Luton 3.145
South Gloucestershire 2.124
Medway 2.937
Peterborough 2.630
Milton Keynes 2.954
North Somerset 1.747
Stoke-on-Trent 4.257
Kingston upon Hull 5.028
Hartlepool 1.700
Derby 3.487
Durham 7.238
Nottingham 5.223
Redcar and Cleveland 2.061
Thurrock 1.758
Northumberland 3.695
Cheshire East 1.775
Leicester 5.035
Darlington 1.060
Stockton-on-Tees 2.081
Central Bedfordshire 1.333
York 1.108
Bristol 4.087
Plymouth 2.567
Bedford 1.299
Halton 1.525
Middlesbrough 1.916
Cheshire West & Chester 1.923
Southend-on-Sea 1.214
Southampton 1.879
Wi iltshire 1.728
Portsmouth 1.396
Bournemouth 0.813
Bracknell Forest 0.386
Brighton & Hove 1.614
Poole 0.398
Reading 0.818
Slough 0.839
Swindon 0.748
W arrington 0.799
W est Berkshire 0.432
Windsor and Maidenhead 0.278
Wokingham 0.289

Average % Increase 3.0%

Increase
in Grant
(%)
6.2%
5.1%
4.9%
4.7%
4.7%
4.5%
4.1%
4.0%
4.0%
4.0%
3.9%
3.8%
3.8%
3.6%
3.6%
3.6%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
3.5%
3.4%
3.4%
3.3%
3.2%
3.1%
3.1%
3.0%
2.9%
2.9%
2.8%
2.8%
2.7%
2.7%
2.5%
2.5%
2.5%
2.5%
2.4%
2.3%
2.1%
2.0%
1.9%
1%
6%
5%
5%
5%
5%
5%
5%
5%
5%
5%
5%
5%

RN U UL U (UL (U K U UL (U U QI

Rank
(Highest)

-
O OWOoONO U WN-=-

QA OB, BEBRAMDBDMDIMDIERAEDRAEOLWOWOWWOWWWWWNDNDNDNDNNNNNDNN-22 22 A O A A
OB WON-_200CONOOADRWN 2O OONOOUORARWN_AOCOONOOOPRARWN_AOCOONOOOORAWN -

Rank
(Lowest)

55
54
53
52
51
50
49
48
47
46
45
44
43
42
41
40
39
38
37
36
35
34
33
32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21
20
19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10

S NWhooToN 0O

Annex 1



Page 206

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 207

Annex 2

Unitary Authority Formula Grant - Funding Per Capita 2010/11

Funding per

Head of

Population

£'s

Leicester 639.56
Middlesbrough 625.85
Nottingham 602.52
Kingston upon Hull 599.58
Blackburn with Darwen 568.29
Blackpool 555.29
Hartlepool 554.39
Stoke-on-Trent 540.11
Halton 537.44
Redcar and Cleveland 492.64
Slough 485.22
Luton 484.58
Durham 465.50
Derby 459.29
Peterborough 458.21
North East Lincolnshire 455.08
Portsmouth 438.27
Southampton 432.36
Brighton & Hove 429.13
Plymouth 428.24
Isle of Wight Council 425.01
Telford and the Wrekin 418.80
Torbay 418.43
Northumberland 416.67
Stockton-on-Tees 404.07
Bristol 401.82
Reading 393.96
Thurrock 393.07
Cornwall 390.69
Darlington 388.46
Southend-on-Sea 383.42
North Lincolnshire 378.78
Milton Keynes 373.98
Bournemouth 338.63
Bedford 330.59
Medway 328.95
Herefordshire 316.59
Shropshire 316.22
East Riding of Yorkshire 290.38
Cheshire West & Chester 281.39
W arrington 277.52
Swindon 269.75
North Somerset 247.95
Bracknell Forest 233.50
Bath & North East Somerset 230.02
South Gloucestershire 229.48
York 224.19
Wi iltshire 219.86
W est Berkshire 199.25
Rutland 198.89
Poole 198.75
Central Bedfordshire 194.61
Cheshire East 173.86
Windsor and Maidenhead 134.00
Wokingham 126.69

Average Funding Per Capita 378.18

2010/11
Formula

Grant Population

£000's
285,148
133,628
286,458
253,450
143,647
147,305

92,935
235,678
119,024
139,474
116,970
185,510
496,978
238,736
168,078
159,913
199,694
231,597
254,430
247,574
144,461
168,426
140,985
312,572
193,521
415,359
140,561
152,046
546,860

99,962
160,397
164,359
233,417
162,492
163,644
258,795
181,888
295,640
348,967
332,213
194,723
187,756
209,620
111,841
180,673
264,913
198,805
465,945
146,717

38,797
135,397
260,597
365,167
140,291
154,372

Millions
182.370
83.632
172.595
151.964
81.633
81.797
51.522
127.293
63.969
68.711
56.756
89.894
231.341
109.649
77.014
72.772
87.519
100.133
109.185
106.022
61.397
70.537
58.992
130.239
78.196
166.901
55.375
59.765
213.650
38.831
61.499
62.256
87.294
55.025
54.099
85.130
57.584
93.488
101.334
93.482
54.040
50.647
51.975
26.115
41.559
60.792
44 571
102.442
29.234
7.716
26.910
50.714
63.487
18.799
19.557

Rank

Rank

(Highest) (Lowest)

©CoO~NOOOD~WN-=-

QO OO OO BRARBAEADEPRERBEDREDEREDROOOWWWWWWWONNDNDNDNDDNDNNDNNN-SA 22 A A A
OOPRWON_2O0O0CONOOODAPRWON_LO0OCO0OONODAOPRWN-_2 000N PRWON_,POCO0OONOOOOPDWN-=0O

55
54
53
52
51
50
49
48
47
46
45
44
43
42
41
40
39
38
37
36
35
34
33
32
31
30
29
28
27
26
25
24
23
22
21
20
19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12
11
10

S NWHOITO N



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 203 Agenda ltem 13

COUNCIL

Council Executive 15" December 2009

Report of the Director of Learning, Culture and Children’s Services

14-19 Reforms — the York response to national changes

Summary

1. This report summarises the Local Authority’s 14-19 Plan (a statutory appendix
of the Children and Young People’s Plan) which sets out priorities for
developments to 2015 and takes account of the transfer of 16-19 funding and
associated commissioning role to the LA in April 2010. In support of a major
strand of the 14-19 plan it recommends that the Executive agree that the
Council should play a leading role in the development of an enlarged
Apprenticeship programme for 16-19 year olds in the City.

2. Paragraphs 4 to 15 briefly set out the national policy relating to the curriculum
for 14-19 year olds, explain the York response to this change agenda and the
priorities set out in the 14-19 Plan.

3. Paragraphs 16 to 20 deal with the 16-19 funding transfer, explaining how the
LA will develop the capacity to manage the funding allocations and setting out
the statutory frameworks governing this activity.

Background

14-19 Plan

4. The 14-19 Curriculum Reforms have been the subject of a series of Green and
White Papers since 2005. They set out an ambitious agenda of curriculum
change which aims to better prepare young people to succeed in the fast
changing economic environment of the 21% century. In addition to the
established qualifications (GCSEs and A Levels), we have to ensure that
young people can access new Diplomas, undertake an apprenticeship as part
of a strong national drive to expand their numbers or, in the case of lower
attaining young people (at Level 1 or Entry Level which is equivalent to low
grade GCSEs or below), follow a Foundation Learning programme.

5. Alongside the curriculum changes there is a requirement for all young people
to remain in education or training to age 17 (from 2013), and ultimately age 18
(from 2015), known as Raising the Participation Age (RPA).



10.

Page 210

National policy is for these reforms to be progressed by 14-19 Partnerships
comprising all relevant stakeholders (providers of education and training
including schools and colleges, agencies providing Information, Advice and
Guidance to young people, employers and voluntary sector organisations).
Local Authorities are required to be the Lead Strategic Partner in these
partnerships. Progress is monitored through an annual progress check by
Children’s Services Advisers at Government Offices in the regions in addition
to the Ofsted Inspection regime.

In York, good progress has been made on this agenda and the work of the
Learning City York 14-19 Partnership is held up as an example of good
practice. The Department for Children, Schools and Families has used York in
case studies in both guidance (“14-19 Partnerships and Planning”, January
2009) and the latest White Paper (“Your child, your schools, our future: building
a 21% century schools system”, June 2009). We contribute to the National
Training Programme for other LAs and have been given funding to develop a
national exemplar facility linked to the Diploma.

The introduction of the Diploma is one of the highest profile reforms. Diplomas
mix academic study with application of knowledge and skills in practical and
workplace situations. There are fourteen Diplomas linked to different economic
sectors and three to traditional subject areas. A full list is given in Annex 1,
along with a link to further information on the qualification. York is one of only
six areas in the country to have been granted permission to deliver all fourteen
of the Diplomas available in 2010 from September of that year. This places the
city at the leading edge of developments and our Diploma programme involves
a higher proportion of 14-19 year old learners than in any other LA in Yorkshire
and the Humber.

The Learning City York Partnership, led by the LA and Learning and Skills
Council (LSC), meets all the statutory requirements in terms of membership
and organisational structures. It has undertaken a significant amount of work to
scope the needs of young people and the potential contributions of providers in
preparation for the curriculum changes and RPA. In the Autumn Term 2008,
partners undertook an intensive strand of development work under the banner
of “Vision York 2013”. This resulted in agreement of a set of aspirations for
learners in York and a set of key principles to underpin development work.
There has been extensive consultation of stakeholders and an independent
study of York’s 14-19 options was commissioned earlier this year.

In September 2009, the LA produced its 14-19 Plan (“Achieving Excellence:
York’s 14-19 Plan 2009-15"). This is now the focus of development work.
(Copies are available in the members’ lounge). The plan has four key themes.
Each is underpinned by a programme of activity and further development work
set out in an accompanying action plan. Each plan contains short term actions
to be taken (mostly statutory requirements or previously agreed decisions) and
areas for further exploration. For each theme, partners have agreed the
membership of task groups to produce implementation plans or options for
consideration and subsequent adoption by the Partnership. The task groups
are chaired by members of the 14-19 Strategy and Resources Group,
providing for distributive leadership but maintaining accountability.



11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 211

Theme 1: Information, Advice & Guidance (IAG), including Common
Applications Process (CAP) and admissions issues. Our young people are
being offered an increasing range of options an opportunities. In order to
ensure that they take full advantage, Enjoy and Achieve and Achieve
Economic Wellbeing they will need much more comprehensive, and impartial,
information, advice and guidance. This theme focuses on developing guidance
packages for delivery in schools and on the provision of additional support for
learners and parents/carers. The LA has a statutory duty to ensure that young
people are provided with appropriate IAG, so this will be quality assured
against the relevant national standards. DCSF requires the implementation of a
CAP for applications to enter post 16 learning from September 2012, meaning
that it must be operational the previous September. This will mean that a single
electronic application form will be used to apply to any provider in the city. With
its introduction the possibility of standardised entry requirements will also be
considered.

Theme 2: Provision. York has standards of attainment which are well above
national and regional averages. However, some learners are significantly
disadvantaged by a lack of appropriate provision, other young people will have
to be brought into participation post 16 and the full range of opportunities
provided. These issues will have to be addressed against a backdrop of
demographic decline and restraint of public expenditure. The plan therefore
calls for a shift in focus towards lower attaining learners (the progress of
learners who do not achieve Level 2 (5+A* - C (or equivalent) at GCSE) when
age 16 is subsequently poor), learners with learning difficulties and disabilities
(LDD) and young people between the ages of 16 and 19 who are not in
employment, education or training (NEET). It also identifies the need for review
of provision for higher attaining Level 3 (A Level equivalent) learners. This is
because the range of options will be greater with more opportunities (to take up
Apprenticeships or Diplomas, for example) and the cohort is falling. Hence, in
order to maintain the viability and further improve the high standards of
provision, schools and colleges will have to work collaboratively, possibly
within a system of “Centres of Excellence”.

There is a national priority around increasing the numbers of Apprenticeships
which commands broad support. Apprenticeships are a recognised and
respected “brand” and, in their modern form, offer significant opportunities for
young people to gain higher level qualifications and acquire skills in a work
based environment. In York, even before the full effects of the economic
downturn were felt, the number of apprenticeships was declining. We have set
a challenging initial target to restore apprenticeships to their 2007 level.

Theme 3: Strengthening and Sustaining Partnership working. The Learning
City York 14-19 Partnership is a “soft” partnership. Whilst it meets all
requirements in terms of membership and group structure, it operates through
consensus and has no legal status. Currently, much of its activity, and the
resulting provision, is funded by national grants, especially those linked to
Diplomas. These grants will end in the short term. In order to tackle the
complex challenges ahead both a model of governance capable of dealing with
contentious issues and a sustainable funding model need to be developed.



15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 212

Additionally, in order to maintain a focus on all learners, the Partnership needs
to develop a suite of Performance Indicators covering outcomes for all learners
in the City so that it can measure progress and conduct rigorous self
evaluation.

Theme 4: The Role of the LA. The 14-19 Reforms and post 16 funding transfer
mean that the LA has range of new statutory duties relating to learner
entitlements, provision of IAG and the funding of provision. The LA wants to
work with providers, utilising their strengths and experience, to ensure that
these duties are carried out, to quality assure their delivery and to establish fair
and transparent processes to discharge its funding responsibilities.

Transfer of 16-19 Funding

In the summer of 2007, proposals were published for machinery of government
(MOG) changes including the transfer of funding for post-16 education to local
authorities from April 2010. In 2008/09, through funding for York College and
post 16 provision in York schools, the sum involved would have been £21.5m.

Within the Yorkshire and Humber Region, an Interim Regional Strategic
Planning Forum operating at Director of Children’s Services level was
established (July 2008) to progress the transfer. In line with the requirements
of the transfer, the four authorities of York, North Yorkshire, East Riding and
Hull submitted proposals to Government Office for Yorkshire and the Humber
and DCSF (October 2008) outlining why they should form a sub regional
grouping. These proposals have been assessed in a two stage process and
the sub regional grouping is now working collaboratively towards the transfer.
Within the Local Authority, a transition group with members from School
Improvement, Young People’s Services, Resource Management and Legal
Services has been meeting on a regular basis since March 2009.

The sub regional grouping has agreed some key principles for sub regional
working and conducting the funding allocations process currently undertaken
by the LSC. These are the basis for the memorandum of understanding which
underpins the work of the four LAs :

= A focus on the learner first, not the provider first

= A commitment to align with local and regional economic and skills
needs

= A commitment to integrate 16-19 commissioning with other strategic
priorities for children, families and communities

= A commitment to a mixed economy of providers in which all sectors
are treated equitably

= A commitment to operate in a transparent and inclusive way locally
and sub-regionally

= A commitment to co-operate well sub-regionally, particularly in meeting
agreed timescales for the annual strategic commissioning cycle

= A commitment to incorporate sub-regional needs and issues into
planning at local level



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 213

Because its functions are transferring to LAs and other agencies from April
2010, the LSC will not exist thereafter. In order to provide the capacity within
the LA to carry out the business cycle associated with planning, funding and
quality improvement of 16-19 education a number of LSC staff, determined by
national formula, will transfer to the LA. The matching process is now complete
and of the York allocation of six full time staff at various levels, three full time
and 2 part time postholders have been identified. The LA will receive additional
financial resource equivalent to the difference between the planned and actual
allocation. This can be used to fund posts matching the requirements of the
staffing structure required and fill the gaps in expertise left after the matching
process.

It is important to highlight that the allocation of funding to providers will be
governed by a national commissioning framework and national funding formula
driven by existing patterns of learner choice and offering little leeway for the LA
in the early stages following the transfer. The framework and formula do
incorporate enhanced local and sub regional planning which are part of the
rationale for the transfer. Reports on progress throughout the annual cycle will
be presented to key partnership forums such as the YorOK board, the
Learning City York Board and 14-19 Partnership structures. Members will also
receive reports on Key Performance Indicators included in the Local Area
Agreement and Service Plan monitoring. It is envisaged that there will be three
reporting points to the Executive member each year. These would be in the
Autumn term (Sub Regional / Local Area Statements of Need), Spring term
(Sub Regional Commissioning Plan) and late in the Summer term (annual
review of local 14-19 Plan).

Reports on the 14-19 reforms have been presented to members on a regular
basis, most recently to EMAP (March 2009, November 2008) and Scrutiny
Committee (September 2008).

Consultation

The 14-19 Partnership has a defined structure of groups covering all areas of
activity which enables comprehensive consultation of stakeholders. In addition,
through the “Vision York” activity and independent study a large scale
consultation over future 14-19 strategy has taken place this year. Consultation
of learners through “Learner Voice” activity is building on school council
activity, with the Edge Learner Forum carrying out a learner review of new
Diploma provision.

The post 16 funding transfer is a significant and complex issue. In order to
progress it:
Officers are working in close consultation with the LSC (York and North
Yorkshire Office) and sub regional partner Local Authorities.
The Director (supported by the Principal Adviser 14-19) is a member of the
Regional Planning Forum which is the primary body consulting on regional
issues.



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Page 214

Through 14-19 Partnership structures all post 16 providers and a wide range
of other stakeholders are being kept fully informed, as are the Board of
Learning City York (Lifelong Learning Partnership) and the YorOK Board
(ultimately accountable for 14-19 Education).

A wider York stakeholder consultation event was held in February 2009 and a
sub regional provider briefing on 10th December 2009.

Options
Not applicable to the specific contents of this report.
Analysis
Work with Partners over the past year and the report of the independent study
have reinforced the priorities previously identified by the LA and LSC for the
development of 14-19 and, in particular, 16-19 provision in York. Broadly
stated these are:
Provision for NEETSs, including learners with Special Educational Needs
(SEN) and LDD
Developing more provision at Entry Level, Level 1 and Level 2 to raise
participation and improve progression
Increasing the breadth of provision, including at Level 3
More effective (and impartial) Information, Advice & Guidance
As previously stated, this requires a shift in focus towards lower attaining

learners who are less well served under current arrangements. Providers are
already beginning to respond to these priorities. Examples include:
New NEET provision at York College supported by Young People’s Services.
Increasing collaboration between York College and Applefields School to
support the progression of learners with higher level needs.
The development of provision for lower attainers as part of the new post 16
provision at Archbishop Holgate’s.
The collaboration of all partners in an enhanced programme of IAG support
including the provision of a comprehensive “After Year 11 in York” booklet
and a city wide options and opportunities event.

There are, however, significant challenges ahead. Following recent declines in
the number of Apprenticeships in York and the national priority attached to
their development, we need to reinvigorate the Apprenticeship route.

The development of a city wide strategy and partnership approach has
implications for providers. Schools and colleges are used to a high degree of
autonomy and institutional independence in decisions around their
development plans. This creates some tensions when their individual
aspirations are not consistent with city wide priorities for all learners. In
particular, demographic decline and the introduction of a greater range of
qualifications have implications for the current pattern of A Level provision.
There is clearly a sufficient supply of such provision and its quality is high.
However, the amount on offer will have to reduce in the coming years.



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Page 215

Corporate Objectives

The 14-19 Strategy is central to success of the Children and Young People’s
Plan and the Council’s strategies around economic development, and in
particular to Corporate Priorities 7 (Skills and Knowledge) and 9 (Narrowing the
Gap).

Implications
Financial

The MOG changes are expected to be achieved within the context of no overall
budget growth beyond existing LA and LSC budgets. The only additional
funding to support this process has been £15k from GOYH to the sub regional
grouping, which was allocated to consultant support for the development of the
Stage 2 submission. Other additional capacity during the transition phase has
had to be found within existing budgets.

In the longer term, growth (ie the introduction of new provision to meet the
needs of the raising of the participation age) has to be funded by savings
resulting from smaller cohorts (demographic decline). The LA, in its
commissioning role, will have to work within this constraint, as will providers
when developing strategic plans at institutional level.

At the present time, no information regarding capital support for 16-19
education following the funding transfer has been provided. This means that
there is currently no scope to plan for coherent development of facilities to
support the introduction of provision which addresses identified priorities

The actual amount of additional financial resource associated with the gap
between staff matched and staff allocated (Para 19) has yet to be confirmed,
which is delaying reorganisation and recruitment options.

Whilst the provision of additional resource to support the transfer of LSC staff
in to the LA has been mooted in various forums, there has been no official
confirmation or publication of indicative amounts. Such funding would support,
for example, accommodation, IT and telecommunications costs.

The LA will assume responsibility for over £22m of additional funding. This will
require the development of appropriate audit methodology and provision of
additional capacity within LCCS Finance, which would have to be funded from
within the additional resource referred to in paragraph 33.

Human Resources (HR)

On 1 April 2010, following a period of shadowing, LSC staff will transfer to the
local authority. The Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)
Regulations (TUPE) and the Cabinet Office Protocol will apply. For some time
the Local authority has been considering and discussing with the staff
concerned, how those staff transferring from the LSC can best be integrated
into the existing local authority structure.



37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

Page 216

HR advice has centred on preparing a clear understanding within the authority
of what York’s staffing establishment requirements are likely to be in order to
carry out the new functions of commissioning and broader 14-19 activity. A
staffing structure is at an advanced state of development and will be brought
forward through the usual Directorate channels.

There are still a number of issues around conditions of employment, additional
benefits, pensions etc that still have to be clarified at national level.

Equalities

An enhanced Equalities Impact Assessment of the 14-19 Strategy is being
carried out during the Autumn Term 20009.

Legal

There are legal implications around the staffing transfer and the issuing of
contracts to providers commissioned outside of the national commissioning
framework under separate grant funding which has previously been
administered by the LSC. Examples are the contract for Young Apprenticeship
programmes with York College and the contract for Education Business Links
with the North Yorkshire Business Education Partnership (NYBEP). Legal
Services has been represented on an internal transition group and consulted
on developments.

With sub regional partners we are working to clarify issues and arrangements
around the sharing of a range data used to inform planning and
commissioning.

Information Technology (IT)

It is not anticipated that any complex bespoke IT systems will be involved in
the transfer, given that provision of data and management information will be
the responsibility of the Young People’s Learning Agency (YPLA). The IT
Client Services manager within LCCS has been briefed on the requirements for
transferring staff.

Five new user accounts will need to be set up on the CYC system. There will
be a licence cost involved with this set up of around £100 per user.

Risk Management
14-19 Plan

As noted above, DCSF emphasises the role of the LA as Lead Strategic
Partner in 14-19 developments. It also highlights the involvement of
stakeholders through a 14-19 Partnership. In common with many such
partnerships, Learning City York has no legal status and relies on City of York
Council for support in a range of key areas such as HR and procurement. The
14-19 Plan highlights the need to strengthen the partnership and place it on a
sustainable footing.



45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

Page 217

Additionally, the development of the new curriculum pathways and entitlements
will require the displacement of existing provision. Within all mainstream
providers there are, necessarily, implications for staffing structures and
budgets.

The development of new provision is central to efforts to raise participation and
achievement, improve progression, reduce NEETs and support economic
development in York. Nonetheless it remains vulnerable in the early stages to
unpredictable national press publicity and political influences.

Transfer of 16-19 Funding

Key LA staff are devoting significant time and energy to progressing the
changes and managing the transition.

The staffing transfer has progressed well and Officers are confident that the
staff matched to the LA will prove be valuable additions to our staff. However,
there remain a number of significant unresolved issues around HR aspects of
the transfer and associated financial resources.

Recommendations

The Executive is asked to note the good progress made on delivering the 14-
19 Curriculum Reforms and the high regard in which the work of the York
Partnership is held. It is also asked to endorse the strategic approach to
continuing developments set out in the 14-19 Plan.

Further, Executive is asked to note the good progress made within the LA and
with Sub Regional Partners on the 16-19 Funding Transfer and the
opportunities and challenges it presents. It is also asked to endorse the LAs
approach to the changes at sub regional and regional levels.

Finally, Executive is asked to agree that the Council, as the largest employer in
the area, build on existing development work and play a leading role in
developing an enlarged apprenticeship programme for young people in the
city. In addition to the creation of new apprenticeship places across the council
at a time when employment opportunities are restricted by the economic
recession, this would also include encouraging partner organisations offer
places themselves.

Reason: to ensure that progress towards the 2013 learner entitlements and the
development of provision necessary to deliver RPA in York can be maintained, that
the LA is in position to assume new statutory responsibilities associated with the
post 16 funding transfer, and that the key apprenticeship pathway is made more
widely available for young people in the city.



Page 218

Contact Details

Author:

John Thompson

Principal Adviser 14-19

School Improvement and Staff
Development

Ext 3039.

Chief Officer Responsible for the report:

Pete Dwyer

Director

Learning, Culture and Children’s Services
Report Approved V/ Date (02/12/09

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

Finance

Richard Hartle

Head of Finance
Resource Management
LCCS

Ext 4225

Legal

Peter Cairns
Education/Employment Lawyer
Legal Services

IT

Laura Conkar

ICT Client Manager
Resource Management
LCCS

Ext 4347

Human Resources

Mark Bennett

Senior HR Business Partner
Human Resources

Chief Executive’s LCCS
Ext 1095 Ext 4518
Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All v

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

Achieving Excellence: York’s 14-19 Plan 2009-15

Annexes

Annex 1: 14-19 Reforms: Diplomas



Page 219

Annex 1
14-19 Reforms: Diplomas
Phase Diploma Introduction in York
1 Engineering 2008
1 Society, Health & Development 2008
1 Construction and Built Environment 2010
1 Creative & Media 2009
1 Information Technology 2009
2 Business, Admin & Finance 2009
2 Environment & Land Based 2009
2 Manufacture & Product Design 2009
2 Hair & Beauty 2009
2 Hospitality 2010
3 Sport & Active Leisure 2010
3 Retail 2010
3 Travel & Tourism 2010
3 Public Services 2010
4 Languages & International Communication 2011*
4 Humanities & Social Sciences 2011~
4 Science 2012*

(* Subject to DCSF approval)

The DirectGov website has an extensive and informative section on Diplomas
which can be accessed using the following web address:

http://yp.direct.gov.uk/diplomas/




Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 221 Agenda ltem 14

COUNCIL

Executive 15" December 2009

Report of the Corporate Landlord

Former Lowfields School, Dijon Avenue, Acomb
Summary

1. This report seeks to obtain approval from the Executive to the
demolition of the former school buildings at the above site and to fund
the work from the resultant capital receipt.

Background

2. On 31% December 2008 York High School vacated the buildings at the
Lowfields site on completion of the new York High School at Cornlands
Road.

3. Following vacation the buildings were secured, services disconnected
and security patrols put in place.

4. It had been originally intended that the site would be marketed for
disposal as soon as the High School moved. However, with the
economic downturn the best capital receipt would not have been
achieved and therefore, the property remains in the ownership of the
Council.

5. A development brief is currently being prepared by the City
Development Team, which will be completed by April 2010, with a view
to possibly marketing the property later in 2010/early 2011, to be sold
in the 2010/11 financial year This will depend on market conditions at
the time. The cost of demolition will potentially be recouped by way of
increased capital receipt to reflect the fact that the property is a cleared
site, and will also speed up the sale process.

6. Inevitably the buildings have become a target for vandalism and the
buildings have been broken into on several occasions. This has
including arson on two occasions, with resultant costs and
inconvenience to the fire service and local residents, despite the
security measures in place.



Page 222

Clearly the only way to stop the problems associated with the site is to
demolish the buildings, which are not suitable for any form of re-use.

Work has been going on now for several months to carry out all the
necessary surveys and health and safety assessments prior to
obtaining formal quotations for the demolition work. The tenders have
now been obtained. This is set out later in the report.

Should the Executive approve the recommendations, work will start on
site in January 2010 and the work is expected to take 12 weeks to
complete.

Consultation

10.  This report has been prepared in consultation with the Corporate Asset

Management Group.

Options

11.  Approve or reject the recommendations.
Analysis

12.  Approve the recommendations

Advantages:

a. The buildings can be demolished leaving a cleared site, which is no
longer a target for vandalism. The demolition work will result in an
increased capital receipt being received.

b. Vastly reduced costs of security and maintenance, which will result
in a saving that can be transferred to support the surplus property
budget.

c. A more attractive site for developers on disposal.

Disadvantages:

a. The cost of the demolition work will ultimately be funded from the
increased capital receipt received from the sale of the cleared site.
However, any financing costs incurred as a result of the timing
differences between the costs of the demolition and the capital
receipt being received will be funded from property services
revenue budgets.

b. If the site is not sold then the demolition costs will need to be written
off to revenue and funded from property services revenue budget.

13. Reject the recommendations

Advantages
a. No need for prudential borrowing.



Page 223

b. No requirement for the surplus property budget to fund the

demolition costs if the site is not sold.

Disadvantages

a.
b.

C.

The buildings continue to be a target for vandalism and arson.
Ongoing costs of security and maintenance to be picked up by the
surplus property fund.

Continuing inconvenience and disturbance to local residents, the
fire service and police.

Corporate Priorities

14.  The successful delivery of this scheme will help to achieve a number of
the themes of the Corporate Strategy 2009/10 including:

(@)
(b)

Sustainable City — improve the local environment

Safer City — reduced vandalism and anti-social behaviour

Implications

15.
(@)

(f)

(9)
(h)
(i)

Financial - the cost of demolition will be £250,000. This cost will
be funded from the sale of the site and the resultant capital
receipt. Any financing costs incurred as a result of the timing
differences between the costs of the demolition and the capital
receipt being received will be funded from property services
revenue budget.

If the site is not sold then the demolition costs incurred will be
written off to revenue and the £250k will be charged to property
services revenue budget.

Human Resources (HR) — there are no HR implications
Equalities — there are no equalities implications

Legal — there are no legal implications

Crime and Disorder - reduction in criminal activity and anti-social
behaviour form the removal of the buildings, which are a target for
vandalism and arson

Information Technology (IT) - there are no IT implications

Property - the implications are set out in this report

Other - there are no other known implications



Page 224

Risk Management
16. There are no known risks associated with the recommendations.
Recommendations

17.  Members are asked to:
Approve the demolition of the buildings at the former Lowfields School
site, and the funding of the work from the sale of the resultant capital
receipt.

18.  Approve the use of the property services revenue budget as required
a. to fund the finance costs incurred as a result of the timing
differences between the demolition costs incurred and the sale of
the capital receipt or
b.  to fund the demolition costs from the surplus property fund budget
if the site is not sold.

19. Reason: to eliminate a target for vandalism, arson and anti-social
behaviour. This will result in savings on security and maintenance
costs, a reduction in nuisance to local neighbours, and a reduction in
the drain on police and fire service resources.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Tim Bradley Neil Hindhaugh

Asset Manager Assistant Director Property Services
Property Services

Tel No. 553355 Report Approved Date

Report Approved | sjck Date | Insert Date

Specialist Implications Officer
Financial

Louise Branford-White

Technical Finance Manager

551187

Ward Affected: Westfield All | tick

For further information please contact the author of the report




Page 225

Background Papers:

File No. EO0546 held in Asset and Property Management, Property Services
Annexes

Annex 1 — Site plan



Page 226

This page is intentionally left blank



-

SR o
S T

S
e

- N
YORK Former Lowfields School Site, Dijon Avenue, Acomb W‘{%E
S

DRAWNBY: GR DATE: 17/11/2009

Originating Group:

Resources Property Services " E00546_1

Propert'y Ser\/[ces Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to pro: tion or civil proceedings.
City of York Council 100020818




Page 228

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	
	3 Minutes
	5 Executive Forward Plan
	6 More for York - Organisation Review
	Annex 1 MFY Organisation Review
	Annex 2 MFY Organisation Review

	7 More for York Update - Income Collection and Sustainability Review
	Annex 1 MFY - Income Collection & Sustainability
	Annex 2 MFY - Income Collection & Sustainability

	8 More For York - Adult Social Care Blueprint
	Annex 1 Adult Social Care Blueprint
	exempt Annex 2 Adult Social Care Blueprint
	exempt Annex 3 Adult Social Care Blueprint

	9 Council Headquarters - Tender Award
	Annex 1 Council HQ - Tender Award
	Exempt Annex 2 Council HQ - Tender Award

	10 Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009
	Annex A CAA
	Annex B CAA
	Annex C CAA
	Annex D CAA
	Annex E CAA
	Annex F CAA

	11 Response to Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009 (including Improvement Plan 2009/10 Update)
	Annex A Response to CAA

	12 2010/11 Budget Strategy and Medium Term Financial Planning 2011/12 to 2013/14
	Annex 1 Budget Strategy
	Annex 2 Budget Strategy

	13 14-19 Reforms - the York Response to National Changes
	Annex 1 14-19 Reforms

	14 Former Lowfields School, Dijon Avenue, Acomb
	Annex 1 Former Lowfields School Demolition


